CITY OF ONTARIO
PLANNING COMMISSION/
HISTORIC PRESERVATION
MEETING AGENDA

November 26, 2019

Ontario City Hall
303 East ""B" Street, Ontario, California 91764

6:30 PM

WELCOME to a meeting of the Ontario Planning/Historic Preservation
Commission.

All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located at 303 E. B
Street, Ontario, CA 91764.

Anyone wishing to speak during public comment or on a particular item should fill out a green
slip and submit it to the Secretary.

Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. Speakers will be alerted when their time is up.
Speakers are then to return to their seats and no further comments will be permitted.

In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects
within the Commission’s jurisdiction. Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those
items.

Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of the chambers will not be permitted. All
those wishing to speak including Commissioners and Staff need to be recognized by the Chair
before speaking.

The City of Ontario will gladly accommodate disabled persons wishing to communicate at a
public meeting. Should you need any type of special equipment or assistance in order to
communicate at a public meeting, please inform the Planning Department at (909) 395-2036, a
minimum of 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.

Please turn off all communication devices (phones and beepers) or put them on non-audible
mode (vibrate) so as not to cause a disruption in the Commission proceedings.

ROLL CALL

DeDiemar _  Downs __  Gage  Gregorek  Reyes  Ricci  Willoughby

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

_1-



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  Nov. 26, 2019

ANNOUNCEMENTS

1)  Agenda Items
2) Commissioner Items

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens wishing to address the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission on any matter that is not
on the agenda may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and
limit your remarks to five minutes.

Please note that while the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission values your comments, the

Commission cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the
forthcoming agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one summary motion in the order
listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Commission votes
on them, unless a member of the Commission or public requests a specific item be removed from the
Consent Calendar for a separate vote. In that case, the balance of the items on the Consent Calendar
will be voted on in summary motion and then those items removed for separate vote will be heard.

A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of October 22, 2019, approved as
written.

A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-039: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional
single-family homes on 11.24 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus
Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional Medium Lot Residential district
of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this
project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for
which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2004011009) was certified by the City
Council on October 17, 2006. This application introduces no new significant
environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of
project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP); (APN: 0218-014-25) submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC.

A-03. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-015: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building
totaling 28,003 square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard,
within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to
Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International

-



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  Nov. 26, 2019

Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1011-111-
04) submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

For each of the items listed under PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS, the public will be provided an
opportunity to speak. After a staff report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At
that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case. Members of
the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak. The Planning/Historic Preservation
Commission may ask the speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided. The
question period will not count against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will
be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close
the public hearing portion of the hearing and deliberate the matter.

HISTORIC PRESERVATION ITEMS

B. CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-014:
A Certificate of Appropriateness for the adaptive reuse of two local historic landmark
commercial buildings (Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles) for a total of 8,460 square
foot specialty restaurant(s) and bar, with a 4,200 square foot outdoor patio on 0.23 acres
of land located at the northeast corner of B Street and Euclid Avenue, within the
Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development zoning district. The project is
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15331 (Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of
the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-552-22) submitted by 200 N. Euclid Avenue, LLC.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15331

2. File No. PHP19-014 (Certificate of Appropriateness)

Motion to Approve/Deny

C. CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-009:
A Certificate of Appropriateness to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant
(Starbucks Coffee), with a 480 square foot outdoor patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at
the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street and 511 N.
Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue
Overlay) zoning districts. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15331 (Historical
Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-355-09 and
10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15331

3




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  Nov. 26, 2019

2. File No. PHP19-009 (Certificate of Appropriateness)

Motion to Approve/Deny

PLANNING COMMISSION ITEMS

D.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PUD19-001 AND PDEV19-
038: A Planned Unit Development (File No. PUD19-001) to establish development
standards, design guidelines and infrastructure requirement for property on 0.36 acres of
land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street
and 511 N. Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid
Avenue Overlay) zoning districts, in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No.
PDEV19-038) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee),
with a 480 square foot outdoor patio. The project is categorically exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section
15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1048-355-09 and
10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. City Council action is required for File No.
PUD19-001.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15332

2. File No. PUD19-001 (Planned Unit Development)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

3. File No. PDEV19-038 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve/Deny

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970): A Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.71-
acre of land into three traditional single-family residential lots located at 1919 South
Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential — 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre)
zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15,
Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land
Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1050-331-24) submitted by Mark Raab.

1. CEQA Determination




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  Nov. 26, 2019

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines Section § 15315

2. File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) (Parcel Map)

Motion to Approve/Deny

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND SPECIFIC PLAN AMEMEDMENT
FOR FILE NO. PSPA19-002: An Amendment to the Meredith International Centre
Specific Plan to establish a Mixed-Use Overlay district on 22.39 acres of land within a
portion of Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use district, located at the
southeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard. Staff is
recommending the adoption of an Addendum to Meredith International Centre Specific
Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2014051020) certified by City
Council on April 7, 2015. This Application introduces no new significant environmental
impacts and all previously adopted mitigation measures will be a condition of project
approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);
(APNs: 0110-311-52,0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) submitted by G.H.
Palmer Associates. City Council action is required.

1. CEQA Determination

Motion to Approve/Deny use of an Addendum to a previous EIR

2. File No. PSPA19-002 (Specific Plan Amendment)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

G. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-025: A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project
consisting of 925 multiple-family dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail space on
22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland
Empire Boulevard, within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use district of
the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. Staff is recommending the adoption of
an Addendum to Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment
Environmental Impact Report (SCH #. 2014051020) certified by City Council on April
7, 2015. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All
previously adopted mitigation measures will be a condition of project approval. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International
Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 0110-
311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) submitted by G.H. Palmer
Associates.

1. CEQA Determination




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  Nov. 26, 2019

Motion to Approve/Deny use of an Addendum to a previous EIR

2. File No. PDEV19-025 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve/Deny

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

1) Old Business
e Reports From Subcommittees

- Historic Preservation (Standing): Met on November 14, 2019

2) New Business
1) Nominations for Special Recognition
DIRECTOR’S REPORT

13 Monthly Activity Report

If you wish to appeal any decision of the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission, you must do so
within ten (10) days of the Commission action. Please contact the Planning Department for
information regarding the appeal process.

If you challenge any action of the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission in court, you may be
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission at, or

prior to, the public hearing.

000000000

I. Gwen Berendsen, Administrative Assistant, of the City of Ontario, or my designee, hereby
certify that a true, accurate copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on November 22, 2019, at
least 72 hours prior to the meeting per Government Code Section 54954.2 at 303 East “B” Street,

Ontario.

Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore

Cathyv\w histrom, Planning Director
Planwing/Historic Preservation
Commission Secretary




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING

MINUTES
October 22, 2019
CONTENTS PAGE
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ......coiiiiiiiieiee sttt et es 2
ANNOUNCEMENTS ... oottt ettt sttt ettt et e et e saeeseeseesseensesneenees 2
PUBLIC COMMENTS ...ttt ettt sttt ettt sae e e e s enteeneenees 2
CONSENT CALENDAR
A-01. Minutes of September 24, 2019 .......oooiiieieeeeeeeeee e e e 2
A-02. PMTT11-002 & PMTT11-003 Time EXtensions ..........ccccceeeeerieevieneenienienieeieeneenees 3
PUBLIC HEARINGS
B. File NO. PHP19-004 ......oouioieeeeeee ettt s 3
C. File NO. PHP19-007......oiiieieieeeeeee ettt s 3
D. File NO. PHP19-008 ......ccuiiieieeieeee ettt s 3
E. File NO. PHPTO-010 ..cveiiieiiee ettt 3
MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION........cooiiiiiiiieieeieneee e 4
DIRECTOR’S REPORT ..ottt sttt ettt nes 5
ADJOURNMENT ettt sttt et a ettt esae e eneenseenbeeneenees 5
-1-

Item A-01-10f 5



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING

REGULAR MEETING:

COMMISSIONERS
Present:

Absent:

OTHERS PRESENT:

MINUTES

October 22, 2019

City Hall, 303 East B Street
Called to order by Chairman Willoughby at 6:30 PM

Chairman Willoughby, Vice-Chairman DeDiemar, Downs, Gage,
Gregorek, Reyes, and Ricci

None

Assistant Planning Director Zeledon, City Attorney Graham,
Senior Planner D. Ayala, Associate Planner Antuna,
Transportation Manager Bautista, and Planning Secretary
Berendsen

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Ricci.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Zeledon stated Items B-E will be taken as one item.

Mr. Gage mentioned that the Art Festival and the Cemetery Tour were both successful events the
previous weekend. He stated that the Cemetery Tour started 10 years ago, at the suggestion of
Mr. Richard Delman and that it has been mentioned that going forward it will be called the
Richard Delman Memorial Cemetery Tour. He stated he had attended the open house at the
Esperanza Lennar 55+ community and thanked staff for the work they put into it and that it was a

great quality project.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No one responded from the audience.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of September 24, 2019, approved as

written.

Item A-01 -2 of 5



A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP TIME
EXTENTIONS FOR FILE NOS. PMTT11-003 (TTM 18026) and PMTT11-002
(TTM 18027): A Time Extension of the expiration date of approval for: 1) Tentative
Tract Map 18026 to subdivide 29 acres of land into 102 numbered lots and 10 letters
within Planning Area 4 of the West Haven Specific Plan, located at the northwest corner
of Haven Avenue and Chino Avenue; and 2) Tentative Tract Map 18027 to subdivide 29
acres of land into 94 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots within Planning Area 8 of the West
Haven Specific Plan, located at the northwest corner of Haven Avenue and Schaefer
Avenue. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with West Haven Specific Plan (PSP03-006) for which an EIR (SCH#
2004071095), was certified by the City Council on July 17, 2007. This application
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. (APNs: 0218-151-11 and 0218-
151-38) Submitted by Stratham West Haven. City Council action is required.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

It was moved by Downs, to approve the Consent Calendar including the
Planning Commission Minutes of September 24, 2019, as written, and to
recommend approval of the Time Extensions for File Nos. PMTTI11-002 and
PMTTI11-003. The motion was carried 7 to 0, with Mr. Willoughby abstaining
from the minutes vote as he was not present at the meeting.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

B. MILLS ACT CONTRACT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-004: A Mills Act
Contract for a 2,040 square foot Usonian style single-family residence, designated Local
Landmark No. 82 known as the Robert N. Williams House, located at 205 East Sixth
Street within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential-2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district.
The Contract is not considered a project pursuant to Section 21065 of the CEQA
Guidelines. (APN: 1047-241-03) submitted by Darius Long. City Council action is
required.

C. MILLS ACT CONTRACT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-007: A Mills Act
Contract for a 3,350 square foot Mediterranean Revival style single-family residence, a
Contributor within the Armsley Square Historic District known as the Stephen A. Craig
House, located at 408 West Armsley Square within the RE-4 (Residential Estate-2.1 to
4.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The Contract is not considered a project pursuant to Section
21065 of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1047-341-09) submitted by Jason and Maria
Lawliss. City Council action is required.

D. MILLS ACT CONTRACT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-008: A Mills Act
Contract for a 1,242 square foot Mediterranean Revival style single-family residence, a
Contributor within the Rosewood Court Historic District known as the C.E. Pratt House,
located at 130 East J Street within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential-2.1 to 5.0
DU/Acre) zoning district. The Contract is not considered a project pursuant to Section
21065 of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-071-05) submitted by Peter Bugbee. City
Council action is required.

E. MILLS ACT CONTRACT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-010: A Mills Act

-3-
ltem A-01 -3 of 5



Contract for a 3,652 square foot American Foursquare style single-family residence, a
Contributor within the Euclid Avenue Historic District and Local Landmark No. 40
known as the Captain John P. Robertson House, located at 907 North Euclid Avenue
within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential-2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) and EA (Euclid Avenue
Overlay) zoning districts. The Contract is not considered a project pursuant to Section
21065 of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-043-13) submitted by John Aylyng and
Dianne Fife. City Council action is required.

Associate Planner Antuna, presented the staff report. She described the Mills Act Contract
program and the properties that are eligible and what the incentives are given for. She described
each property, the improvements being made, the estimated savings and reduction in city
revenue over 10 years. She stated that staff is recommending the Planning Commission
recommend approval of File Nos. PHP19-004, PHP19-007, PHP19-008 and PHP19-010,
pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject
to the conditions of approval.

Mr. Downs wanted to know what “Usonian” referred to.
Ms. Antuna stated it is an architectural style.

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

No one responded.

As there was no one wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public testimony

Mr. Gage stated what a great inventory of homes being proposed and he is glad people are
putting money into these homes, as there is way more benefit to the city than the monetary value,
as these homes get preserved rather than going into disrepair.

Mr. Willoughby thanked staff for their work on the historic properties.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

It was moved by Downs, seconded by Gage, to recommend adoption of a
resolution to approve the Mills Act Contracts, File Nos. PHP19-004, PHP19-
007, PHP19-008 and PHP19-010, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call
vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci and Willoughby;
NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, none. The motion was carried 7 to 0.

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Old Business Reports From Subcommittees

Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee met on October 10, 2019.
e Discussed Mills Act Contracts
e Discussed the Festival of Arts and Cemetery tour.

Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.

4-

Item A-01 -4 of 5



Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
New Business

Mr. Gage stated that Ontario Heritage put on a show, at the cemetery, for the Upland sister city
visitors from Mildura, Australia. He stated that the visitors talked about another city, Renmark,
Australia, that was also founded by the Chaffey Brothers and has a Euclid corridor like Ontario.
He wanted to know what the process is to recommend Renmark, Australia, to be a sister city for
Ontario.

Mr. Zeledon stated that City Council would need to approve that and that Ontario already has a
sister city in Mexico.

NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION

Mr. Zeledon stated the presentation to the Ontario Mills entrance will be coming in November.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Zeledon stated the Monthly Activity Reports are in their packets.

ADJOURNMENT

Gregorek motioned to adjourn, passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 6:58 PM.

Secretary Pro Tempore

Chairman, Planning Commission

Item A-01-50f 5



PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

November 26, 2019

FILE NO.: PDEV19-039

SUBJECT: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family homes on
11.24 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace
Avenue, within the Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of
the Subarea 29 Specific Plan; (APN: 0218-014-25) submitted by Taylor Morrison of
California, LLC.

PROPERTY OWNER: Taylor Morrison of California, LLC.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission consider and approve File
No. PDEV19-039 pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and
attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached
departmental reports.

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of 11.24 acres of land located at the
southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within Planning Area 20
(Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, and is depicted in
Figure 1: Project Location, below. The property to the north of the project site consists of
a mix of vacant land and active farmland and is located within the Open Space — Parkland
land use district of the Grand Park
Specific Plan. The property to the south of
the project site is currently under
construction with single-family residential
units and is located within Planning Area
19 (Lane-Loaded 5-8 du/ac) of the
Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The property to
the east of the project site is currently
under construction with single-family
residential units and is located within
Planning Area 21 (Conventional Medium
Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the Subarea 29 Specific
Plan. The property to the west of the
project site is currently under construction
with single-family residential units and is
located within Planning Area 3 of the
Subarea 29 Specific Plan.

Figure 1: Project Location

Case Planner; Alexis Yaughn Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director ( / DAB 11/18/2019 | Approve |Recommend
Approval; M\ PC 11/26/2019 Final
Submittal Date] July 5, 2019 " | cc

ltem A-02 - 1 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

PROJECT ANALYSIS:

[1] Background — The Subarea 29 Specific Plan and related Environmental Impact
Report (EIR; State Clearinghouse No. 2004011009) were approved by the City Council
on October 17, 2006. The Specific Plan established the land use designations,
development standards, and design guidelines, which includes the potential development
of 2,470 dwelling units and up to 87,000 square feet of commercial uses for the Specific
Plan Area.

On January 23, 2007, the Planning Commission approved Tentative Tract Map No. 18065
(File No. PMTT06-011), which subdivided the project site into 67 numbered lots (Planning
Area PA20 — Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac), and two lettered lots containing a
pocket park and a paseo (See Exhibit B: Site Plan). The lots range in size from 4,250 to
9,094 square feet, with an average lot size of 4,554 square feet.

On July 5, 2019, the Applicant submitted the subject Development Plan application to
facilitate the development of Tract 18065.

On November 18, 2019, the Development Advisory Board held a public hearing on the
subject project, and recommended approval to the Planning Commission.

[2] Site Design/Building Layout — The project proposes the development of 67 single-
family homes within Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The homes are
all oriented toward the street (architectural forward). Three, two-story floor plans are
proposed, each with three elevations per plan (see Exhibit D—Landscape Plan and
Typical Plotting and Exhibit E—Sample Floor Plan). The plans include the following:

e Plan 1: 2,717 square feet of living space, 458 square-foot garage, 3 bedrooms
with 2 optional loft/den or bedroom areas, and 2.5 bathrooms.

e Plan 2: 2,934 square feet of living space, 450 square-foot garage, 3 bedrooms
with 2 optional loft/den or bedroom areas, and 2.5 bathrooms.

e Plan 3: 3,130 square feet of living space, 465 square-foot garage, 4 bedrooms
with 2 optional retreat/loft or bedroom areas, and 4 bathrooms.

All plans incorporate numerous design features and elements, such as single- and
second-story massing, varied entries, porches, second-floor laundry facilities, a great
room, and options for additional bedrooms. Additionally, all homes will have a 2-car
garage. To minimize visual impacts of garages, varied massing, second-story projections
over garages, varied rooflines, and varied depths from the front face of the home or porch
will be provided.

[3] Site Access/Circulation — The project site will have primary access from Parkview
Avenue, which runs north-south along the western frontage of the project site, and from
Travertine Street, which runs west-east along the southern frontage (see Exhibit B—Site

Page 2 of 22

ltem A-02 - 2 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Plan, attached). The developer is responsible for the construction of the remaining street
improvements along Parkplace Avenue and all interior neighborhood streets necessary
to serve the project.

[4] Parking — The proposed conventional single-family homes will provide an
enclosed two-car garage and a standard two-car driveway, which meets the Subarea 29
Specific Plan and Development Code parking requirements. Additionally, the project will
provide approximately 86 on-street parking spaces for visitors. As demonstrated within
Table 1: Summary of Parking Analysis Per Unit, below, the parking analysis concluded
that an average of 5.28 parking spaces will be provided per unit, which should be more
than adequate to accommodate both resident and visitor parking.

Table 1: Summary of Parking Analysis Per Unit

product | Member | Sarese | 'paring | stoot | spaces | RO |
Spaces Parking | Provided
SF Conventional 67 2 2 86 354 2 per unit
Total 67 134 134 86 354 134 total +220
5.28 spaces per unit

[5] Architecture — The project proposes to utilize three architectural styles, including
Spanish Colonial, Cottage, and Farmhouse. The architectural styles complement each
other through the overall massing, scale, proportions, details, and color schemes. The
proposed home designs are consistent with the design guidelines of the Subarea 29
Specific Plan.

The architectural styles proposed will include the following features (see Exhibit C—
Exterior Elevations, attached):

e Spanish Colonial: Varying gable, hipped, and shed roofs with “S” roof tiles; stucco
exteriors; arched entry openings; shutters; wrought iron and tile detailing; and pot
shelves.

o Cottage: Varying gable, hipped, and shed roofs with flat concrete roof tiles; stucco
exteriors with siding at gable ends, arched entry openings, and brick trim and
veneers; decorative corbels and outlookers; and decorative box bay windows.

e Farmhouse: Varying gable, hipped, and shed roofs with concrete flat roof tiles;
stucco exteriors with vertical and horizontal wood siding details; enhanced window
trim details; and outlookers.

Page 3 of 22

ltem A-02 - 3 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

[6] Landscaping — The Development Plan features sidewalks separated by
landscaped parkways, which provide visual interest and promotes pedestrian mobility. All
homes will be provided with front yard landscaping (lawn, shrubs, and trees) and an
automatic irrigation system to be installed by the developer. The homeowner will be
responsible for front, side, and rear yard landscaping maintenance, and for side and rear
landscape improvements. The homeowners association will be responsible for the
maintenance of landscaping and irrigation within all common areas and parkways of all
local streets (See Exhibit D: Landscape Plan and Typical Plotting).

Decorative 6-foot high, split-face block walls with decorative split-face pilasters are
proposed for all public-facing front, side, and rear walls. The interior property line privacy
fencing will consist of a 6-foot high colored masonry block, matching the perimeter wall
color.

The approved Tentative Tract Map (TM 18065) facilitated the construction of a pocket
park for the neighborhood, along with sidewalks, parkways, and a paseo within the Tract.
TOP Policy PR1-1 requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of private
park per 1,000 residents. The proposed project is required to provide a 0.51-acre park to
meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To satisfy the requirement, the
applicant is constructing a 0.53-acre passive pocket park and 0.064-acre paseo. The
passive park includes benches and a meandering sidewalk, as well as open field area
and shade trees.

The Subarea 29 Specific Plan area contains a variety of park options for the greater
neighborhood, including an assortment of active and passive recreational parks, as well
as a clubhouse. Overall, the Subarea 29 Specific Plan provides over 17 acres of parkland
spread throughout approximately 14 neighborhood parks. The residents will have access
to the neighborhood park system, the main public park and clubhouse (Celebration Park),
in addition to the pedestrian corridors which connect the neighborhoods to the schools,
parks, and regional trail system (See Exhibit F—Park Place Park Overview for the
conceptual siting of schools, trails, and park areas).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are
as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

= Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy
= QOperate in a Businesslike Manner
= Focus Resources in Ontario’s Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods

Page 4 of 22

ltem A-02 - 4 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

= Ensure the Development of a Well Planned, Balanced, and Self-Sustaining
Community in the New Model Colony

[2] Vision.
Distinctive Development:
= Commercial and Residential Development

» Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California.

[3] Governance.
Decision Making:

» Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices.

> G1-2 long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan)

Land Use Element:

= Goal LU1: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and price ranges
that match the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live and work in
Ontario and maintain a quality of life.

» LU1-1 Strategic Growth. We concentrate growth in strategic locations that
help create place and identity, maximize available and planned infrastructure, and foster
the development of transit.

» LU1-6 Complete Community: We incorporate a variety of land uses and
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers and visitors have a wide spectrum of
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario. (Refer to
Complete Community Section of Community Economics Element).

= Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses.

» LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character.

Page 5 of 22

ltem A-02 - 5 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Housing Element:

= Goal H2: Diversity of types of quality housing that are affordable to a range of
household income levels, accommodate changing demographics, and support and
reinforce the economic sustainability of Ontario.

» H2-4 New Model Colony. We support a premier lifestyle community in the
New Model Colony distinguished by diverse housing, highest design quality, and cohesive
and highly amenitized neighborhoods.

» H2-5 Housing Design. We require architectural excellence through
adherence to City design guidelines, thoughtful site planning, environmentally sustainable
practices and other best practices.

= Goal H5: A full range of housing types and community services that meet the
special housing needs for all individuals and families in Ontario, regardless of income
level, age or other status.

Community Economics Element:

= Goal CE1: A complete community that provides for all incomes and stages of
life.

» CE1-6 Diversity of Housing. We collaborate with residents, housing
providers and the development community to provide housing opportunities for every
stage of life; we plan for a variety of housing types and price points to support our
workforce, attract business and foster a balanced community.

= Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where
people choose to be.

» CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community.

» CE2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique,
functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the
region.

» CE2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of
equal or greater quality.

Page 6 of 22

ltem A-02 - 6 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

» CEZ2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep,
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property
protects property values.

Safety Element:

= Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards.

» S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading.

Community Design Element:

= Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among
residents, visitors, and businesses.

» CD1-1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of
our existing viable neighborhoods.

» CD1-2 Growth Areas. We require development in growth areas to be
distinctive and unique places within which there are cohesive design themes.

= Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces,
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct.

» CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to
convey visual interest and character through:

e Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and
proportion;

e A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting;
and

e Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality,
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style.

» CD2-2 Neighborhood Design. We create distinct residential neighborhoods
that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction,
and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as:

Page 7 of 22

Item A-02 - 7 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

e A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and
safety;

e Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of
housing types;

e Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while
maintaining acceptable fire protection and traffic flows;

e Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the
visual and physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor
living room”), as appropriate; and

e Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.

» CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural
systems, building materials and construction techniques.

» CD2-8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways,
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintenance of visibility and accessibility, and
use of lighting.

» CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits.

» CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all
development plans and permits.

HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project
site is one of the properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix,
and the proposed project is consistent with the number of dwelling units (67 of 2,293
proposed units) and density (5.9 du/ac) specified in the Available Land Inventory.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. The project site is also located within
the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set

Page 8 of 22

ltem A-02 - 8 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the
California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The environmental impacts of this project were previously
reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental
Impact Report (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City Council on October 17,
2006. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously
adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval and are incorporated
herein by this reference.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports.

Page 9 of 22

ltem A-02 - 9 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report

File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

TECHNICAL APPENDIX:

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use:

Existing Land Use Gene_ral Rlan Zoning Designation | Specific Plan Land Use
Designation
. Low Density (2.1-5 Subarea 29 Specific PA20 (Conventional
S gl CEd du/ac) Plan Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac)
North Farmland and Vacant | Open Space - Parkland Clrztng PFz)alraanpemﬁc The Great Park
Single-Family Low Density (2.1-5 Subarea 29 Specific |PA19 (Lane Loaded 5-8
South . .
Residential du/ac) Plan du/ac)
East Single-Family Low Density (2.1-5 Subarea 29 Specific PA21 (Conventional
Residential du/ac) Plan Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac)
West Single-Family Low Density (2.1-5 Subarea 29 Specific PA3 (Conventional
Residential du/ac) Plan Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac)
General Site & Building Statistics
. , . Meets
Item Required Min./Max. Provided (Ranges) Y/N
Maximum coverage (in %): 50 23 -47 Y
Minimum lot size (in SF): 4,000 SF 4,186 — 8,778 SF Y
Front yard setback (in FT): 12 12 Y
Side yard setback (in FT): 5 5 Y
Rear yard setback (in FT): 15 15 Y
Maximum height (in FT): 35 30-1” Y

Page 10 of 22

Iltem A-02 - 10 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

EUCALYPTUS AVENUE &

I.I.I
=
2

E

§ <
Ll
Q
3
a

X
o

Page 11 of 22

Item A-02 - 11 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN

EUCALYFTUS AVENUE
L

| i
wi A - .-. w
| ) - : J 1t
ST [ )
%! | :., q - e L__,[ ._'__=_|_r ;._'_, Ig
= EEERE
ILPETH g *'_’_'{'_"' %%L'
| | '_;'_—i_______._-meaasul.r._._stéﬁsr__\.q
i : Y |
|
|
|
|

Page 12 of 22

Item A-02 - 12 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

Ef 019 ke L o semorect e Peteraa andsone drrwngs or sl e ond st ooatoks

"A - SPANISH COLONIAL

< e ———

¥ Kz L Crook Archiect inG. Reder fo iondicope growings for ol e, onad SWUD Bootons @Mlucwu. ook Arontect. Ing. Feferio lonascape drowngs for woll, mee. and e oo

"B" - COTTAGE "C" - FARMHOUSE

PLAN 1

Page 13 of 22

Iltem A-02 - 13 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CONTINUED)

MATERIALS LEGEND
{WHERE DICCHRS)

it RIGHT

FRAULATED LAY DETAL
SO0 W 1420 FINEH
L MADED LNES

T

COLOR SCHEME 1

PLAMN 1 "A"
SPANISH COLONIAL ELEVATION

REAR

LEFT

Page 14 of 22

ltem A-02 - 14 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CONTINUED)

RIGHT

REAR HELOREAIEME ] REAR AT OFTIOMAL CALIFORMIA ROOM

PLAN 1 “A"
SPANISH COLONIAL ENHANCED ELEVATION

Page 15 of 22

Item A-02 - 15 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CONTINUED)

(Bl a9 Kwin L. Crost Archiect, Bkt inhczpe s for wail, tres, ord vt ocaboh

"A" - SPANISH COLONIAL

' '
(E}2017 Diin L Crosk Archilect, Ine. Balic 1o landicops arowings o wal, Fee, a0 s bealion

"B" - COTTAGE "C" - FARMHOUSE

'
IOTP Kawifi L Crost Archlect, Ine. Db 1 kSt e v Fof v, e, S5 sl ISeaRan

PLAN 2
FRONT ELEVATIONS o

Page 16 of 22

Iltem A-02 - 16 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CONTINUED)

MATERIALS LEGEND

WHERE DCCHE)

(1=l CORETE FLAT ILE

ROOF EXTEMEOM:
-] FABCT

FRONT it

AELE:

WAL

WO

(LT

RIGHT

TROHT DOCR:
GARAMGE OO METAL SECTHCHAL W/ BRCE HEADER
WIRITRTW B SRULATID WoO0D

COLOR SCHEME 5
REAR

PLAN 2 “B" o
COTTAGE ELEVATION 2

LEFT

Page 17 of 22

Item A-02 - 17 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CONTINUED)

& 20i# nevin L. Croox amnbea. inc. Relerso ONasIoDe drawings for WL Tee; and 5D KoaTions

"A" - SPANISH COLONIAL

' »
{E)3017 Daevin L. Cooat Archiect, Inc Reder fo Gnchcops drowings forwal bee, ond st ocatfom

"B" - COTTAGE "C" - FARMHOUSE

1 1
(E)3075 kewin L. Crock Aecivisct, Inc e io Gndscape dawings or woll, e, and thnt lecakons

PLAN 3
FROMT ELEVATIONS d

Page 18 of 22

Iltem A-02 - 18 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CONTINUED)

S

MATERIALS LEGEND
£ 201 Eewin L. Crook Achifect, nc Fwder It kan chcope drawings 1o wal, Frew. ond Fnib oo o R CCOmE
ROCE CONCRETE FLATTLE
ROOF EXFENBON  WOOD GORBEL! KNEE BRAGE
FASCIA; 08 W00
FRONT ) g RIGHT
GABLE BOARD AND BATIERE Wi SMULATED WOIO0 OO RBSL
WAL STUCOD WY | 4/20 FINN, LAF SIDMG
WINDOWS: WINYL WITH DPMDED LITES
TRk STUCCD OVER RIGID FOAM
ENTRY/ PORCH TBME SIALLATED WOOD GRAN
SHIFTERS SRAULATED WEOD GRAN
POTSHELF: SRALILATFD WHSOD DR AN
FRONT DOGR: FEER GLASS
GARAGEDOOR:  METAL SECTIONAL
FORCH. WOOD POIT, BEAM AND BRACE
COLOR SCHEME &
REAR LEFT
PLAN 3 "C"
| m—
FARMHOUSE ELEVATION a oz

Page 19 of 22

Iltem A-02 - 19 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN AND TYPICAL PLOTTING

ENLARGEMENT
(TYPICAL CORNER LOT)
3l I . L T —
2 1T hi 'I. : . -.."-i'.- ! ; ’l" T
T :[ |. H
Community T : E
wal i

Camimunily
Filaster

*— Communily
Wal

SCALE NTS @

Page 20 of 22

Iltem A-02 - 20 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit E—SAMPLE FLOOR PLAN

85'-0
/s
—

OPT. BEDRM. 5 AT LOFT

QFT. OFFICE AT NOOK
& SUPER PANIRY

4

PLAM 2
AREA TABULATION
CONDMOMED SPACE

1
!

£
ke
aa

RIRE

+ LR Wl FIRST FLOOR AREA
50'_0" SECOMD FLOOR ARER
TOTAL DWELLING

R O CHTIOMED SEACE

OPT. BEDRM. 4 AT DEN
& OFT.BATH 3 AT PWDR. SECOND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN i
PLAN 2 "A"

PORCH "™
GFT. CALIFDRM A B,
3 BEDROOM, 2.5 BATH, 2 CAR GARAGE, NOOK, DEN, LOFT, OPT. BEDROOM 4, OPFT. BEDROOM 5, OFT. OFFICE, OPT. CALIFORMNIA RM. o

[
=
b=
3

Froad
BEEBE | 8
SRR

.

)
-
o
s

Page 21 of 22

ltem A-02 - 21 of 53



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-039
November 26, 2019

Exhibit F—PARK PLACE PARK OVERVIEW

PROJECT SITE

PARK PLACE

ONTARIO. CALIFORNIA

Page 22 of 22

Item A-02 - 22 of 53



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV19-039, A
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 67 SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES
ON 11.24 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF EUCALYPTUS AVENUE AND PARKPLACE AVENUE, WITHIN THE
CONVENTIONAL MEDIUM LOT RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT OF PLANNING
AREA 20 OF THE SUBAREA 29 SPECIFIC PLAN, AND MAKING
FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: 0218-014-25.

WHEREAS, Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. ("Applicant") has filed an
Application for the approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV19-039, as described
in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 11.24 acres of land generally located at the
southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional
Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, and
is presently rough graded; and

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the project site consists of a mix of vacant
land and active farmland, and is located within the Open Space — Parkland land use
district of the Grand Park Specific Plan. The property to the south of the project site is
currently under construction with single-family residential units and is located within
Planning Area 19 (Lane-Loaded 5-8 du/ac) of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The property
to the east of the project site is currently under construction with single-family residential
units and is located within Planning Area 21 (Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the
Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The property to the west of the project site is currently under
construction with single-family residential units, and is located within Planning Area 3 of
the Subarea 29 Specific Plan; and

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2007, the Planning Commission approved Tentative
Tract Map No. 18065 (File No. PMTT06-011), which subdivided the project site into 67
numbered lots (Planning Area PA20 — Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac), and two
lettered lots containing a pocket park and a paseo (See Exhibit B: Site Plan). The lots
range in size from 4,250 to 9,094 square feet, with an average lot size of 4,554 square
feet; and

WHEREAS, the project proposes the development of 67 single-family homes,

which are consistent with the development standards of the Conventional Medium Lot
residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan; and

ltem A-02 - 23 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 2

WHEREAS, three floor plans are proposed with three architectural styles (Spanish
Colonial, Cottage, and Farmhouse) per plan for the single-family conventional homes;
and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act — Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq. — (hereinafter referred to
as "CEQA") and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental
impacts; and

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report
(SCH# 2004011009) was certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006 (hereinafter
referred to as “Certified EIR”), and this Application introduces no new significant
environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject
Application; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the
Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight
impacts of current and future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

Item A-02 - 24 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 3

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the Development Advisory Board of the City
of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on
that date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB19-039, recommending the Planning
Commission approve the Application; and

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that
date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered
the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and supporting documentation.
Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR and
supporting documentation, the Planning Commission finds as follows:

(1)  The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with File No. PSP03-003, the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact
Report (SCH# 2004011009), certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006.

(2)  The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of
the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and

(3)  The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and
the Guidelines promulgated thereunder; and

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the
Planning Commission; and

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation
measures previously adopted with the Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not
Required. Based on the information presented to the Planning Commission, and the
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental certified Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR is
not required for the Project, as the Project:

ltem A-02 - 25 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 4

(1)  Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(@)  The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b)  Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in
the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the
environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based
on the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation,
at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element
of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one
of the properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the
proposed project is consistent with the number of dwelling units (67 of 2,293 proposed
units) and density (5.9 du/ac) specified in the Available Land Inventory.

SECTION 4. Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual

ltem A-02 - 26 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 5

development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise,
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria
(ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table
2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the
PLANNING COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the
policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 4, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is
located within the Low-Density Residential (2.1-5 du/ac) land use district of the Policy
Plan Land Use Map, and Planning Area 20 (Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the
Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under which the
proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies,
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities
components of The Ontario Plan; and

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining
sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views,
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in
which the site is located. The Project has been designed consistent with the
requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and Planning Area 20
(Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, including
standards relative to the particular land use proposed (single-family residential), as-well-
as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street
parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and
obstructions. The site is physically suitable for the proposed development of 67 single-
family homes. The related Tentative Tract Map No. 18065 (File No. PMTT06-011), which

Item A-02 - 27 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 6

subdivided the land, was approved by the Planning Commission on January 23, 2007;
and

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have
been required of the proposed project. The Development Advisory Board has required
certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been
established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan are
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare;
[iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will
be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full
conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The
Ontario Plan, and the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The Development Plan will facilitate the
construction of 67 single-family homes. The environmental impacts of this project were
analyzed in the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH#
2004011009), which was certified by the City Council on April 21, 2015. All adopted
mitigation measures of the related EIR shall be a condition of project approval and are
incorporated herein by reference; and

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed
for consistency with the general development standards and guidelines of the Subarea
29 Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity,
building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and
guidelines specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (single-family
residential). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be
consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Subarea 29
Specific Plan.

SECTION 6: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the Planning Commission hereby
APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to each and every condition set
forth in the Department reports attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated
herein by this reference.

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and

hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to

ltem A-02 - 28 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 7

attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 9: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of November 2019, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Jim Willoughby
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director and
Secretary to the Planning Commission

ltem A-02 - 29 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 8

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. __ was duly
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular
meeting held on November 26, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Iltem A-02 - 30 of 53



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-039

November 26, 2019

Page 9

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PDEV19-039
Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page)

ltem A-02 - 31 of 53



City of Ontario Planning Departmen t

Planning Department

303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 = =
Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420

Meeting Date: November 26, 2019
File No: PDEV19-039
Related Files: PMTTO06-011 (TM 18065)

Project Description: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family homes on 11.24
acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the
Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (APN:
0218-014-25); submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC.

Prepared By: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner
Phone: 909.395.2416 (direct)
Email: avaughn@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

2.1 Time Limits.

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced,
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director.
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file

with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

ltem A-02 - 32 of 53



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-039
Page 2 of 6

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction.

(d) The development of this project shall conform to the City’s Development Code and
the regulations of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan.

(e) All applicable conditions of approval of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (File No.
PSP03-003) shall apply to this Development Plan.

(f) All applicable conditions of approval of the related TT18065 (File No. PMTTO06-
011) shall apply.

2.3 Landscaping.

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping).

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Division.

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been
approved by the Landscape Planning Division.

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement
of the changes.

(e) Each single-family dwelling/lot shall be provided with front yard landscaping and a
permanent automatic irrigation in the front yard of each lot. At a minimum, a seeded turf lawn or
appropriately landscaped drought-tolerant plantings, appropriate shrubs and trees, and an automatic
irrigation system shall be provided. Furthermore, a variety of typical landscape designs shall be provided
for use on each lot within the subdivision.

(f) The owner or assigns of the project site shall be responsible for the maintenance
of the project site in good condition, so as to present a healthy, neat, and orderly landscape area.

(9) Any removal of mature landscaping shall require the replacement of such with
landscaping of similar size and maturity.

(h) Irrigation systems shall be constantly maintained to eliminate wastewater due to
loss of heads, broken pipes or misadjusted nozzles.

24 Walls and Fences.

(a) All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of Ontario
Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).

(b) Decorative 6-foot high masonry block walls shall be constructed at the following
locations (per approved site plan):
(i) Rear and interior side property lines (walls not exposed to public view may
be constructed of tan precision block); and
(ii) Side property line wall returns to the dwelling unit, with appropriate gates.

Iltem A-02 - 33 of 53



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-039
Page 3 of 6

(c) Walls located within a required front yard setback shall be reduced to 3 feet in
height. On any lots that front onto the park/paseos, front yard walls or hedgerows may not exceed a height
of 3 feet from finished grade.

(d) All new and existing walls shall be provided with a decorative cap. The use of a
mortar and/or metal flashing cap shall not be permitted.

(e) The height of a wall or fence shall be measured from the highest point of the natural
ground or finished grade at the base of the fence or wall to the top of the fence or wall above the same
base point.

(f) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a Wall Plan shall be reviewed and
approved by the Planning and Building Departments. The plans shall indicate materials, colors and height
of proposed and existing walls/fences and shall include a cross-section of walls/fences indicating adjacent
grades. Walls shall be designed as an integral part of the architecture for the development and shall be
constructed of tilt-up concrete, brick, or split-face or slump block.

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access.

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) Each single-family home shall maintain a two-car garage having a minimum clear
floor area of 20 feet wide x 20 feet deep.

(c) No recreational vehicle storage (RV) shall be permitted within in any front or street
side yard area. No RV street parking shall be permitted for a period of more than 72 consecutive hours.

(d) Driveway aprons shall be designed and constructed per City of Ontario Standards.
(e) The required number of off-street parking spaces shall be provided at the time of

site and/or building occupancy. All parking spaces shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of
the building or use.

2.6 Site Lighting.

(a) Site lighting shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning and Police
Departments prior to the issuance of building permits.

(b) Along pedestrian movement corridors such as parks and paseos, the use of low-
mounted bollard light standards, which reinforce pedestrian scale, shall be used. Steps, ramps, and
seatwalls shall be illuminated with built-in light fixtures.

2.7 Mechanical Equipment.

(a) All exterior mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and all
appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view and ground-mounted within the side
or rear yard area.

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,

HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls.

ltem A-02 - 34 of 53



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-039
Page 4 of 6

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings).

29 Signs. All Project signage, such as entry monumentation, shall comply with the
requirements of Ontario Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations) and the Subarea 29 Specific
Plan.

(a) Off-Site Subdivision Signs:

(i) The City Council has authorized the Baldy View Chapter of the Building
Industry Association to manage a standardized off-site directional sign program on a non-profit basis. The
program uses uniform sign structures and individual identification and directional signs for residential
development. No other off-site signage is authorized. (For additional information, contact the Baldy View
Chapter BIA at (909) 945-1884.)

2.10  Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise).

2.1 Architectural Treatment.

(a) Exterior building elevations showing wall materials, roof types, exterior colors and
decorative materials, and appropriate vertical dimensions shall be included in the development construction
drawings.

(b) Front elevation (wainscot, trim, siding, veneer) materials shall wrap around to the
left and right elevations and terminate at a logical and appropriate point (return wall or inside corner, as
applicable).

(c) Cultured, precast, or fabricated stone products shall be constructed of an integral
color material.

212 Graffiti Removal.

(a) Owners to remove graffiti. Conditions, covenants and restrictions, or separate
covenants recorded against individual lots, prior to resale of same, which covenants shall run with the land
and shall be for the benefit of the City, in a form satisfactory to the City, that the owner of the lots shall
remove any graffiti placed thereon within 7 days after notice thereof.

213 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance
Agreements.

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project in conjunction with the Final Map and
shall be recorded prior to the issuance of a building permit.

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved
by the City.

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels.
(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common
maintenance of:
(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas;

Iltem A-02 - 35 of 53



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-039
Page 5 of 6

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the
project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02;

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and

(iv) Utility and drainage easements.

(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to
enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area.

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R
provisions.

(9) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred.

214 Disclosure Statements.

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that:

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may
be more severely impacted in the future.
(i) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses

and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals.
(i) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County
Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future.
(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s)
will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district.

215 Environmental Review.

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction
with File No. PSP03-003, the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report
(SCH#2004011009) was previously certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. This application
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in
situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted
mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference.

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures
implemented.

ltem A-02 - 36 of 53



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-039
Page 6 of 6

2.16 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario
shall cooperate fully in the defense.

217  Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

(b) After the Project’'s entittement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established
by resolution of the City Council.

2.18 Additional Requirements.

(a) The pocket park and paseo shall be constructed prior to the issuance of the
certificate of occupancy of the 34th home.

(b) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the size and
location of mailboxes for this project. The location of the mailboxes shall be submitted to the Planning
Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.

(c) The applicant (Developer) shall be responsible for providing fiber to each home
per City requirements and standards.

(d) Final architecture for the proposed project shall be reviewed and approved by the
Planning Department in the construction document process prior to the issuance of building permits.

Item A-02 - 37 of 53



ad. CITY OF ONTARIO

EI1IYY o¢F

ONTARI MEMORANDUM

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
(Environmental Section, Information Technology & Management Services Department, Ontario Municipal Utilities
Company and Traffic & Transportation Division Conditions incorporated)

DATE: October 29, 2019
PROJECT: PDEV19-039; Development Plan to construct 67 single-family homes

(Lewis Homes) on 11.23 acres of land within Planning Area 20 of the
Subarea 29 Specific Plan (Related File TM-18065)

APN: 0218-014-25

LOCATION: Eucalyptus and Parkplace Avenues (SEC)

PROJECT ENGINEER:  Jesus Plasencia, Senior Associate Civil Engineer (909) 395-2128
PROJECT PLANNER: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner (909) 395-2416

The following items are the Conditions of Approval for the subject project:

1. Project shall comply with the requirements as set forth in the Amendment to the Standard
Conditions of Approval for New Development Projects adopted by the City Council
(Resolution No. 2017-027) on April 18, 2017.

2. Allthe required improvements for this tract shall be subject to completion of the required public
improvements including public utilities beyond the tract limits as specified in the Subarea 29
Specific Plan, the Development Agreement, and the Conditions of Approval for TTM-17821
and 18065.

3. The Applicant/Developer shall pay all applicable Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the
Building Department.

4. The applicant/developer shall prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City
approved format and forms) with accompanying security as required.

5. The applicant/developer shall provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents
(Certificate of Net MDD Auwvailability) prior to final subdivision map approval.

6. For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the
specified boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http://tceplumecleanup.com/), the
property developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE)
Plume “Disclosure Letter”. Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real
Estate Transfer Disclosure requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This

1of 2

Item A-02 - 38 of 53



Project File No. PDEV19-039
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 10/29/19

may include notifications in the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other
documents related to property transfer and disclosures. Additional information on the plume
is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board at
hitp.//geotracker.waterboards.ca.goviprofile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

7. Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted,
utilizing the cwrrent San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at:
http://www.sbeounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.

8. Pedestrian access to Parkplace and/or Celebration Avenue shall be provided for occupied
homes throughout the duration of project construction.

9. Design and construct fiber optic system to provide access to the City’s conduit and fiber optic
system per the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan. Building entrance conduits shall start from the
closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along the project frontage in the ROW and shall
terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building. Conduit infrastructure shall
interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic conduit system at the
nearest OntarioNet hand hole. Refer to the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout
guidelines. Submit a Fiber Optic Plan for City review and approval. Contact the Information
Technology Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement.

10. As part of the submittal package with the precise grading plans, provide a Utilities Systems
Map that shows all existing and proposed Utilities (Potable Water, Recycled Water, Sewer,
Storm Drain, and other utilities) including each of the City’s public utilities’ points of
connection to the existing systems. See attached “Utilities Systems Map Requirements”
document for details and requirements.

11. Provide a Solid Waste Handling Plan (SWHP) Sheet that complies with the “Solid Waste
Handling Plan Requirements” as part of the submittal package with the precise grading plans
(see attachment).

Bryan LiLrléy, PE. " Date ngmon' Lec, P.E. Date

Principal Engineer Assistant City Engineer

2of 2

Item A-02 - 39 of 53



zs
nm

\If’;’
nE=E°
O._icz
N
>
Zq-
-G—FUQ
oo
e

SOLID WASTE HANDLING PLAN (SWHP) REQUIREMENTS:

The SWHP shall meet, at a minimum, the following requirements:

1. SWHP Content and Format: The Solid Waste Handling Plan shall demonstrate compliance with the Services
Standards in the City’s Solid Waste Planning Manual (availabie online at: http://www.ontarioca.gov/qovernment-
departments-municipal-utilities-company/integrated-waste) and shall contain, at a minimum, the following
elements:

a. Astatement identifying the Service Requirements being used (e.g. Single Family Detached with automated
cans, Multi-family/ Commercial/industrial with bins and enclosures, etc.) and describing the solid waste
handling operation (for instance, will there be scouting services, efc.).

b. Atable utilizing the metrics on Page 8 of the Planning Manual and calculating the volume (gallons or cubic
yards), quantity, and service schedule for each type of can and bin required for each Service Category
(refuse, recycled, etc.).

c. An Engineering Site Plan drawn to scale that shows:
i. Minimum plan scale of scale of 1:100. Larger scales are preferred and should be scaled to fill the sheet
and show as much detail as clearly as possible on one sheet; multiple sheets may be used if entire
project area cannot fit on one sheet at 1:100 scale.

ii. A detail of the Solid Waste Vehicle with dimensions and annotation that states the minimum turning
radii and path of travel widths actually being used on the plan.

i. The Solid Waste Vehicle turming movements and paths of travel in each direction of travel and at all
intersections. All paths of travel shall be 15 feet wide minimum.

iv. All parking stalls and parallel parking spaces along all streets, alleys, or aisles.
v. Allproposed curbs and areas designated and striped/signed as “No Parking”.
vi. All proposed trash enclosures and the ADA paths of travel from the buildings.

vii. Adetail for each enclosure footprint delineating the number and size of the bins in order to demonstrate
that the enclosure is adequately sized and oriented, if enclosures and bins are proposed.

viii. All proposed locations of automated cans shown as a 26-inch by 26-inch can pad with 20-inches
between can pads and 40-inches between can pads and Parking spaces, mailboxes and other
obstructions (Can Collection Area). Can Collection Areas shall be located along designated paths of
travel and cannot be located along dead end alleys, motor courts, driveways, or private streets; use
multi-family standards for enclosures in these cases.

2. Can Collection Area (CCA) Locations: If CCAs are being proposed in lieu of bin enclosures for residential units
located along dead end alleys, motor courts, driveways, or private streets, then the SWHP shall comply with
the following requirements:

a. CCAs cannot conflict or compete with potential parking areas. Proposed CCAs must be designated as “no
parking” at all times with appropriate striping and signage.

b. Each residential unit must have a designated CCA and each CCA must delineated with markings so that
its location and the unit it is designated for are easily identifiable.

c. Solid Waste Handling Plan shall include a detail showing how the CCAs will be delineated and identifiable.

Iltem A-02 - 40 of 53



QIAR, . A ONITARID
46 2 4 “‘%MUNICIPAL
k“é:: - MUTILITIES

5 —_— C[OMPAN:

3. Private Third Party Hauler: If any Solid Waste Collections are going to be provided by a private third party

hauler, include on the SWHP:

a. A statement describing the service.

b. The names, contact information, and City of Ontario Commercial Recycler Collection Permit numbers of all
private third party haulers. Note: all private third party organics and recycling haulers must be formally
approved and permitted by the City of Ontario and meet City Code requirements, otherwise the City must
provide the collection services. If the third party haulers do not have a City of Ontario Commercial Recycler
Collection Permit, state if the third party hauler is charging a fee for service.

c. Show & label staging and collection areas for private third party haulers.

Item A-02 - 41 of 53



>

-jc”
=
-2
>
z:—]ﬂf
e L[]
>
i

~czo

o
=z

UTILITIES SYSTEMS MAP (USM) REQUIREMENTS:

The USM shall meet, at a minimum, the following requirements:

1. USM Content and Format: The Utilities Systems Maps shall show all existing and proposed Utilities (Potable
Water, Recycled Water, Sewer, Storm Drain, and other utilities) including each of the City’s public utilities’ points
of connection to the existing systems. This plan should include::

a. Fomnat: The Utilities Systems plan at a minimum 1:100 scale (or large engineering scale as
appropriate to show needed details) that clearly shows each existing and proposed utility and its
relative location. This includes property lines, right-of-way, public utility easements, but should not
include underlying existing topography, just proposed general grades. Use appropriate colors for each
Utility type: blue for Potable Water; purple for Recycled Water; green for Sanitary Sewer; yellow-
brown for storm Drain.

b. Services and Laterals: All Proposed Utility Service laterals for each parcel (potable water domestic,
recycled water irrigation, potable/recycled water for process water, and sewer) and any associated
appurtenances.

i. Meter and Backflow Device Locations: Show all proposed meters and required backflow
devices located per City Standards (Water Services and Meters; Backflow Devices). Meters
should be located in public rights-of-way or PUES; either at the R/W (or PUE) line for curb
adjacent sidewalks or at back of curb for all other cases. All water connections that serve
more than one residential unit are required to have a backflow device installed behind the
meter.

c. Cross Sections (if applicable, for project construction new public mains): Scaled cross sections
showing the utility layout on the Utility Systems Map (Utility Plan) for each public street, private street

and Public Utility Easement (PUE). The cross sections shall show the location and size of each utility
and annotate the property/ROW lines, the type of finished surface material, the distance of each utility
from centerline, the depth from finished surface to top of pipe, and the distance between utilities
(outside wall to outside wall).

d. Points of Connections: The locations of the points of connections to the existing utility systems, which
can include breaks between the map area and the connection points with descriptions of the pipe
size, type, use (pressure zone for water), and distance. An inset map can be used in addition to this
to help provide clarity.

e. Water Demand Table (if applicable, for projects within Ontario Ranch/NMC): Add a Water
Demand Table to the Utility Systems Map (Utility Plan) that calculates the project’s domestic water
use based on land use category (residential, commercial, and OS-R/Parks) and the number of units.
The table shall state demand in terms of Average Daily Demand (ADD from Table 4-8 of the Water
Master Plan) and Water Demand Equivalents (WDE / Net MDD from Exhibit C-2R of the NMC
Construction Agreement;, WDEs only if NMC). It should also identify the quantity of units in each
category and the specific lots that are included in that category. Please Note that master planned
lines are designed using gross acreage densities for all projected water use from residential
categories.

i. See Aftached Sheet for WDT Example.

f.  Phasing Plan (if applicable): As separate exhibits, provide a proposed phasing plan showing the
phasing of the infrastructure and the number and type (TOP land use category) of units in each
phase.

i. All phases must have: a connection to public sewer; a two separate looped connections to
the potable water system, where no one closing of a main segment resuits in any part of any
of any phase being without potable water.

S:\Utilities\20000 ENGINEERING\26000 LAND DEVELOPMENT\26200 NMC Policy & Related items\26240
Protocols\USM\USM_Requirements.v1.DRAFT.docx

Item A-02 - 42 of 53



Z
pug
-t MY O

>

ii. For public water mains in all phases, dead-end water lines (temporary or permanent) are
limited to serving 28 dwelling units or a maximum of 800 linear feet, whichever comes first.
Otherwise a looped water system with at least two (2) points of connection to the primary
public system is required.

g. Private Onsite Systems versus Public Systems within PUESs for Residential Tract Map Project(if
applicable): the following requirements apply when to delineating between Private and Public
Systems:

i. Current Standard Drawing No. 1304 remains applicable and minimum health separation must
be met.

ii. Public water mains will be accepted in longer alleys when it serves more than 6 meters.
iii. Public sewer mains will be accepted in alleys where the water is public.

iv. Public dead-end water mains will require a blow-off at the end and the alley should be
designed to accommodate runoff from required water main flushing operations.

v. Public sewer mains in alleys will require a manhole at both ends of the main.

vi. Public meters serving more than one single family residential unit are considered as
multifamily service with master meter and require: a backflow device after the meter, private
HOA sub-metering for each unit, and a separate Fire Service with DCDA to provide private
onsite fire service.

5:\Utilities\20000 ENGINEERING\26000 LAND DEVELOPMENT\26200 NMC Policy & Related Items\26240
Protocols\USM\USM_Requirements.v1.DRAFT.docx

Iltem A-02 - 43 of 53



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Henry Noh, Senior Planner
Planning Department

Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

July 17, 2019

SUBJECT: PDEV19-039 - A Development plan to construct 67 single-family homes

(Lewis Homes), on 11.23 acres of vacant land, located at the southeast
corner of Eucalyptus & Park Place Ave, within Planning Area 20 of
Subarea 29 Specific Plan. RELATED FILE: Previously Approved Tract
Map No. 18065

The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.

Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A.

B.

C.

2016 CBC Type of Construction: Type V
Type of Roof Materials: Ordinary

Ground Floor Area(s): Varies, approximate 1,500 Sq. Ft.

. Number of Stories: 2

Total Square Footage: Varies, approximate 3,000 Sq. Ft.

2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): Residential

ltem A-02 - 44 of 53



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

1.0 GENERAL

1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

X1 1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

i 2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

B 2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25°) inside and forty-five feet (45°) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

X 2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150°) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.

X 2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check.

X 2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-
led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.

<] 2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand
key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access. See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001.

X] 2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four
(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services.

IteAwAJ02 - 45 of 53



3.0 WATER SUPPLY

X] 3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code,
Appendix B, is 1500 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure.

<] 3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300”) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

X 3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

X] 4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements,
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties
and shall not cross any public street.

[X] 4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire
Department, prior to any work being done.

X1 4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not
necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES

X1 5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

X1 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of
the building. Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

X 5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the
California Building Code and the California Fire Code.

lterh K02 - 46 of 53



X 5.5 All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the
requirements of the California Building Code.

lterh X402 - 47 of 53



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Henry Noh, Senior Planner
FROM: Officer Emily Hernandez, Police Department
DATE: July 22, 2019

SUBJECT: PDEV19-039 - A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 67 SINGLE-
FAMILY HOMES LOACTED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OR
EUCALYPTUS AND PARK PLACE AVENUE.

The “*Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 for “Ontario
Ranch Projects™ apply. The applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions,
including but not limited to, the requirements listed below.

e Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas
used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor at the prescribed foot-
candle levels. Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department. Photometrics
shall include the types of fixtures proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the
vandal-resistant requirement. Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting.

o The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in
the Standard Conditions. This includes the provisions for perimeter lighting, site lighting,
fencing and/or uniformed security.

The Applicant is invited to contact Officer Emily Hernandez at (909)408-1755 with any
questions or concerns regarding these conditions.

ltem A-02 - 48 of 53



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Henry Noh
BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear
July 08, 2019
PDEV19-039

X The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

O
X

No comments

Report below.

Conditions of Approval

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply.

KS:1r

ltem A-02 - 49 of 53



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO.
D Scott Murphy, Development Director

Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director (Copy of memo only)
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division (Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development

Kevin Shear, Building Official

Khoi Do, City Engineer

Jamie Richardson, Landscape Planning Division

Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company

Emily Hernandez, Police Department

Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal

Jay Bautista, T. E, Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Airport Planning

Eric Woosley, Engineering/NPDES

Joe De Sousa, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Henry Noh, Senior Planner
DATE: September 30, 2019
SUBJECT: FILE # PDEV19-039 Finance Acct#:

The following project has been resubmitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy
of your DAB report to the Planning Department by Monday, October 14, 2019.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Development pian to construct 67 single-family homes (Lewis Homes) on
11.23 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus and Park Place Avenues, within
Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (APN: 0218-014-25). Related File: TT 18065.

E}I‘he plan does adequately address the deparnmental concerns at this time.
[] No comments
D See previous report for Conditions
Report attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)
D Standard Conditions of Approval apply

[] The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.

[[] The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

Del Qun dSCcr«\a,p\QmQ o Dus m@ﬁ’%\vmmﬁ lomw
° g S [OP2H

Iltem A-02 - 50 of 53



CITY OF ONTARIO PRELIMINARY PLAN CORRECTIONS

Sign Off
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION O
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 i 10/24/2019
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date
Reviewer's Name: Phone:
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner (909) 395-2615
D.A.B. File No.: Case Planner:
PDEV19-039 Henry Noh

Project Name and Location:
Subarea 29 — Park Place PA20 Mariposa

Tract 18065
Applicant/Representative:

Taylor Morrison — Yvonne Benschop
100 Spectrum Center Drive, Suite 1450
Irvine CA 92618

X | A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 09/30/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents.

[] | A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval.

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE.
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.qov

DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS.

CIVIL/SITE PLANS

Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved by
the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway areas
shall not displace street trees.

Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate with landscape plans.

Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade.

Provide a utility clear space 8 wide in parkways 30’ apart for street trees. Move water meters, drain
lines, light standards to the utility minimum spacing and show utility lines at the edges of the
parkway, toward the driveway apron, to allow space for street trees.

Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 74" below
finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1.

Typical lot drainage shall include a catch basin with gravel sump below each before exiting property,
if no other water quality infiltration is provided.

Note and show on plans: all AC units shall be located in residential side yards, opposite the main
back yard access path with gate, or a second gate and solid surface path on the opposite side shall
be added for access.

Provide concrete or other solid surface walkway from driveway to side yard gate for entry

and trash bin access.

Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due
to grading activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened
by soil fracturing. For trees a 12’x12'x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall
be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall
be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before

Item A-02 - 51 of 53


mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

10.

11.
12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.
25.

fracturing is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately
back into the hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into
the spaces between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with
large soil clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface
after fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can
be added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be
present during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference
see Urban Tree Foundation — Planting Soil Specifications.

LANDSCAPE PLANS

Locate light standards, fire hydrants, water and sewer lines to not conflict with required tree
locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans

Show all utilities on the landscape plans. Coordinate so utilities are clear of tree locations.

Note on plans: for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1
2" below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1.

Overhead spray systems shall be designed for plant material less than the height of the spray head.
Replace invasive, high water using, short lived, high maintenance or poor performing plants: Many of
the plants listed on the plant schedule are appropriate for shade conditions, well-draining soils, hard
to maintain and/or are not long lived evergreen shrubs and groundcovers; Arctostaphylos,
Asparagus d, Myers. Remove disease prone trees such as Eriobotrya and Pyrus from Tree Legend.
Replace Magnolia g. ‘St. Mary’ and x ‘Soilangiana’.

Show 8’ diameter of mulch only at new trees, 12" min. at existing trees. Detail irrigation dripline
outside of mulched root zone.

Designer or developer to provide agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape
construction plans. For phased projects, a new report is required for each phase or a minimum of
every 6 homes in residential developments.

Show concrete mowstrips to identify property lines along open areas or to separate ownership or
between maintenance areas.

Typical lot drainage shall include a catch basin with gravel sump below each before exiting property,
if no other water quality infiltration is provided.

Residential projects shall include a stub-out for future back yard irrigation systems with anti-siphon
valves. All single family and multi-family residential front yards shall have landscape and irrigation.
Residential projects shall include a 30” wide solid surface walkway (concrete, pavers, etc.) on at
least one side to access the back yard and to move equipment or trash receptacles.

Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards, see the Landscape
Planning website. 5% 48” box, 10% 36 box, 30% 24” box, 55% 15 gallon.

Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii,
Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis etc.) in appropriate locations.

Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards

Provide phasing map for multi-phase projects.

After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan
check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are:

Plan Check—5 OFr MOIE ACreS......cceuvieeeeeeeee e $2,326.00
Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase).......... $278.00
1 €= | $2,604.00
Inspection—Field — any additional..............ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnnen. $83.00

Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to:
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

Item A-02 - 52 of 53


http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

AIRPORT LAND Use COMPATIBILITY PLANNING NTARIEG—

AIRPORT PLANNING

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

Project F||e No.: PDEV19-039 Reviewed By:
Address: SEC Eucalyptus Avenue & Park Place Avenue Lorena Mejia
APN: 0218-014-25 Condact I
Existing Land  Vacant, mass graded 909-395-2276
Use:
Project Planner:
Proposed Land Development Plan to construct 67 Single Family Homes Henry Noh
Use:
_ . Coter - (114618
Site Acreage:  11.23 Proposed Structure Height: 30 ft :
. ) CDNo. 2019-056

ONT-IAC Project Review: N/A

- . n/a
Airport Influence Area: ONT & Chino PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
() zone () 75+dB CNEL High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement
O i Dedication
() zone 1a () 70-75d8 CNEL () FAANotification Surfaces Recorded Overfiight
. . Notification
O Zone 2 65 - 70 dB CNEL Airspace Obstruction
Surfaces Egall Estate Transaction
Zone 3 - isclosure
O OEEabICHEL Airspace Avigation
O Zone 4 Easement Area
All bl
O Zone 5 H e?;ﬁ: © 200FT +

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones:

O Zone 1 O Zone 2 O Zone 3 O Zone 4 O Zone 5 Zone 6

Allowable Height: 200 FT +

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

This proposed Project is: D Exempt from the ALUCP D Consistent ~ ® Consistent with Conditions D Inconsistent

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)

for ONT.

Real Estate Transaction Disclosure Required

oy

Page 1 Form Updated: March 3, 2016

Airport Planner Signature:

Iltem A-02 - 53 of 53



PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

November 26, 2019

FILE NO.: PDEV19-015

SUBJECT: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 28,003
square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the IP
(Industrial Park) zoning district; (APN: 1011-111-04) submitted by United Trust Realty
Corporation.

PROPERTY OWNER: UTR Holt Benson, LLC

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission consider and approve File
No. PDEV19-015, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and
attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached
departmental reports.

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of 1.21 acres of land located at 1413
West Holt Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district, and is depicted in
Figure 1: Project Location, below. The project site is currently vacant, and land uses
immediately surrounding the project site include commercial uses, to the north, east and
west; and industrial to the south. The
surrounding existing land uses, Policy
Plan (General Plan) and zoning
information are summarized in the
Technical Appendix Section of this report.

PROJECT ANALYSIS:

[1] Background — On November 18,
2019, the Development Advisory Board
(DAB) conducted a hearing to consider
the subject Development Plan and
concluded the hearing voting to
recommend that the Planning
Commission approve the Application
subject to conditions of approval, which
have been included with the Planning
Commission resolution

Figure 1: Project Location

Case Planner Lorena Mejia Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director % DAB 11/18/2019 | Approved |Recommend
Approval; \ PC 11/26/2019 Final
Submittal Date]3/08/2019 cc

ltem A-03 - 1 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

[2] Site Design/Building Layout —The Applicant is requesting Development Plan
approval to construct an industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet and having a floor
area ratio (FAR) of 0.54. The rectangular building is located on the eastern one-half of
the site, with the front of the building and office entry oriented to the north, facing Holt
Boulevard. The building is setback approximately 10 feet from the front (north) property
line, approximately 60 feet from the west side property line, and a zero-setback condition
has been provided along the east side and rear (south) property lines. The project will
provide parking along the western and southern portion of the site (see Exhibit B—Site
Plan, attached).

Ayard area, designed for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering, loading activities, and
outdoor staging, is centrally located on the western side of the proposed building. The
yard area will be screened from view of public streets and adjacent properties by a
combination of landscaping and tilt-up screen walls with view-obstructing gates. The
Applicant has proposed a screen wall at 10 feet in height to screen views from Holt
Boulevard and the adjacent office building to the west. The proposed wall will be of tilt-up
concrete construction that will match the architecture of the building.

[3] Site Access/Circulation — The Project is proposed with a single point of vehicular
access from Holt Boulevard, via 34-foot wide driveway that will be shared by both
standard vehicles and tractor-trailers accessing the yard area and parking lot.

[4] Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Warehouse
and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The industrial
building requires a total of 24 off-street parking spaces, which have been provided. In
addition, a minimum of one tractor-trailer parking space for each 4 dock-high loading
spaces is required to be provided. There are 3 dock-high loading doors proposed,
requiring one tractor-trailer parking space, which has been provided.

[5] Architecture — The proposed industrial warehouse building is of concrete tilt-up
construction. Architecturally, the building incorporates smooth-painted concrete,
horizontal reveals, color blocking, clerestory windows with anodized aluminum mullions
and blue vision glazing and spandrel glass, and painted steel canopies over the main
office entries and second story windows (see Exhibit C—Elevations, attached). The
mechanical equipment for the industrial warehouse building will be roof-mounted and
obscured from public view by the parapet walls and, if necessary, equipment screens,
which will incorporate design features consistent with the building architecture. Staff
believes that the proposed project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture
promoted by the Development Code. This is exemplified through the use of:

e Articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and
popped-out wall areas

e Articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the
building’s entries and breaks up large expanses of building wall

e A mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures

Page 2 of 13

ltem A-03 - 2 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

e Incorporation of base and top treatments defined by changes in color, materials,
and recessed wall areas

e The building was designed to ensure that its massing and proportion, along with
its colors and architectural detailing, are consistent throughout all four building
elevations

[6] Landscaping — The project provides landscaping along Holt Boulevard, the
perimeter of the site and throughout the parking lot. The Development Code requires that
the Project provide a minimum 10 percent landscape coverage and 11 percent landscape
coverage has been provided. Moreover, a combination of 24-inch, 36-inch, and 48-inch
box accent and shade trees will be provided throughout the project site, in addition to a
variety of shrubs and groundcovers that are low water usage and drought tolerant. The
proposed on-site and off-site landscape improvements will assist towards creating a
walkable, safe area for pedestrians to access the project site (see Exhibit D—Landscape
Plan, attached).

[7] Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to
serve the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality
Management Plan (PWQMP), which establishes the project’'s compliance with storm
water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures
that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and
maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices (BMPs), such as
retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes
the use of an underground stormwater infiltration system for the project. Any overflow
drainage will be conveyed to the public street by way of parkway culverts.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are
as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy

Maintain the Current High Level of Public Safety

Operate in a Businesslike Manner

Invest in the City’s Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm
Drains and Public Facilities)

[2] Vision.
Distinctive Development:

= Commercial and Residential Development

Page 3 of 13

ltem A-03 - 3 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

» Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California.

[3] Governance.
Decision Making:

= Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices.

» G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan)

Land Use Element:

=  Goal LU1: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and price ranges
that match the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live and work in
Ontario and maintain a quality of life.

» LU1-6 Complete Community: We incorporate a variety of land uses and
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers and visitors have a wide spectrum of
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario.

= Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses.

» LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character.

Community Economics Element:

= Goal CE1: A complete community that provides for all incomes and stages of
life.

= Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where
people choose to be.

» CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community.

» CE2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique,

Page 4 of 13

ltem A-03 - 4 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the
region.

» CEZ2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of
equal or greater quality.

» CEZ2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep,
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property
protects property values.

Safety Element:

= Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards.

» S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading.

Community Design Element:

= Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among
residents, visitors, and businesses.

» CD1-1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of
our existing viable neighborhoods.

» CD1-3 Neighborhood Improvement. We require viable existing residential
and non-residential neighborhoods to be preserved, protected, and enhanced in
accordance with our land use policies.

= Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces,
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct.

» CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to
convey visual interest and character through:

¢ Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and
proportion;

e A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting;
and

Page 5 of 13

ltem A-03 - 5 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

e Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality,
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style.

» CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural
systems, building materials and construction techniques.

» CD2-8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways,
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintenance of visibility and accessibility, and
use of lighting.

» CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits.

» CD2-10 Surface Parking Areas. We require parking areas visible to or used
by the public to be landscaped in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally
sensitive manner. Examples include shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off
capture and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field.

» CD2-12 Site and Building Signage. We encourage the use of sign programs
that utilize complementary materials, colors, and themes. Project signage should be
designed to effectively communicate and direct users to various aspects of the
development and complement the character of the structures.

» CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all
development plans and permits.

= Goal CD3: Vibrant urban environments that are organized around intense
buildings, pedestrian and transit areas, public plazas, and linkages between and within
developments that are conveniently located, visually appealing and safe during all hours.

» CD3-1 Design. We require that pedestrian, vehicular, bicycle and
equestrian circulation on both public and private property be coordinated and designed
to maximize safety, comfort and aesthetics.

» CD3-2 Connectivity Between Streets, Sidewalks, Walkways and Plazas.
We require landscaping and paving be used to optimize visual connectivity between
streets, sidewalks, walkways and plazas for pedestrians.

Page 6 of 13

ltem A-03 - 6 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

» CD3-3 Building Entrances. We require all building entrances to be
accessible and visible from adjacent streets, sidewalks or public open spaces.

» CD3-5 Paving. We require sidewalks and road surfaces to be of a type and
quality that contributes to the appearance and utility of streets and public spaces.

» CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics,
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings.

= Goal CDS5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties,
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional
public and private investments.

» CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly
and consistently maintained.

» CD5-2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual
maintenance of infrastructure.

HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32,
In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is consistent
with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies as
well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations. The proposed development
occurs within city limits and the area being developed is 1.21 acres less than the five-acre
threshold and is substantially surrounded by urban land uses. The project site has no
value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. Approval of the project would
not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality.
Also, the site is adequately served by all required utilities and public services.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.: See attached department reports.

Page 7 of 13

ltem A-03 - 7 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

TECHNICAL APPENDIX:

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use:

Existing Land Use Ge”e.’a’ P_/an Zoning Designation | Specific Plan Land Use
Designation
Site Vacant Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A
. . . . HDR-45 (High Density
ry P DU/AC)
South Warehousing Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A
East Auto Repair Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A
West Office & Retail Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A
General Site & Building Statistics
Meet.
Item Proposed Min./Max. Standard e
Y/N
Lot/Parcel Size: 1.21 1.0 (Min.) Y
Building Area: 28,003 SF N/A Y
Floor Area Ratio: 0.54 FAR 0.60 FAR (Max.) Y
Building Height: 39-6FT 45 FT (Max.) Y
Off-Street Parking:
Building . . Spaces Spaces
s eitse Area PTG i Required | Provided
Warehouse/Distribution:
o Automobile Parking One space per 1,000 SF (0.001/SF) for portion
of GFA <20,000 SF, plus 0.5 space per 1,000 24 24
28,003 SF | SF (0.0005/SF) for GFA > 20,000 SF
o Tractor-Trailer One tractor-trailer parking space per 4 dock-
Parking high loading doors (3 dock-high loading doors 1 1
are proposed)
Page 8 of 13

ltem A-03 - 8 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP

BROOKSIST

Page 9 of 13

Item A-03 - 9 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN

=30 =
- o . o [ o [ _
— — — HOLT BLVD. g — — —
e - T NB9'18'00"W 526.74" |
_Q__
- e n —_— AN | =1 _
[T 1 - SN - 5| 2
L ,,,,,, R e N s . as . B s
. TR ] -, Z ) S . - v 2lsn BUILDIAG DIMENSION 5| 5
—1te] . / I - |
: A4 7 =
N P— [ S [N \ = , 4777741'“?&%%&777' ——T=—— % T ™
T —Fy - B , =
v I \’ [ 2pregs- mpsmmi : =12
— r PARKWAY PLANTER p = L
AREA=1051SF. § [ ARea-zysF. T
= ) loboo PLANTER AREA PLANTER AREA %‘
: “ e e eE
\ o S
. 2 1 oo m
5 g o T
ol oSN . grree,
E_/ o a2 2,010 S.F. MEZ 4 5
/ | EEERSIN | = | WAREHOUSE £
e LI |
, josCee - aN T
// é@ |- 4 ™
1 NSENANRGSY 1+ s
._ ! ETe = N 5|25 TRUCK
— 1}_& ek~ \ ‘ PARKING i,
44 / o [ed i == **‘4‘3*" : g
I / N ] BE— . 3 H
2l 0 —”77 TRUCK WELL | g
i L\ TRUCKWELL !
& \ X - E\ :
gl ¢ X | g 2
#l ) T we . X
Gl 2 e - . 1.
COMMERCIAL  { i T oomae e T
i af / CE FIRE LANE
BUILDING | p— O (39]
N.A.P {[fproore, £ A u’ﬂ_osuu.s@go .0}, nt»
L1 V1 o] } y -'/ , X ,H .
4 < o 7 E 7 .
\;\ T g ki E
o X 513 B
INDUSTRIAL Co [T heore e
BUILDING T 2517
N- A- P- “ 140'-0" BUILDING DIMENSION
INDUSTRIAL INDUSTRIAL
BUILDING BUILDING P

N.A.P. N.A.P.

O SITE PLAN @

Page 10 of 13

Iltem A-03 - 10 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS

7,

o —_——

s

300" MM CLEAR HEMGHT

|
+
A4 MEZZAMME

108

1rae
war

VARES,
SEE
GRADMNG

NORTH ELEVATION - HOLT BLVD.

SCALE 18- = 70

o

Nerear

WEST ELEVATION

TCALE 18- = T

2007 ML CLEAR HEIGHT

2|

EEEE EEEEE EEEE F R EEEE

KEY NOTES:

CONCRETE TITLUF WALL - TYPICAL

STOREFRONT GLAZING - TYPICAL

LIME OF ROOF BEYOND SHOWN DASHED FOR CLARITY
12X 14' TRUCK DOOR - GRADE LEVEL

807 X 10° TRUCK DOOR - DOCK HIGH - TYPICAL

X 7 HOLLOW METAL MAN DOOR PAINTED TO MATCH THE BUILDING, TYPICAL
TRUCK WELL - PER GRADING PLAN

HORIZONTAL REVEAL - TYPICAL

VERTICAL REVEAL - TYFICAL

PAMEL JOINT - TYFICAL

LOCATION OF
COMPLETELY $CREENED FROM VIEW

DECORATIVE WF STEAL BEAME & COLUMNTZ
DECORATIVE LED FIXTURE. TYPICAL
CLERESTORY WINDOW, TYPICAL

SPANDREL GLAZS, TYPICAL

DECORATIVE $TEEL WF BEAM CANOPY TO EXTEND 4°
BEVOND FACE OF WALL.

DECORATIVE 3TEEL WF BEAM CANOPY
10" DECORATIVE CONCRETE 3CREEN WALL
100" WROUGHT IRON SLIDING GATE

PROFOZED LOCATION OF INTERIOR ROOF DRAMN, 2EE 31TE PLAN &
GRADING PLANS.
OUTLINE OF EXIZTING ADJACENT BUILDING.

Page 11 of 13

Item A-03 - 11 of 52




Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS (Continued)

SCAETE = T

0] 3 i
: ] ]
:
T |

] COLOR SCHEDULE (EXTERIOR COLORS)
N — ] - 1 | . N I Y I S —— —— =
FIELD LAZY GRAY 3WBZE4 l:'
Tl T T T T T I 2 e I r— 1T T — — — T T T 7 r— B cOoLOR
— P ————
COLOR
ACCENT 2 NAUTILUZ SWETS0 l:l
E coLor
HE: F TRIE TRICORN BLACK 3WE258 -
L
" GLAZING FRO JOLAR BLUELOW-E Cl
d i SOLAREAMN 50 (2) DUAL GLAZING
i BPANDREL PPO 3OLAR BLUE LOW-E l:l
5 GLAZNG SOLAREAN 80 W) ELUE BACKING
’ -
*  WOTE: ALL MULLIONZ AND WINDOW FRAMES TO BE
BLACK
v EASTELEVATION — T

Page 12 of 13

Item A-03 - 12 of 52



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN

~ HOLT BLVD.

BACCHARIS PLANTING
IN PARKWAY, TYP.

7

PROPOSED
MASONRY
RETAINING WALL
PER ARCH. DWGS.

W . W B o
—= N - R
i % .
E INSTALE—E——— oS = —
CONC. MOW INSTALL
- CRB /N A N\ | VN NP N N N X | NG NG ) CONC. MOW CURB
7PROPOSED TNL T T LT % 7 /‘ - 7‘
FIRE N
\ SERVICE 5 A3 56 PROPOSED
NpA(o 0.0 0006
\ PERCIVIL H > e S J MASONRY
N DWGS. =% o ) A\ / X7 1/ RETAINING
\_\  SCREEN G t v | WALL
' ' WITH XA XXX 1 >, > PER ARCH.
STRAPPY o LW ® DWGS.
Iéﬁ;ezss ©) J N WM & BFU UNITS TYP. VERTICAL TREE,
: 3 SCREEN UNITS WITH ALONG BLDG. PER
) 2 36" HIGH STRAPPY LEGEND.
/ N O \ LEAF SHRUBS. \l
// PROPOSED 10-0 0 \
’ / HIGH RETAINING N NFE)RE%Z%%SND i
| DL PERARCH. I INFILTRATION T TRANSFORMER
- : N CHAMBERS ; = NOTE: TRANSFORMER SHALL
\ BE SCREENED WITH 4'-5' HIGH
7 ‘ /Z ] EVERGREEN SHRUBS.
EXISTING WALL < \
} NY TRasH — | C PL.
\ ENCLOSURE
NN\ { ‘ H BUILDING
: \ \. \ \
\\ N\ ‘ H
\ \ O\

Page 13 of 13

Iltem A-03 - 13 of 52



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV19-015, A
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT ONE INDUSTRIAL BUILDING
TOTALING 28,003 SQUARE FEET ON 1.21 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED
AT 1413 WEST HOLT BOULEVARD, WITHIN THE IP (INDUSTRIAL
PARK) ZONING DISTRICT, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT
THEREOF—APN: 1011-111-04.

WHEREAS, UNITED TRUST REALTY CORPORATION ("Applicant") has filed an
Application for the approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV19-015, as described
in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 1.21 acres of land generally located at 1413
West Holt Boulevard within the IP (Industrial Park), and is presently vacant; and

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the HDR-45 (High
Density Residential 25.1-45 DU/AC) zoning district, and is developed with a Commercial
Retail, Nursery and Auto Repair. The property to the east is within the IP (Industrial Park)
zoning district and is developed with a commercial auto repair. The property to the south
is within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district and is developed with industrial warehouse.
The property to the west is within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district, and is developed
with commercial office and retail; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to construct
an industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet with a floor area ratio (FAR) of 0.54; and

WHEREAS, the rectangular building is located on the eastern one-half of the site,
with the front of the building and office entry oriented to the north, facing Holt Boulevard.
The project will provide parking along the western and southern portion of the site; and

WHEREAS, a yard area, designed for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering,
loading activities, and outdoor staging, is centrally located on the western side of the
proposed building. The yard area will be screened from view of public streets and adjacent
properties by a combination of landscaping and tilt-up screen walls with view-obstructing
gates; and

WHEREAS, the Project is proposed with a single point of vehicular access from
Holt Boulevard, via 34-foot wide driveway that will be shared by both standard vehicles
and tractor-trailers accessing the yard area and parking lot; and

WHEREAS, the Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the
“Warehouse and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The

Item A-03 - 14 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 2

industrial building requires a total of 24 off-street parking spaces that have been provided.
In addition, a minimum of one tractor-trailer parking space for each 4 dock-high loading
spaces is required to be provided. There are 3 dock-high loading doors proposed,
requiring one tractor-trailer parking space, which has been provided; and

WHEREAS, the proposed industrial warehouse building is of concrete tilt-up
construction. Architecturally, the building incorporates smooth-painted concrete,
horizontal reveals, color blocking, clerestory windows with anodized aluminum mullions
and blue vision glazing and spandrel glass, and painted steel canopies over the main
office entries and second story windows; and

WHEREAS, the project provides landscaping along Holt Boulevard, the perimeter
of the site and throughout the parking lot. The Development Code requires that the Project
provide a minimum 10 percent landscape coverage and 11 percent landscape coverage
has been provided.; and

WHEREAS, public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve the project.
Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan
(PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water
quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and
pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact
development (LID) best management practices (BMPs), such as retention and infiltration,
biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes the use of an underground
stormwater infiltration system for the project. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed to
the public street by way of parkway culverts; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000), hereinafter
referred to as "CEQA"; and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject
Application; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration

Item A-03 - 15 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 3

of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the
Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight
impacts of current and future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the Development Advisory Board of the City
of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on
that date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB19-063, recommending the Planning
Commission approve the Application; and

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that
date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered
the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the
facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as
follows:

(1)  The administrative record have been completed in compliance with CEQA,
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(2)  The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is consistent with

Iltem A-03 - 16 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 4

the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies as well as
with applicable zoning designation and regulations. The proposed development occurs
within city limits and the area being developed is 1.21 acres less than the five-acre
threshold and is substantially surrounded by urban land uses. The project site has no
value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. Approval of the project would
not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality.
Also, the site is adequately served by all required utilities and public services; and

(3)  The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

(4)  The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the Planning Commission.

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based
on the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation,
at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element
of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is
not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise,
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria
(ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table
2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the
PLANNING COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the
policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

ltem A-03 - 17 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 5

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is
located within the Business Park land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and
the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The development standards and conditions under
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan.

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining
sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views,
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in
which the site is located. The Project has been designed consistent with the
requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IP (Industrial Park) zoning
district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (industrial), as-
well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and
obstructions.

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have
been required of the proposed project. The Development Advisory Board has required
certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been
established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii]
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project
will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony
with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the
Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan.

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed
for consistency with the general development standards and guidelines of the IP
(Industrial Park) that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity,
building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and

ltem A-03 - 18 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 6

guidelines specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (Industrial). As a
result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project,
when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with
the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code.

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby
APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to each and every condition set
forth in the Department reports attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated
herein by this reference.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

Iltem A-03 - 19 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 7

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of November 2016, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Jim Willoughby
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director and
Secretary to the Planning Commission

Iltem A-03 - 20 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 8

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. __ was duly
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular
meeting held on November 26, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Item A-03 - 21 of 52



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-015

November 26, 2019

Page 9

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PDEV19-015
Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page)

Item A-03 - 22 of 52



City of Ontari H

P;aﬁﬁingnDir;I)c;rtment Plannlng Depa’:t’!,e_nt
303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 —

Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420

Meeting Date: November 18, 2019
File No: PDEV19-015

Project Description: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet
on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district
(APN: 1011-111-04); submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation.

Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner
Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct)
Email: Imejia@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

21 Time Limits.

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced,
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director.
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction.

Iltem A-03 - 23 of 52



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-015
Page 2 of 5

2.3 Landscaping.

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping).

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Division.

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been
approved by the Landscape Planning Division.

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement
of the changes.

24 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access.

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting
drive aisle or parking space.

(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking.

(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained
in good condition for the duration of the building or use.

(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8).

(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure
facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11).

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas.

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment.

Item A-03 - 24 of 52



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-015
Page 3 of 5

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq.

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are view-
obstructing by one of the following methods:

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside of the
gate surface (50 percent screen); or
(i) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets spaced

at maximum 2-inches apart.

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established based
upon the corresponding wall height, as follows:
Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height
14 feet: 10 feet
12 feet: 9 feet
10 feet: 8 feet
8 feet: 8 feet
6 feet: 6 feet

2.7 Site Lighting.

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell
switch.

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property.

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment.

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture.

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls.

29 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings).

210 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations).

ltem A-03 - 25 of 52



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-015
Page 4 of 5

211 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise).

212 Environmental Review.

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines,
meeting the following conditions:

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations;
(i) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no

more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses;

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or
threatened species;

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and
public services.

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures
implemented.

213 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario
shall cooperate fully in the defense.

2.14  Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

(b) After the Project’'s entittement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established
by resolution of the City Council.

2.15 Additional Requirements.

Iltem A-03 - 26 of 52



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-015
Page 5 of 5

(a) The 10-foot high screen wall located along the western property line shall
incorporate vine pockets. The screen wall shall incorporate a metal wall trellis on the western facing wall
for vine support. The property owner shall also obtain a maintenance easement with the property owner
located west of the project site prior to building occupancy to maintain the trellis and vines.

ltem A-03 - 27 of 52



CITY OF

ONTARIO

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

(Engineering Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmenta! Section], Traffic & Transportation Division, Ontario
Municipal Utilities Company and Information Technology & Management Services Department Conditions incorporated)

DEVELOPMENT [] PARCEL MAP [] TRACT MAP
PLAN
[] OTHER [] FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES

RELATED FILE NO(S).

PROJECT FILE NO. PDEV19-015

[X ORIGINAL [] REVISED: _/ /

CITY PROJECT ENGINEER & PHONE NO:

CITY PROJECT PLANNER & PHONE NO:

DAB MEETING DATE:

PROJECT NAME / DESCRIPTION:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

REVIEWED BY:

APPROVED BY:

Last Revised: 11/8/2019

(909) 395-2152

{909) 395-2429

November 18, 2019

Naiim Khoury, Associate Engineer MI/

Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner

A development project to construct

approximately 27,700 square feet
industrial/warehouse building on
1.21 acres of vacant land within the
Industrial Park Zoning District

1413 W. Holt boulevard

United Trust Realf
Henry Hong /

S =

}1 —

Corporation

“Bryan Lirley{ P.E.-

Date

Raymond Lee, P.E.
Assistant City Engineer

W/

Date

Iltem A-03 - 28 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015 o““é’o
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE GENERAL STANDARD
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (RESOLUTION NO. 2017-027) AND THE
PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFIED IN HEREIN. ONLY APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL ARE CHECKED. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL
APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND/OR OCCUPANCY
CLEARANCE, AS SPECIFIED IN THIS REPORT.

PRIOR TO PARCEL MAP/FINAL MAP APPROVAL, APPLICANT SHALL: Check When

Complete

D 1.01  Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the right-of-way, described below: D

Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of
and

|___| 1.02 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the following easement(s): |:|

1.03 Restrict vehicular access to the site as follows:

1.04 Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s):

000
Oooo

1.05 Submit a copy of a recorded private reciprocal use agreement or easement. The agreement or
easement shall ensure, at a minimum, common ingress and egress and joint maintenance of all
common access areas and drive aisles.

D 1.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) as applicable to the |:|
project and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready for
recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&Rs shall provide for, but not be limited to,
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance responsibility for all common access improvements,
common facilities, parking areas, utilities, median and landscaping improvements and drive
approaches, in addition to maintenance requirements established in the Water Quality Management
Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project. The CC&Rs shall also address the maintenance and repair
responsibility for public improvements/utilities (sewer, water, storm drain, recycled water, etc.) located
within open space/easements. In the event of any maintenance or repair of these facilities, the City
shall only restore disturbed areas to current City Standards.

|:| 1.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified |:]
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at hiip:/tceplumecieanup.com/), the property
developerfowner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure
Letter". Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include notifications in the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water
Quality Control Board at hitp./geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

D 1.08 File an application for Reapportionment of Assessment, together with payment of a reapportionment [:I

processing fee, for each existing assessment district listed below. Contact the Management Services
Department at (909) 395-2124 regarding this requirement.

(1)
(@)

[[] 1.09 Prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City approved format and forms) with []
accompanying security as required, or complete all public improvements.

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 2 of 14

ltem A-03 - 29 of 52



Project File No. PDEV18-015 SRR
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury [
Date: November 18, 2019

|:| 1.10 Provide a monument bond (i.e. cash deposit) in an amount calculated by the City’s approved cost D
estimate spreadsheet (available for download on the City's website: www.ci.ontario.ca.us) or as
specified in writing by the applicant’s Registered Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor of Record and
approved by the City Engineer, whichever is greater.

1.11  Provide a preliminary title report current to within 30 days. D

O O

File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community Facilities D
District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982. The application

and fee shall be submitted a minimum of three (3) months prior to final subdivision map approval, and

the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of building permits,
whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to provide funding for
various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be
determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the

sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD. Contact Management Services at (909) 395-2353 to
initiate the CFD application process.

D 1.13  New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: ]
[ 1) Provide evidence of final cancellation of Williamson Act contracts associated with this tract, prior
to approval of any final subdivision map. Cancellation of contracts shall have been approved by the City
Council.

] 2) Provide evidence of sufficient storm water capacity availability equivalents (Certificate of Storm
Water Treatment Equivalents).

[1 3) Provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents (Certificate of Net MDD Availability).

|___] 1.14  Other conditions: J

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMITS, APPLICANT SHALL:

A. GENERAL
( Permits includes Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment )

2.01 Record Parcel Map/Tract Map No. pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act and in accordance
with the City of Ontario Municipal Code.

2.02 Submit a duplicate photo mylar of the recorded map to the City Engineer’s office.

N

2.03 Note that the subject parcel is a recognized parcel in the City of Ontario
per

X OO0 O

2.04 Note that the subject parcel is an ‘unrecognized’ parcel in the City of Ontario and shall require a D
Certificate of Compliance to be processed unless a deed is provided confirming the Subdivision
Map Act.

X

2.05 Apply for a: [X] Certificate of Compliance with a Record of Survey; [] Lot Line Adjustment ]

[ Make a Dedication of Easement.

[

2.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R’s), as applicable to the |:]
project, and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready
for recordation with the County of San Bemardino. The CC&R’s shall provide for, but not be limited to,
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance of all common access improvements, common
facilities, parking areas, utilities and drive approaches in addition to maintenance requirements
established in the Water Quality Management Plan { WQMP), as applicable to the project.

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 3 of 14

Item A-03 - 30 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019

|:| 2.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified D
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at hifp:/iceplumecleanup.com/), the property
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure
Letter”. Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include nofifications in the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water
Quality Control Board at http.//geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

[:l 2.08 Submit a soils/geology report. |:|

|:| 2.09 Other Agency Permit/Approval: Submit a copy of the approved permit and/or other form of approval of |_—_|
the project from the following agency or agencies:

|:| State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

D San Bernardino County Road Department (SBCRD)

D San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFCD)

|:| Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

D Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for sewer/water service
|:| United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)

|:| California Department of Fish & Game

|:| Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)

D Other:

D] 210 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the right-of-way described below: ]

10 feet along the project frontage of Holt Boulevard to achieve the ultimate half-street right-of-
way width of 60 feet from street centerline.

|__'| 2.11 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the following easement(s): D

|:] 2.12 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: |

] 1) Submit a copy of the permit from the San Bernardino County Health Department to the
Engineering Department and the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) for the
destruction/abandonment of the on-site water well. The well shall be destroyed/abandoned in
accordance with the San Bemardino County Health Department guidelines.

[J 2) Make a formal request to the City of Ontario Engineering Department for the proposed temporary
use of an existing agricultural water well for purposes other than agriculture, such as grading, dust
control, etc. Upon approval, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City of Ontario and pay
any applicable fees as set forth by said agreement.

[1 3) Design proposed retaining walls to retain up to a maximum of three (3) feet of earth. In no case
shall a wall exceed an overall height of nine (9) feet (i.e. maximum 6-foot high wall on top of a
maximum 3-foot high retaining wall.

] 213 Submit a security deposit to the Engineering Department to guarantee construction of the |:|
public improvements required herein valued at 100% of the approved construction cost
estimate. Security deposit shall be in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal Code.
Security deposit will be eligible for release, in accordance with City procedure, upon completion

and acceptance of said public improvements.

g 214 The applicant/developer shall submit all necessary survey documents prepared by a Licensed |:|
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all existing survey monuments in and
around the project site. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey
Office.

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 4 of 14

Item A-03 - 31 of 52



Project File No. PDEV18-015 D‘“AQ'O

Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019 _ '

] 2.15 Pay all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. Storm Drain Development
Impact Fee, approximately $27,209 shall be paid to the Building Department. Final fee shall be
determined based on the approved site plan.

I:I 2.16  Other conditions: D

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 5 of 14

Item A-03 - 32 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019

Oﬁ" LY 78

B. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
(See attached Exhibit ‘A’ for plan check submittal requirements.)

g 217

Design and construct full public improvements in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal
Code, current City standards and specifications, master plans and the adopted specific plan for

the area, if any. These public improvements shall include, but not be limited to, the following

(checked boxes):

Improvement Holt Blvd.
|:| New; __ ft. D New;  ft. I:l New; __ ft. D New: ft
from C/L from C/L from C/L from' CIL i
|z Replace as |:] Replace I:] Replace D Replace
Curb and Gutter required que to damaged damaged d ar‘; aged
?r?s;r;::{:t‘i:;lr?'; fand Remove Remove Remove
new utilities SRt and replace and replace

AC Pavement

|:| Replacement
[]widen
additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm't
transitions

Replacement

[ Jwiden

additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm't
transitions

D Replacement

[]widen
additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm’t
transitions

D Replacement

[] widen
additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm’t
transitions

PCC Pavement

D New
[ ] Modify

D New
[ ] Modify

I:l New
[] modify

|:| New
[] Modify

Last Revised 11/8/2019

(Truck Route existing existing existing existing
Only)
& New |:| New |:| New I:l New
: D Remove |:| Remove D Remove I:l Remove
Drive Approach
and replace and replace and replace and replace
replace replace replace replace
& New I:l New D New D New
| Remove D Remove D Remove |___| Remove
Sidewalk existing asphalt and replace and replace and replace
sidewalk
New L__I New |___| New D New
ADA Access D Remove |:| Remove |_—_| Remove |:| Remove
Ramp and replace and replace and replace and replace
|Z Trees D Trees |:| Trees D Trees
XI Landscaping D |:| Landscaping D L.andscaping
Parkway (wlirrigation) | Landscaping (wlirrigation) | (wiirrigation)
(wfirrigation)
Page 6 of 14

Item A-03 - 33 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019

A
6‘!‘ = 'ﬁ'{o

L2

Raised
Landscaped
Median

I:l New

[:l Remove
and replace

D New

D Remove
and replace

D New

D Remove
and replace

|:| New

|:| Remove
and replace

Fire Hydrant

New and/or

Upgrade to
meet City
standards &
requirements

Relocation

|:| New /

Upgrade
D Relocation

D New /

Upgrade
D Relocation

D New /

Upgrade
|:| Relocation

Sewer
(see Sec. 2.C)

|:| Main
Lateral

I____] Main
D Lateral

[ ] main
D Lateral

[:l Main
|:| Lateral

Water
(see Sec. 2.D)

D Main

& Services

|:| Main
D Service

I:] Main
|:| Service

I:I Main
|:| Service

Recycled Water
(see Sec. 2.E)

D Main
|:| Service

D Main
D Service

D Main
|:| Service

I:l Main
D Service

D New

|:| New

I:l New

D New

T'ag,itiﬁ"a' ] Modify ] Modify ] Modify [ ] Modify
(see Sec. 2.F) existing existing existing existing
New |:| New D New D New
X modify [ Modify [] Modify [] Modiy
Traffic Signing Existing as existing existing existing
and Striping necessary due to
(see Sec. 2.F) | frontage
improvements
New D New / D New / |:| New /
Street Light [ ] Relocation Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade
(see Sec. 2.F) Relocation Relocation Relocation

Bus Stop Pad or
Turn-out
(see Sec. 2.F)

|:| New
[ ] Modify

existing

D New
[] Modify

existing

|:| New
[ Modify

existing

L] New
[] Modify

existing

Storm Drain
(see Sec. 2G)

I:| Main
D Lateral

D Main
D Lateral

D Main
D Lateral

[ Main
I:l Lateral

_ _ Conduit / [Jconduit/ | [] conauit/ ] conduit /
(Z'eb:rsggt'chs) Appurtenances | Appurtenances Appurtenances Appurtenances
IZ D Underground D Underground
Overhead Underground Underground [] Relocate [ ] Relocate
Utilities Relocate Relocate
Page 7 of 14

Last Revised 11/8/2019

Item A-03 - 34 of 52




Project File No. PDEV19-015 LT

Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury -
Date: November 18, 2019 _ -

Removal of
Improvements

Other — |n
Improvements

Specific notes for improvements listed in item no. 2.17,

a) The applicant/developer shall at minimum slurry seal Holt Boulevard from centerline to
gutter line along the entire project frontage. Contingent upon the extent of asphait
pavement cuts to install improvements along the project frontage of Holt Boulevard,
additional measures to grind and overly the pavement may be required and can be
determined during the project construction progress.

b) The proposed two easterly entry access ramps/walkways within the proposed 10-foot
dedicated area shall meet the maximum cross slope per City Standard Drawing No.
1210.

c) No enhanced/decorative pavement shall be constructed within the ultimate right-of-way
area.

d) Replace any damaged curb & gutter per City Standards.

|:| 2.18 Construct a 2" asphalt concrete (AC) grind and overlay on the following streef(s): |___|

|__'| 2.19 Reconstruction of the full pavement structural section, per City of Ontario Standard Drawing number D
1011, may be required based on the existing pavement condition and final street design. Minimum
limits of reconstruction shall be along property frontage, from street centerline to curb/gutter.

|:| 2.20 Make arrangements with the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to provide [] water service |:|
[ sewer service to the site. This property is within the area served by the CYWD and Applicant shall
provide documentation to the City verifying that all required CVWD fees have been paid.

] 2.21 Overhead utilities shall be under-grounded, in accordance with Title 7 of the City’s Municipal D
Code (Ordinance No. 2804 and 2892). Specifically, the existing single power pole and overhead
lines located along the easterly site frontage of Holt Boulevard.

|:| 2.22  Other conditions: D

C. SEWER

2.23 An 8-inch sewer main is available for connection by this project in Holt Boulevard
(Ref: Sewer plan bar code: $11220 and sewer atlas sheet J10)

X
[

2.24 Design and construct a sewer main extension. A sewer main is not available for direct connection. The
closest main is approximately feet away.

[
[

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 8 of 14

ltem A-03 - 35 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015 ML
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019

D 2.25 Submit documentation that shows expected peak loading values for modeling the impact of the subject |:]
project to the existing sewer system. The project site is within a deficient public sewer system area.
Applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with the preparation of the model. Based on the
results of the analysis, Applicant may be required to mitigate the project impact to the deficient public
sewer system, including, but not limited to, upgrading of existing sewer main(s), construction of new
sewer main(s) or diversion of sewer discharge to another sewer.

<] 2.26 Other conditions: I:I

a) There are two separate existing sewer mains in Holt Boulevard, both terminating at
manholes with a gap in between. The Applicant/developer shall verify which sewer
main to be used and determine a suitable sewer lateral location and point of connection

for the proposed building.

b) The Applicant/developer shall be responsible to install a monitoring manhole on the
onsite sewer system (on private property) with 10-foot of straight pipe pre and post of
the monitoring manhole per City Std. 2203.

D. WATER

|Z| 2.27 A 10-inch water main is available for connection by this project in Holt Boulevard. [:|
(Ref: Water plan bar code: Water atlas sheet J10).

[l

2.28 Design and construct a water main extension. A water main is not available for direct connection. The
closest main is approximately feet away.

[l

X

2.29 Other conditions: |'_"|

a) The applicant/developer shall be responsible to relocate all water meters to be adjacent
to the ultimate right-of-way line per City Standards.

b) The Applicant/developer shall be responsible to install separate irrigation water service
and meter per City Standards.

c) The applicant/developer shall be responsible to install fire service with a double check
detector assembly (DCDA).

E. RECYCLED WATER

D 230 A inch recycled water main is available for connection by this project in
(Ref: Recycled Water plan bar code: )

]

2.31 Design and construct an on-site recycled water system for this project. A recycled water main does
exist in the vicinity of this project.

D 2.32  Design and construct an on-site recycled water ready system for this project. A recycled water main []
does not currently exist in the vicinity of this project, but is planned for the near future. If Applicant
would like to connect to this recycled water main when it becomes available, the cost for the connection
shall be bome solely by the Applicant.

[:| 2.33  Submit two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy, in PDF format, of the Engineering Report (ER), |:|
for the use of recycled water, to the OMUC for review and subsequent submittal to the California
Department of Public Health (CDPH) for final approval.

O
[

Note: The OMUC and the CDPH review and approval process will be approximately three (3) months.
Contact the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company at (909) 395-2647 regarding this requirement.

[:| 2.34  Other conditions: ]

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 9of 14

Item A-03 - 36 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015 AR

Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury / X
Date: November 18, 2019 :

F. TRAFFIC / TRANSPORTATION

|:| 2.35 Submit a focused traffic impact study, prepared and signed by a Traffic/Civil Engineer registered in the |:|
State of California. The study shall address, but not be limited to, the following issues as required by
the City Engineer:
1. On-site and off-site circulation
2. Traffic level of service (LOS) at ‘build-out’ and future years
3. Impact at specific intersections as selected by the City Engineer

O

2.36 New traffic signal installations shall be added to Southern California Edison (SCE) customer account |:|
number # 2-20-044-3877.

] 2.37 Other conditions: ]

a) Holt Boulevard is designated as a divided arterial in the City’s Master Plan of Streets
and Highways. The proposed driveway on Holt Boulevard shall be limited to right-turn
access only when the future median is installed.

b) The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct in-fill public
street lights along its project frontage. Street lighting shall be LED-type and in
accordance with City’s Traffic and Transportation Design Guidelines.

c) Holt Boulevard shall be signed “No Parking Anytime”.

d) All landscaping, block walls, and other obstructions shall be compatible with the
stopping sight distance requirements per City of Ontario Standard Drawing No. 1309.

e) The Applicant/Developer’'s engineer-of-record shall meet with City Engineering staff
prior to starting street lighting design plans.

G. DRAINAGE / HYDROLOGY
D 238 A inch storm drain main is available to accept flows from this project in |:|

(Ref: Storm Drain plan bar code: )

<] 2.39 Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer
registered in the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San
Bernardino County Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines. Additional
drainage facilities, including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project frontage, may
be required to be designed and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the findings of this
study.

L]

g 2.40 An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not currently exist |:|
downstream of the project. Design and construct a storm water detention facility on the project
site. 100 year post-development peak flow shall be attenuated such that it does not exceed 80%
of pre-development peak flows, in accordance with the approved hydrology study and
improvement plans.

2.41 Submit a copy of a recorded private drainage easement or drainage acceptance agreement to the
Engineering Department for the acceptance of any increase to volume and/or concentration of historical
drainage flows onto adjacent property, prior to approval of the grading plan for the project.

2.42 Comply with the City of Ontario Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2409). The
project site or a portion of the project site is within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) as indicated
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and is subject to flooding during a 100 year frequency storm.
The site plan shall be subject to the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Program.

D 2.43  Other conditions: |:|

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 10 of 14

Item A-03 - 37 of 52



Project Fite No. PDEV19-015 0-_-1‘ AR
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury
Date: November 18, 2019

H. STORM WATER QUALITY / NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE AND ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES)

D 2.44 401 Water Quality Certification/404 Permit — Submit a copy of any applicable 401 Certification or 404 D
Permit for the subject project to the City project engineer. Development that will affect any body of
surface water (i.e. lake, creek, open drainage channel, etc.) may require a 401 Water Quality
Certification from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (RWQCB)
and a 404 Pemit from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The groups of water
bodies classified in these requirements are perennial (flow year round) and ephemeral (flow during rain
conditions, only) and include, but are not limited to, direct connections into San Bernardino County
Flood Control District (SBCFCD) channels.

If a 401 Certification and/or a 404 Permit are not required, a letter confirming this from Applicant’'s
engineer shall be submitted.
Contact information: USACE (Los Angeles District) (213) 452-3414; RWQCB (951) 782-4130.

X 2.45 Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the ]
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted,
utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at:
http://www.sbcounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.

D 2.46 Design and construct a Connector Pipe Trash Screen or equivalent Trash Treatment Control Device, [:]
per catch basin located within or accepting flows tributary of a Priority Land Use (PLU) area that meets
the Full Capture System definition and specifications, and is on the Certified List of the State Water
Resources Control Board. The device shall be adequately sized per catch basin and include a deflector
screen with vector control access for abatement application, vertical support bars, and removable
component to facilitate maintenance and cleaning.

[X] 247 Other conditions: |:|

Activities resulting in land disturbance of one acre or more is required to obtain coverage under
the Construction General Permit (CGP). The owner is the legally responsible person (LRP) of the
site and shall have a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) developed and submitted
through the SMARTS website at:

https://smarts.waterboards.ca.qgov/smarts/faces/SwSmartsLogin.xhtml

J. SPECIAL DISTRICTS

|:| 2.48 File an application, together with an initial payment deposit (if required), to establish a Community |:|

Facilities District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community facilities District Act of 1982. The
application and fee shall be submitted a minimum four (4) months prior to final subdivision map
approval, and the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of
building permits, whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to
provide funding for various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot
in an amount to be determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The
City shall be the sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD. Contact the Management Services
Department at (909) 395-2353 to initiate the CFD application process.

D 2.49  Other conditions: |:|

K. FIBER OPTIC

|Z| 2.50 Design and construct fiber optic system to provide access to the City’s conduit and fiber optic |:]
system per the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan. Building entrance conduits shall start from the
closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along the project frontage in the ROW and shall
terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building. See attached Fiber Optic
Exhibit for additional details.

|___] 2.51 Refer to the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout guidelines. Contact the Information |:|

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 11 of 14

Item A-03 - 38 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015 ALY
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury \
Date: November 18, 2019 |

Technology Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement.

L. Solid Waste
<] 252 Onsite solid waste shall be designed in accordance with the City’s Solid Waste Manual location [ ]
at:

http://www.ontarioca.gov/municipal-utilities-company/solid-waste

X] 253 Other conditions: ]

The applicant/developer shall provide trash enclosure to accommodate three 4-CY bins.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, APPLICANT SHALL:
3.
L

|Z| 3.01 Set new monuments in place of any monuments that have been damaged or destroyed as a
result of construction of the subject project. Monuments shall be set in accordance with City
of Ontario standards and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

|:| 3.02 Complete all requirements for recycled water usage. |_—_|

{7 1) Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confiration from the Califonia Department of
Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Report (ER) has been reviewed and the subject site is
approved for the use of recycled water.

[J 2) Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water improvements and
passing of shutdown tests and cross connection inspection, upon availability/usage of recycled water.

[0 3) Complete education training of on-site personnel in the use of recycled water, in accordance
with the ER, upon availability/usage of recycled water.

|:| 3.03 The applicant/developer shall submit all final survey documents prepared by a Licensed Surveyor |:]
registered in the State of California detailing all survey monuments that have been preserved,
revised, adjusted or set along with any maps, corner records or Records of Survey needed to comply
with these Conditions of Approvals and the latest edition of the California Professional Land Survey
Act. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey Office.

|:| 3.04 NMC Projects: For developments located at an intersection of any two collector or arterial streets, |:|
the applicant/developer shall set a monument if one does not already exist at that intersection.
Contact the City Survey office for information on reference benchmarks, acceptable methodology and
required submittals.

|Z 3.05 Confirm payment of all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. [:]

|Z| 3.06 Submit electronic copies (PDF and Auto CAD format) of all approved improvement plans, studie |:|
and reports (i.e. hydrology, traffic, WQMP, etc.).

Last Revised 11/13/2019 Page 12 of 14

Item A-03 - 39 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015 ML
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury :
Date: November 18, 2019 > X

EXHIBIT ‘A’

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
First Plan Check Submittal Checklist

Project Number: PDEV 19-015

The following items are required to be included with the first plan check submittal:

1. [ A copy of this check list

2. Payment of fee for Plan Checking

3. X One (1) copy of Engineering Cost Estimate (on City form) with engineer’s wet signature and stamp.
4, One (1) copy of project Conditions of Approval

5. Two (2) sets of Potable demand calculations showing low, average and peak water demand in GPM for
the proposed development and proposed water meter size.

6. [ Three (3) sets of Public Street improvement plan with street cross-sections
7. [0 Three (3) sets of Private Street improvement plan with street cross-sections

8. [0 Four (4) sets of Public Water improvement plan (include water demand calculations showing low, average and
peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size)

9. [ Four (4) sets of Recycled Water improvement plan {include recycled water demand calculations showing low,
average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size and an
exhibit showing the limits of areas being irrigated by each recycled water meter)

10. [ Four (4) sets of Public Sewer improvement plan

11. [OJ Five (5) sets of Public Storm Drain improvement plan

12. [X] Three (3) sets of Public Street Light improvement plan

13. [X Three (3) sets of Signing and Striping improvement plan

14. X1 Three (3) sets of Fiber Optic plan (include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

15. Three (3) sets of Dry Utility plans within public right-of-way (at a minimum the plans must show existing
and ultimate right-of-way, curb and gutter, proposed utility location including centerline dimensions, wall to
wall clearances between proposed utility and adjacent public line, street work repaired per Standard
Drawing No. 1306. Include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

16. [J Three (3) sets of Traffic Signal improvement plan and One (1) copy of Traffic Signal Specifications with modified
Special Provisions. Please contact the Traffic Division at (909) 395-2154 to obtain Traffic Signal Specifications.

17. Two (2) copies of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), including one (1) copy of the approved Preliminary
WQMP (PWQMP).

18. [X] One (1) copy of Hydrology/Drainage study
19. [] One (1) copy of Soils/Geology report
20. [ Payment for Final Map/Parcel Map processing fee

21. [ Three (3) copies of Final Map/Parcel Map

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 13 of 14

Iltem A-03 - 40 of 52



Project File No. PDEV19-015 SURR
Project Engineer: Naiim Khoury .
Date: November 18, 2019 : .

22. [ One (1) copy of approved Tentative Map
23. [ One (1) copy of Preliminary Title Report (current within 30 days)
24. [ One (1) copy of Traverse Closure Calculations

25. [1 One (1) set of supporting documents and maps (legible copies): referenced improvement plans (full size),
referenced record final maps/parcel maps (full size, 18"x26"), Assessor's Parcel map (full size, 11°x17”), recorded
documents such as deeds, lot line adjustments, easements, etc.

26. [] Two (2) copies of Engineering Report and an electronic file (include PDF format electronic submittal) for recycled
water use

27. [ Other:

Last Revised 11/8/2019 Page 14 of 14

ltem A-03 - 41 of 52



TIRE SALES

EXOTIC DANCERS

NURSERY

1

‘18]

EQUAL TO 432 STRANDS. PER CITY STANDARD

Placement is

HANDHOLES SHALL ENTER IN FLUSH WITH THE
concaptual. Conduit

d in the ROW ||
panll

GALVANIZED WIRE BETWEEN THE HANDHOLES

—L_Zm.ﬂb_._n FIBER OPTIC HANDHOLE HH-3/22 {PCA304836-90244) NEWBASIS; LESS THAN OR

1318 CONDUITS SWEEPING INTO
CUT QUT MOUSE HOLES ALIGNED PARALLEL

TO THE BOTTOM OF THE BOX AND COME IN PERPENDICULAR TO THE WALL OF THE BOX
CONDUITS SHALL NOT ENTER AT ANY ANGLE CTHER THAN PARALLEL PROVIDE 5' MIN
CLEARANCE FROM EXISTING/PROPOSED UTILITIES. ALL HANDHOLES WILL HAVE 1/4 INCH

AND THE GRAVEL ITS PLACED ON.

VICINITY MAP

SITE PLAN KEYNOTES

COMMERCIAL e i s
BUILDING =1
N.A.P. Erpes o, | |
|
| ‘g J
e % 8
- M 4
= =
- a
INDUSTRIAL = ]
E —_—
BUILDING = = o
™ VA ML DY M _
N.A.P. _ = oL __
INDUSTRIAL :4 INDUSTRIAL |
BUILDING BUILDING o
N.A.P. N.A.P.
J\SITEPLAN %
1 e
PROJECT DATA
| oescrmmen ) SUILDING
. ToraLa =
|z - evest e
= . ficon o
TR non SO of Sk BERMADN, ST G ChLTOAA B ERLBT Wil
RECOREED M BOOK 1 O i 8, FAOE 47, RETFOR OF SMDKOUATY. |
s | orree
| As3e930R3 eaRcELNO: 017111000000 | nooe [ vora Mezzanmee
OO Cot, o | o ToTA IAADITE.
. ey ToTA bE
‘oo sar el ——
s SPRRILERED” FFICE BACEEDING 10%= DAF. |
LwDwEs  swcaer  aRosnman sk ToT
= ——— e | parmcnes Prsvc:
— — ACCESEILE (STAUDARDI W'Y 17
ALOEE AEA ossrn ACCESILE (P2uumy 173 18
= JMCARDTTALL X
LANDBCAPED AREA REQUIFED | LAMDICAPED ARER CLEAN IR STALLE axiy
A oo WA B WD PROVGED s 8830 F. QBMARSIML IvaE &k 1T
T nEbURED 15 DFPANER,  Temer | snareaare pLaNTER PR Vi anaaas
_ B | B
| jp—— TYPE wa O 7% OF PARKING

e, A_ancd | SEEREES

Lecation of telecommunications 4
~ =} room is conceptual

REPAIR
RAP.

i

SHORT TERM BICE RACK @ 5% OF PARKNG

NURER OF STORES  ALLOWASLE STOREE PER S04 »3
AREAJSTFICATION  ALLOWABLE #REA'Fi 8= 000 PER TAMLE 5002

THUGK PARENG REQUASE 1 PER A LOADING
TRUCK PARIING PROVIOED

BUDING FOOTRRINT 30884 3P « ROMAS,

e

TRABMECL

[BEESE] _._.Wmﬁrﬂ._,uu.. it J—— e ,
B s W e =2 NI . |

botrrrt. " 1
[ .._...xﬂ\r@f@_:; ] |
- = » WARENOUSE w_ _ _1

AIR CONDITIONING '

RECYCLING AREA NOTES

 MECYCUMG ANEA AL 8E SECURED TOPRIVENT “HE THEYT 09
AESYCLABLE WATESIALD 81 UNALMVORTPD PHORE

THE Thagw e
REMAN AT RERTWIT

(2 TRASH ENCLOSURE FLOOR PLAN

I

- v

=

i L JED 30 THAT BTORAGE EONTANERS
el sy EGTRANI. CEVICES

ENGINEERED PAINTED STEEL

WETAL ROOF

ROOF TRUSSES WITH 80LID |
METAL TRASH ENCLOBURE __ {
i

i

SELF-LATCHING GATER
PAINTED TO MATCH THE
BUILDNNG COLOR

CONCRETE TILT UP
ENCLOSURE WALL &'-0” HIGH
PAINT TO MATCH SGREEN

WALL - SEE ELEVATIONS -

\
%\ comcreremurue
| | ENCLGSUREWALL

0" HIGH

e —
[
[E] s renexonsonca

] ror

[1] rommmcnenios mose_ar oz

(5] suaomw snmance aem s s sy s
BERCEC 15 210 4 4 FIRE CCRANTUENT WX BOX.
N
] TasHDkLomRE n e o soacen (RS,
VWAL W UETAL COCRS oeL; =
ooy AN
lTaRD TTANCARES B
[ swamonoomomoeie:s

81 #21 TRUCKDOOR 100CH HE ) TYPEAL

&l

260 WOE U8 CLEARTD THESNY FIFE LANT R ONTANO'S
PIUE COPARTUENT STANDAADS

PREFASRICATED CUNCAETE BUUPER TYRGA.

v s
COCRIDINATE WITN THE UFLITY EXACT LOGATR

DESIANATED SHOKAT AVEA FTIEN THaN 37 xyesy PACH
BUADING DOTRS AXD VENLATION ORENNGE

@ cum o raTTER
(@R L, TG
cerre HvORent
accrssm eravG

C-0PGH CORCRETE TL B LEMTEN Wi COLOR M0
REVEALE TO WATCH THEBUN Nav. SE€ FLEVATORS.

IEONROUCH-? BOMSLONG SATE, WITH {* BCUARE TUOE STERL
FACHETS SPACED AT 0L FROUIE PERFORATED SHEET IETAL

BREIER & R

1TGUWRSUGHT IREN FENCE

ENFANCED PEDESTRAN ACGESS TOP CAST AGID WASH CORGRETE
‘GRAPMITE COLOR W Tw SCORE L3 CER DEON

[ roro: scmwinsommes couonsonemerepommon exnonene
B T ST

[B5] soncre-e s womas s s e st ceomorssarcn
B A
T R S S
S

HTE oo
WITHSCORE LIES PER DEBIGN. 0 M(N, TWIGK, 3500 P9I 5E

TRAGIOR TRALER S« STALL
7 WDE SDEWILK PERCAL PLIWS
UCHTED 30.LARD AT ENTRY

FUTURE EVAE LITAION GORMUANT TO C28308 5100533
ST EUECTICALPLANS.

]
=)
[z
&
)
[ ————
] e mamrasromars vmcu. sewes s roce s
] ovens i s oces s 32

E 76 5 747 WHOAT TERU BICYOLE BPACES

E 2075 &4 LONO TERU BICYE.E BPACER

]

[ S ——

PROPOIFD LOCATICN Of FITE SPRIKIER RISE]

[

BHYPMOKIG SIDNACE WITHI 25 OF BLLOWG ENED. OUDOGA A%
INTAES CRERABLE WIS ATD Wi™Wl THE BULEXG.

won.

&

B ooonon-oassnns
@ BUAL SUNIP PULSS IN -1 X 7.4% X 7-0° 2420 BABIN WITH GRATHO.

[l e um owconcrerzamn rreca ste cm s

[66]  comoner cenes o vacncommere e uth ceussns
AGREOATE OVER 17 (0081 COMPACTED BUBGRACE 3,000 P3I W &3 CBAR O
A ac Doy
a0t A

PRCVIDE S38MA S WEDE OWVINLOL DY TECTABE WARRNSHG.
‘TRLNCATED DOWE AT FECESTRRAN T VEMCULAA TRAFFIC TRANSITIONS.
TRoR

[@] morazoonmen

YoeNw- 013

CRESPO
ARCHITEGTURE

oz 1162018 o |C.

Iltem A-03 - 42 of 52



AIRPORT LAND Use COMPATIBILITY PLANNING NTARIG=

AIRPORT PLANNING
CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT
PrOjeCt File No.: PDEV19-015 Reviewed By:
Address: 1413 West Holt Blvd. Lorena Mejia
APN: 1011-111-40 Contact Info:
Existing Land  Vacant 909-395-2276
Use:

Project Planner:

Proposed Land Development Plan to construct a 27,670 SF Industrial Building Lorena Mejia

Use:
: 4/22/19
Site Acreage:  1.21 acres Proposed Structure Height: 40 FT Bat
. 2019-020
ONT-IAC Project Review: n/a CD No.:
. n/a
Airport Influence Area: ONT PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
() zone 1 75+ dB CNEL High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement
O O g Dedication
O Zone 1A () 70-75dBCNEL v | FAA Notification Surfaces /| Recorded Overfight
Notification
O Zone 2 O 65 - 70 dB CNEL / Airspace Obstruction
Surfaces Real Estate Transaction
Zone 3 ) Disclosure
O / 60-65dB CNEL Airspace Avigation
O Zone 4 Easement Area
Allowabl
O Zone 5 He(i)g;,\rl1at: € 200FT plus

O Zone 1 O Zone 2 O Zone 3 O Zone 4 O Zone 5 O Zone 6

Allowable Height:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

This proposed Project is: D Exempt from the ALUCP ® Consistent DConsistent with Conditions D Inconsistent

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

ooy

Page 1 Form Updated: March 3, 2016
ltem A-03 - 43 of 52

Airport Planner Signature:




CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Scott Murphy, Development Director
Cathy Wahistrom, Planning Director (Copy of memo only)
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division (Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development
Kevin Shear, Building Official
Khoi Do, City Engineer
Carolyn Bell, Landscape Planning Division
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company
Doug Sorel, Police Department
Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Airport Planning
Eric Woosley, Engineering/NPDES
Joe De Sousa, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo oniy)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner
DATE: March 12, 2019
SUBJECT: FILE#: PDEV19-015 Finance Acct#

The following project has been submitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy of
your DAB report to the Planning Department by Tuesday, March 26, 2019.
Note: [:I Only DAB action is required
Both DAB and Planning Commission actions are required
D Only Planning Commission action is required
D DAB, Planning Commission and City Council actions are required

D Only Zoning Administrator action is required

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan-to construct one industrial buildings totaling 27,670
square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 141 3 West Holt Boulevard, within the industrial Park (IP)
zoning district. (APN: 1011-111-40).
The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

[] No comments

|:| Report attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

Standard Conditions of Approval apply

D The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.

D The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

Broadband Operations Awnna Vaca Sr. Systems Analyst 4/16/2019
Department Signature Title Date

Item A-03 - 44 of 52



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Lorena Mejia
BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear
March 14, 2019

PDEV19-015

X The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

(|
X

No comments

Report below.

Conditions of Approval

1. The address for the site will be 1451 W Holt Ave
2. Standard Conditions of Approval apply.

KS:1m

Item A-03 - 45 of 52



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: March 14, 2019

SUBJECT: PDEV19-015 - A Development Plan to construct one industrial buildings
totaling 27,670 square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt
Boulevard, within the Industrial Park (IP) zoning district. (APN: 1011-
111-40).

X1 The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.

X Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction: Type III-B
B. Type of Roof Materials: Panelized

C. Ground Floor Area(s): 25,770 Sq. Ft.

D. Number of Stories: 2

E. Total Square Footage: 27,670 Sq. Ft.

Iltem A-03 - 46 of 52



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

1.0 GENERAL

X1 1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department’) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

X 1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

X 2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

X 2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25°) inside and forty-five feet (45°) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

X 2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150°) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per_Standard #B-002.

XI 2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check.

X 2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-
led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.

X 2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand
key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access. See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001.

X 2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six
(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services..

Iter? AfGB - 47 of 52


file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov

3.0 WATER SUPPLY

X 3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code,
Appendix B, is 1750 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 3 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per
square inch (p.s.1.) residual operating pressure.

X 3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300°) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

X 3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

X 4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements,
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties
and shall not cross any public street.

X 4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire
Department, prior to any work being done.

X 4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within
one hundred fifty feet (150°) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street. Provide
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet
either side, per City standards.

X 4.6 A fire alarm system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work
being done.

X 4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.
Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement
required.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES
XI 5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

Iten® AFO3 - 48 of 52



X 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of
the building. Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

X 5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the
California Building Code and the California Fire Code.

X 5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department.
All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard
#H-001 for specific requirements.

X1 5.7 Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle
hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the
requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704.

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES

X 6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required. If hazardous materials
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans.

X1 6.2 Any High Piled Storage, or storage of combustible materials greater than twelve (12°) feet in
height for ordinary (Class I-IV) commodities or storage greater than six feet (6”) in height of
high hazard (Group A plastics, rubber tires, flammable liquids, etc.) shall be approved by the
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required. If High Piled Storage
is proposed, a Fire Department High Piled Storage Worksheet shall be completed and detailed
racking plans or floor plans submitted prior to occupancy of the building.

X 6.3 Underground fuel tanks, their associated piping and dispensers shall be reviewed, approved,
and permitted by Ontario Building Department, Ontario Fire Department, and San Bernardino
County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division. In fueling facilities, an exterior
emergency pump shut-off switch shall be provided.

7.0 PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

X 7.1 Section 2.3 — Access driveways in excess of 150 sq. ft. must have an approved fire department
turnaround.

Iten¥ AFO3 - 49 of 52



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

L Scott Murphy, Development Director

Cathy Wahistrom, Planning Director (Copy of memo only)
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division (Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development

Kevin Shear, Building Official

Khoi Do, City Engineer

Jamie Richardson, Landscape Planning Division

Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company

Emily Hernandez, Police Department

Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal

Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Airport Planning

Eric Woosley, Engineering/NPDES

Joe De Sousa, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner
DATE: August 22, 2019
SUBJECT: FILE #: PDEV19-015 Finance Acct#:

The following project has been resubmitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy
of your DAB report to the Planning Department by Thursday, September 5, 2019.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a 27 670-square foot industrial building on
1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Hoit Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district
(APN: 1011-111-40).

%he plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.
[J No comments
I:l See previous report for Conditions

\E_{Bepoﬂ attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

D Standard Conditions of Approval apply

[:| The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.

[:, The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

\inds o lqa«m.»% BNISEN Q/Q o scrp Plone. (6 G/ 1%

Department ! Signature ﬂ Title Date

Iltem A-03 - 50 of 52



CITY OF ONTARIO

LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764

Reviewer's Name:
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner

D.A.B. File No.:
PDEV19-015

Project Name and Location:
Industrial Building
1413 W Holt Blvd

Applicant/Representative:

Unityed Trust Realty, Ignacio Crespo
371 Evergreen Dr.

Brea, Ca 92821

PRELIMINARY PLAN

CORRECTIONS
Sign Off
) —pP— 09/23/2019
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date
Phone:

(909) 395-2615

Case Planner:
Lorena Mejia

X A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 08/08/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following
conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents.

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.
[ ] | Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval.

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE

Civil/ Site Plans

Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate plans; civil, site and landscape

plans do not match.

Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade. Backflows shall
be shown on private property, not within the right of way.

Landscape Plans

Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and
transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Coordinate plans; civil, site and landscape
plans do not match. Do not encircle devices; continue plant groupings throughout the landscape

areas.

Coordinate utility locations: lights, fire hydrants, water, drainage and sewer lines to not conflict
with required tree locations. Coordinate plans; civil, site and landscape plans do not match.
Show landscaping in the perimeter planters and trees spaced max 30’ apart, 25’ for narrow trees.
Change the 2 Ulmus in the truck yard adjacent to southern property wall to a tall narrow tree such
as a Podocarpus macrophyllus, Tristania laurina, or Callistemon citrinus or similar.

Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus
wislizenii, Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis etc.) in appropriate locations.

Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards

After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape
plan check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are:

Plan Check—less than 5 acres ................

............................... $1,301.00

Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase)......... $278.00

Inspection—Field — any additional............

......................... $1,579.00

Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to:

landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

ltem A-03 - 51 of 52


http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Lorena Mejia, Planning Department
FROM: Douglas Sorel, Police Department
DATE: Mach 25, 2019

SUBJECT: PDEV19-015- A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT AN
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING AT 1413 WEST HOLT BLVD.

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The
applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited
to, the requirements below.

e Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways and other
areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor.
Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures
proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement.
Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting.

e Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions.
The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint
on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the
addressed street.

e The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the
Standard Conditions.

The Applicant is invited to contact Douglas Sorel at (909) 408-1873 with any questions or
concerns regarding these conditions.

Iltem A-03 - 52 of 52



Historic Ontario

PLANNING / HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION =,

\
STAFF REPORT \o——==<
NOVEMBER 26, 2019 e odel Golony

FILE NO.: PHP19-014

SUBJECT: A request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the adaptive reuse of two local
historic landmark commercial buildings (Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles) for a total of 8,460
square foot specialty restaurant(s) and bar with a 4,200 square foot outdoor patio located at 200
North Euclid Avenue.

PROPERTY OWNER: 200 North Euclid Avenue, LLC.

RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission consider and
approve File No. PHP19-014, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and
attached resolution, and subject to the attached conditions of approval.

LOCATION: The project site is comprised of two adjoining historic buildings, the Bank of Italy
(Local Landmark No. 86) and Bumstead Bicycles (Local Landmark No. 87), located on a single
parcel at the northeast corner of Euclid Avenue and B Street, adjacent to the Ontario Town
Square, and is depicted in Figure 1: Project Location.

Figure 1: Project Location

Case Planner: Diane Ayala, Senior Planner Hearing Body Date Decision Action
/ HPSC: 11/14/2019  Approve Recommend
Planning Director Approval: %\ PC/HPC: 11/26/2019 Final
Submittal Date:  N/A ' \/] CC:

Hearing Deadline:  N/A

Item B - 1 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 2

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION:

Historic Name: Bank of Italy
Address: 200 N. Euclid Avenue
Architectural Style: Beaux-Arts
Date Built: 1923
Designation Date: February 2, 2010 §

Built in 1923, this brick commercial building is
constructed in the Beaux-Arts style of architecture
and is approximately 6,900 square feet. The building
has a rectangular floor plan, flat roof, and stone
base. The primary elevation (west) has large square
corner columns with a garland detail on the frieze
and Iconic columns made of Terra Cotta that flank
front the entrance. The large glass windows along
the first and second stories have been filled in with
plywood, but the original framed openings remain.
The original bronze doors have been removed and
replaced with aluminum framed glass doors. On the
south elevation, there are four Iconic pilasters that
are similar in design. These Terra Cotta pilasters are
evenly spaced between two rows of large plate glass
windows that have been filled. There is a deeply
recessed entry covered with plywood. The corner
clock, featured in the circa 1930 photograph, is not
original to the bank and has since been removed.
Despite past alterations, the Bank of Italy Building still retains its architectural significance and
original detailing.

Historic Name: Bumstead Bicycles
Address: 109 East B Street
Architectural Style: Commercial
Date Built: 1912 (est.)
Designation Date: February 2, 2010

This 1,774 square foot brick commercial style building
was constructed in approximately 1912. It has a
square floor plan with a flat roof. The top portion of the
primary fagade, which fronts East B Street, is covered
with stucco. The transom window area and bulkhead
are covered with plywood. The central recessed entry
and storefront glazing have recently been uncovered.
The brick facade on the east and north elevations are exposed. The east facade has a double-
wide bay and one large window openings that have been covered with plywood. The north
elevation has five arched brick window openings which have been covered with plywood as well.

Iltem B - 2 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 3

Bumstead Bicycles occupied the building from 1913 through the late 1960s. In the early 1960’s
the building served as a salon and dress shop and in the late 1960’s, Richard’s Beauty College
acquired the Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles buildings. Richard’s created one large tenant
space by penetrating the demising walls. Additional alterations to the building for the beauty
college included the window closures, expansion of the mezzanine floor to a full second story,
and construction of a second interior staircase.

An early preliminary inspection of the building revealed that the much of the original facade
remains intact behind the current facade. Based on construction and materials, it appears that the
storefront and transom windows were replaced, bulkhead (base) material changed, and entrance
relocated during the late 1930s. Additional onsite inspection of the fagade is required to determine
if the brick which is covered by a stucco can be restored.

Circa 1910s Circa 1930s

BACKGROUND:

In December of 2008, the City of Ontario Housing Authority purchased the Bank of Italy and
Bumstead Bicycles property as part of the Downtown Civic Center Project encompassing
approximately six blocks in the downtown along the National Register designated section of Euclid
Avenue between Holt Boulevard and D Street. Three of the six blocks have been developed with
affordable and market-rate multi-family residential and the Ontario Town Square. The remaining
blocks will be constructed with mixed-use development that includes multi-family residential,
office, commercial, and academic uses to serve downtown businesses and the residential
community of Ontario. The Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles property is envisioned as the
cornerstone for downtown revitalization effort and the buildings’ original appearance and
character provides a visual record of the history of early twentieth century commercial
development in Ontario.

The Bank of Italy building, Local Landmark No. 86, and Bumstead Bicycles building, Local
Landmark No. 87, were designated on February 2, 2010 by the City Council. The Bank of ltaly
building was designated a Tier | historic resource in July of 2004 and Bumstead Bicycles building
was designated a Tier Il historic resource on December 22, 2009 by the Planning/Historic
Preservation Commission. On September 7, 2010, the City Council approved the allocation of
$110,364 from the Historic Preservation Trust Fund for immediate interim building repairs, known

Iltem B - 3 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 4

as “mothballing,” to arrest rapid deterioration in order to
preserve and adaptively reuse the building.

Recently, the property changed ownership and underwent
a building conditions assessment to gain a better
understanding of the existing construction and structural

systems. This first step in the assessment led to removal of =

the interior space and walls, abatement of hazardous
materials, and discovery of the original window openings,
original mezzanine floor and staircase, and exposed the
red-clay brick walls as depicted in Figure 2: Bank of Italy
Interior. The Applicant has requested a Certificate of
Appropriateness for the adaptive reuse of the commercial
buildings (Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles) for specialty
restaurant(s) and bar, and an outdoor patio.

The Historic Preservation Subcommittee reviewed this

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Figure 2: Bank of Italy Interior

item on November 14, 2019 and
recommended approval to the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission.

The Applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of

Appropriateness, File No. PHP19-014, for the adaptive reuse of two historic local landmark
commercial buildings (Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles) for a total of 8,460 square foot
specialty restaurant(s) and bar, with a 4,200 square foot outdoor patio and is depicted in Figure

3: Site Plan.

42" HIGH METAL FENCE
WITH GATE

PAVING TO MATCH
ISTING PAVING OF PARK

WITH GATE

4'-0" PATH OF TRAVEL
NO OBSTRUCTION

42" HIGH METAL FENCE
WITH GATE

LARGE SIZED POTTED PLANTS
PER LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

ACCESSIBLE BAR

RESTAURANT

N. Euclid Ave.

West B Street

't

Figure 3: Site Plan

Iltem B - 4 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 5

The project proposes to accommodate three restaurant operators that will share space within the
existing building. The primary dining room will be in the Bank of Italy building with access to the
outdoor dining area to the north, a coffeeshop in the Bumstead Bicycle building, and a roof top
restaurant and cigar lounge above the coffee shop. The roof top restaurant will be fully covered
under a new attached standing metal seam roof canopy. The primary dining room will be accessed
from the main entrance on Euclid Avenue. The coffeeshop and roof top restaurant will have
separate entryways located on B Street. The rooftop restaurant will be serviced by a new interior
staircase and an elevator. Each floor will have restrooms and a commercial kitchen.

To prepare for the new use, the project proses to seismically retrofit and structurally strengthen
the building by constructing a steel moment frame on the interior and reinforcing the attachment
of the roof and foundation to the walls. The existing wood truss roof will be removed from
Bumstead Bicycles building and replaced with a new upgraded flat roof to accommodate the new
restaurant. The building will also be improved with new mechanical systems, including plumbing,
electrical, and heating and cooling, and service upgrades. Two interior staircases, including the
original staircase, the entire second floor, including the original mezzanine floor, and original bank
vault will be demolished. A smaller second floor will be constructed in its place for the new
elevator, staircase, second floor commercial kitchen, bathroom and cigar lounge. Three new
openings on the north elevation of the Bank of Italy building are proposed. Openings will be for a
single glass door, double-wide glass door, and bar with a roll down door to service the outdoor
dining area. The double door entry and bar opening will be adorned with standing metal seam
canopies supported by decorative concrete columns.

The outdoor patio dining area will feature a large open-air, wood burning barbeque station, small
designated space for light entertainment, tables and chairs, and additional seating approximately
5" along the Ontario Town Square pedestrian pathway under a wood trellis. A full-service liquor
bar will serve patrons of the restaurant and will be accessible to the patio area. Due to close
proximately to Ontario Town Square, patio landscaping will be limited to potted plants and trees.
The north property line currently bifurcates the proposed patio dining area and will require a lot
line adjustment prior to issuance of a building permit. An additional lot line adjustment and/or a
use encroachment agreement on the east side of the site is required in order to locate an exterior
egress staircase.

The project proposes restoration of all the original windows and doors, repair of the glazed terra-
cotta Iconic capitols and columns and other architectural features as needed, such as repair or
replacement of the glazed terra-cotta at the base of the building and repointing the mortar joints.
The Bumstead Bicycles building storefront will require additional field investigation in order to
ascertain if the original red brick can be revealed and restored. The existing structural glass in the
transom window openings is severely damaged and will need to be replaced. The project
proposes to replace the transom and storefront windows to an earlier period of construction. The
original entry will be restored, and a second entry will be created on the storefront to serve as a
separate entrance to the lobby for the rooftop restaurant.

PROJECT ANALYSIS: Section 4.02.050 (Historic Preservation—Certificates of Appropriateness
and Demolition of Historic Resources) of the Ontario Development Code, requires Certificate of
Appropriateness approval for any rehabilitation, restoration, or alteration to a historic resource.
The intent is to recognize and protect identified historic resources within the community from

Iltem B - 5 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 6

inappropriate alterations that may render the historic resource as ineligible for listing on the on
the local, state, and/or the national registers. The Secretary of the Interior Standards for the
Treatment of Historic Properties, also referred to as “the Standards,” provide a critical part of the
framework of the national preservation program and are widely used at the federal, state and local
levels to guide work on historic resources and have been adopted and incorporated into the
Ontario Development Code.

The preservation treatment proposed for the project is the Standard for Rehabilitation.
Rehabilitation is the process of returning a property to a state of utility, through repair or alteration,
which makes possible a contemporary use while preserving those portions and features of the
property which are significant to its historic, architectural, and cultural values. The Standards state
that alterations will not destroy or alter historic features that characterize the historic resource and
that new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with historic materials,
features, size, scale, and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the resource.

The project proposes rehabilitation in a manner that is consistent with the Standards. The project
includes extensive restoration to exterior features, including walls, doors, windows, glazed terra-
cotta elements, and capitols and columns, with minimal changes to building exteriors, thereby
avoiding significant and adverse effects to the historic resource.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan (General Plan),
and the City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More specifically, the goals
and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are as follows:

[1] City Council Goals

= Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy
= Focus Resources in Ontario’s Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods

[2] Vision
Dynamic Balance
= An appreciation for the "personality and charm" of this community, preserving
important characteristics and values even as growth and change occur, all the while
retaining a distinctive local feel where people love to be.
[3] Governance

Decision Making

= Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards its
Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices

» G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and document
how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision.

Iltem B - 6 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 7

[4] Policy Plan

Community Design Element

= Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among
residents, visitors, and businesses.

» CD1-1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being a
leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse
character of our existing viable neighborhoods.

» CD1-3 Neighborhood Improvement. We require viable existing residential and
non-residential neighborhoods to be preserved, protected, and enhanced in
accordance with our land use policies.

= Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes,
and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct.

» CD2-11 Entry Statements. We encourage the inclusion of amenities, signage
and landscaping at the entry to neighborhoods, commercial centers, mixed use
areas, industrial developments, and public places that reinforce them as uniquely
identifiable places.

= Goal CD4: Historic buildings, streets, landscapes and neighborhoods, as well as the
story of Ontario’s people, businesses, and social and community organizations, that
have been preserved and serve as a focal point for civic pride and identity.

» CD4-2 Collaboration with Outside Agencies. We pursue opportunities to team
with other agencies, local organizations and non-profits in order to preserve and
promote Ontario’s heritage.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15331 (Historical Resource
Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of maintenance, repairs,
stabilization, rehabilitation, restoration, preservation, conservation, or reconstruction of historical
resources in a manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment
of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and
Reconstructing Historic Buildings (1995), Weeks and Grimmer.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department report.

ltem B - 7 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 8

Exhibit A: Floor Plan

" —a -
BANK OF ITALY [ BUMSTEAD BICYCLE

QUTDOOR SPACE

Bar Area

Dining Room Coffee Shop

PL=127.2T

Proposed First Floor

BANK OF ITALY ‘r BUMSTEAD BICYCLE

Open to Below

1 ' Elevator

: PRt s B"EHT

Proposed Second Floor

Iltem B - 8 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014
November 26, 2019

Page 9

Exhibit B: Elevations

Ti

-

Ti

10100000 @ 0 |00

=

I |
R i o Y R B AR s N

T

jammmm

Proposed Rehabilitation- West Elevation

Proposed Rehabilitation- South Elevation

Iltem B - 9 of 21



Planning / Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 10

1||" ||||| ii“ Hlll "“lll ,*.: "||| :

¢ TTIHG ARRANGERIEHT TO DE FRRALTED 4" FRE METAL FEMCE WITH GATT

Proposed Outdoor Patio Trellis

Hood exhaust fan
o Kﬁ Metal partial roof
Hood grease trap : il

~ 4x inner baam

{ 18°%18" concrete
| /r— Columns
4 Serving

—

Proposed Open Air Central BBQ Station

-

Iltem B - 10 of 21



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF ONTARIO, APPROVING FILE NO. PHP19-014, A
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS FOR THE ADAPTIVE REUSE
OF TWO LOCAL HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS
(BANK OF ITALY AND BUMSTEAD BICYCLES) FOR A TOTAL OF 8,460
SQUARE FOOT SPECIALTY RESTAURANT(S) AND BAR, WITH A 4,200
SQUARE FOOT OUTDOOR PATIO ON 0.23 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED
AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF B STREET AND EUCLID AVENUE,
WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN CIVIC CENTER PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT.AND MAKING FINDINGS IN
SUPPORT THEREOF — APN: 1048-552-22

WHEREAS, Domus International, LLC. ("Applicant”) has filed an application for the
approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness, File No. PHP19-014, as described in the title
of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the City’s character and history are reflected in its cultural, historical,
and architectural heritage with an emphasis on the “Model Colony” as declared by an act
of the Congress of the United States and presented at the St. Louis World’s Fair in 1904;
and

WHEREAS, the City’s historical foundations should be preserved as living parts of
community life and development in order to foster an understanding of the City’s past so
that future generations may have a genuine opportunity to appreciate, enjoy, and
understand Ontario’s rich heritage; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development and the Aesthetic, Cultural, Open
Space and Recreational Resources Elements of the Policy Plan Component of the
Ontario Plan sets forth Goals and Policies to conserve Ontario’s historic buildings and
districts; and

WHEREAS, the Bank of Italy building is worthy of preservation and was designated
as Local Landmark No. 86 by the City Council on February 2, 2010 and determined to be
a Tier | Historic Resource by the Historic Preservation Commission on July 27, 2004; and

WHEREAS, the Bumstead Bicycles building is worthy of preservation and was
designated as Local Landmark No. 87 by the City Council on February 2, 2010 and
determined to be a Tier Il Historic Resource by the Historic Preservation Commission on
December 22, 2009; and

ltem B - 11 of 21



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 2

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act — Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq. — (hereinafter referred to
as "CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Historic Preservation Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on
the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of
Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with
the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2019, the Historic Preservation Subcommittee of
the City of Ontario conducted a hearing and issued Decision No. HPSC19-013,
recommending the Historic Preservation Commission approve the Application; and

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2019, the Historic Preservation Commission of the
City of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing
on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Historic Preservation
Commission of the City of Ontario as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making authority for the Project, the Historic Preservation Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Historic Preservation Commission, the Historic
Preservation Commission finds as follows:

ltem B - 12 of 21



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 3

(1)  The administrative record has been completed in compliance with CEQA,
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(2)  The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to
Section 15331 (Class 31, Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA
Guidelines, which consists of maintenance, repairs, stabilization, rehabilitation,
restoration, preservation, conservation, or reconstruction of historical resources in a
manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of
Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and
Reconstructing Historic Buildings (1995), Weeks and Grimmer. The Guidelines were
utilized in the development of the project design and, as a result, do not pose any adverse
impacts to the historic resource; and

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

(4)  The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the Historic Preservation Commission.

SECTION 2: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise,
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Historic Preservation Commission has
reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety
Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria
(ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a
result, the HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 3: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Historic Preservation Commission during the above-

ltem B - 13 of 21



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 4

referenced hearing, and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above,
the Historic Preservation Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed project will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect any significant architectural feature of the resource. The project
proposes extensive restoration to significant exterior features, including walls, doors,
windows, glazed terra-cotta elements, and capitols and columns, with minimal changes
to building exteriors, including three new door openings, one new entrance, elevator,
egress staircase, and a rooftop canopy over the Bumstead Bicycles building, thereby
avoiding significant and adverse effects to the historic resource.

(2) The proposed project will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect the historic character or value of the resource. The project proposes
minor exterior alterations to accommodate the new restaurant use. The new openings are
located on a wall that had previously been covered by an adjacent building and other
alterations are not visible to the primary facade on Euclid Avenue. Additionally, all
alterations can be easily removed.

(3) The proposed project will be compatible with the exterior character-
defining features of the historic resource. The project introduces standing-seam metal
canopies and concrete columns that do not alter or diminish the historic value of the
resource and are differentiated from the historic building materials and compatible. The
elevator will be located at the rear building more centrally located and away from the
primary elevation on B Street and not visible from Euclid Avenue, thereby avoiding
significant and adverse effects to the historic resource.

SECTION 4: Historic Preservation Commission Action. Based upon the
findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the Historic
Preservation Commission hereby APPROVES the herein described Application, subject
to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports attached hereto as
“‘Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 5: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify
and hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or
employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall
promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of
Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

SECTION 6: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that

constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are
located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764.

ltem B - 14 of 21



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 5

The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 7: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Historic Preservation Commission of the City
of Ontario shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Historic Preservation Commission of the City of Ontario at a
regular meeting thereof held on the 26th day of November 2019, and the foregoing is a
full, true and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Jim Willoughby
Historic Preservation Commission
Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom

Planning Director and

Secretary of Historic Preservation
Commission

ltem B - 15 of 21



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-014
November 26, 2019

Page 6

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )
CITY OF ONTARIO )

|, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Historic Preservation Commission of
the City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PCXXX, was
duly passed and adopted by the Historic Preservation Commission of the City of Ontario
at their regular meeting held on November 26, 2019 by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

ltem B - 16 of 21



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-014

November 26, 2019

Page 7

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PHP19-014
Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page)

ltem B - 17 of 21



CERTIFICATE OF
L Lty o ] APPROPRIATENESS

The "Model Colony"

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Date: November 26, 2019
File No.: PHP19-014
Location: 200 N. Euclid Avenue
(APN: 1048-552-22)
Prepared By: Diane Ayala, Senior Planner

A Certificate of Appropriateness for the adaptive reuse of two historic
local landmark commercial buildings (Bank of Italy and Bumstead
Bicycles) for a total of 8,460 square foot specialty restaurant(s) and

Description: bar, with a 4,200 square foot outdoor patio located at the northeast
corner of Euclid Avenue and B Street at 200 North Euclid Avenue,
within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue
Overlay) zoning districts.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
The above-described Project shall comply with the following Conditions of Approval

1. Time Limits.

1.1 The Certificate of Appropriateness shall become void twenty-four (24) months
from the date of approval unless a building permit has been issued and work
authorized by this approval has commenced prior to the expiration date and is
diligently pursued to completion.

2. Land Use.

2.1 Prior to commencement of use, the Applicant shall obtain approval of an
Administrative Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for onsite
consumption and live entertainment as ancillary to a bona fide restaurant.

3. Site Design.

3.1 Approval of a lot line adjustment expanding the property line to the north to
accommodate the outdoor patio and to the east property line to accommodate
the exterior egress staircase is required prior to issuance of building permits.

3.2 Outdoor patio shall be enclosed with a minimum 3-foot-high fence or wall to
prevent patrons from passing alcohol drinks outside the licensed premises. If a
fence is proposed for the enclosure, the spacing between the rails shall be limited

ltem B - 18 of 21



Conditions of Approval
File No.: PHP19-014
November 26, 2019
Page 2

in order to prevent alcohol beverages from being passed through the opening.

3.3 Patio exits must be gated and closed at all times. Emergency sounding devices
and panic hardware must be installed on gates.

4. Architectural Treatment.

4.1 An architectural conservator, who meets the minimum professional qualifications
with discipline knowledge in construction materials, surface treatments,
decorative finishes and decorative elements, shall research, inventory,
document, interpret, and recommend treatments and ongoing maintenance for
the preservation, restoration and rehabilitation of the exterior and interior
features, finishes, surfaces, and building materials of the Bank of Italy and
Bumstead Bicycles buildings. The written recommendations and report shall be
submitted to the Planning Department for review prior to issuance of building
permits.

4.2 All exterior features shall be restored, repaired, or replaced with like in kind
pursuant to the Secretary of the Interior Standards, including, but not limited to,
mortar joint repointing, molding an Iconic capitols for replacement, and removing
earlier repairs in the glazed terra-cotta materials and repairing or replacing with
like in kind those sections that are deteriorated beyond repair.

4.3 The National Park Service Preservation Briefs numbered 2, 6, 7, 11, 18, 23, 24,
41, and any other Brief deemed necessary shall be the primary refence guide for
rehabilitation and restoration of the property.

4.4 All doors and windows shall maintain interior access for ongoing maintenance
and repair.

4.5 All original and new doors and windows shall be framed with wood, wood with
aluminum clad, or wood with fiberglass clad framed. All doors shall have a metal
kick plate. Aluminum and vinyl framed windows are prohibited. Submit a door
and window cut/spec sheet or brochure to Planning Department for review prior
to issuance of building permits.

4.6 The Bank of Italy front fagade entry shall be restored with double glass entry door
with sidelights, and transom windows above. The sidelight windows shall include
a kickplate or base which is flush in height and compatible with the metal
kickplate on the door.

4.7 The original window openings on the Bank of Italy shall fully restored to original

condition. The front fagade openings shall be filled with fixed glass. The south
elevation has upper and lower windows organized in 2 rows and 5 columns.

ltem B - 19 of 21



Conditions of Approval
File No.: PHP19-014
November 26, 2019
Page 3

These openings shall be restored with casement-fixed-casement windows in
each opening with exception to the columns most north and south on the
elevation. The first floor on the south elevation opening shall be restored with a
glass door with metal kickplate and fixed sidelights and transom windows.

4.8 The window and door openings on the north and east elevations of the Bumstead
Bicycles building shall be restored to single hung windows and a glass double
door with a metal kick plate. The south elevation transom windows shall be
restored to original condition with a grid pattern over fixed glass. Simulated
divided light windows are prohibited.

4.9 The original brick faced shall be revealed and restored, if feasible. The
architectural conservator (as required in condition no. 4.1) shall make a
recommendation in writing to address feasibility. If determined not feasible
through the report, then a substitute material, such as plaster or smooth stucco,
shall be used. The use of brick veneer should be avoided.

4.10 Sliding type windows are prohibited on building exterior. Where sliders windows
are proposed, revise to casement or hung.

4.11 The columns used to support the attached standing-seam metal canopy over the
roof top restaurant shall be decorative concrete to match the proposed door
surrounds on the north elevation.

4.12 New openings on the north elevation shall be limited to 3. Standing-seam metal
canopies supported by decorative concrete columns over each opening shall be
used.

4.13 Exterior light fixtures shall be compatible with the architectural style. Submit a
cut sheet to Planning for review and approval prior to issuance of building permit.

5. Signs.
5.1 Sign plans shall be submitted and approved for the site prior to the installation of
any signs. Signs shall conform to Division 8.01 (Sign Regulations) of the Ontario
Development Code.

6. The applicant shall obtain a building permit prior to any demolition or construction.

7. Any deviation from the approved plans shall require approval of the Planning
Department and, if necessary, the Historic Preservation Commission.

8. Conditions of Approval shall be reproduced onto all plans submitted for permits.

Iltem B - 20 of 21



Conditions of Approval
File No.: PHP19-014
November 26, 2019
Page 4

9. Prior to occupancy and building permit final, the Planning Department shall inspect
the premises to ensure the Conditions of Approval have been met and that the project

has been constructed per the approved plans.

ltem B - 21 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

November 26, 2019

FILE NOS.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009

SUBJECT: A Planned Unit Development (File No. PUD19-001) to establish development
standards, design guidelines and infrastructure requirement for property on 0.36 acres of
land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street
and 511 N. Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid
Avenue Overlay) zoning districts, in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No.
PDEV19-038) and Certificate of Appropriateness (File No. PHP19-009) to construct a
2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee), with a 480 square foot outdoor
patio; (APN: 1048-355-09 and 10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. City Council
action is required for File No. PUD19-001.

PROPERTY OWNER: Dylan Investments Group LLC

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission consider and adopt the
attached resolutions:

[1] Recommending the City Council approve File No. PUD19-001; and

[2] Approving File Nos. PDEV19-038
and PHP19-009 pursuant to the facts
and reasons contained in the staff report
and attached resolutions, and subject to
the conditions of approval contained in
the attached departmental reports.

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is
comprised of 0.36-acre of developed
land located at the northwest corner of
Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E
Street and 511 N. Euclid Avenue), within
the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and
EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay) zoning [ ol ;
districts, and is depicted in Figure 1: | R TR E Street

ety (-7 ]
Project Location, right. The project site is 28 ,E_i"mk!f| = - -

currently developed with a parking lot on it
the southeast area of the site, a .

Figure 1: Project Location

Case Planner] Rudy Zeledon Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director /] DAB 11/18/2019 Approval | Recommend
Approval; : PC 11/26/2019 Final
Submittal Date]07/05/2019, cc

ltem Cand D - 1 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

commercial building (furniture store) on the north and a commercial building to the west.
Properties surrounding the project site all lie within the MU-1 (Downton Mixed Use) zoning
district and are occupied by a mix of land uses, including commercial to the north, south,
west and two gas stations across Euclid Avenue to the east.

PROJECT ANALYSIS:

[1] Background — The project site is located within the Center City Redevelopment
Project Area, established in 1983. While the practice of redevelopment was eliminated by
the State, the Center City Redevelopment Project Area Plan is still in effect, and
encourages the development of a high intensity, multi-use central business district. In
addition, The Ontario Plan (“TOP”) Policy Plan (General Plan) contains goals and policies
for the City’s Downtown and East Holt Mixed Use Areas, which further support the goals
of the Center City Redevelopment Project Area Plan.

The Center City Redevelopment Project Area Plan envisions revitalization of the City’s
Downtown Mixed-Use Area, in part, by infusing medium and high-density residential
developments, and mixed-use developments, into the area. The Policy Plan was
established to further this vision and provides for the creation of low-rise developments
(up to 5 stories in height) consisting of a mixture of retail, office and residential uses, for
the purpose of creating identity and place in the Downtown Mixed-Use Area.

The Ontario Plan describes the Downtown Mixed-Use Area as an intensive vertical and
horizontal mixture of retail, office, and residential uses in a pedestrian friendly
atmosphere, where the historic character is prominent. The most intensive uses are
envisioned along Euclid Avenue and Holt Boulevard. The Downtown Mixed-Use Area is
the historic core of Ontario, which has a unique blend of historic, social and cultural uses
set in a compact street grid. The Downtown Mixed-Use Area includes the Civic Center,
City library and surrounding diverse residential neighborhoods that provide increased
demand for retail opportunities along Euclid Avenue, Holt Boulevard and B Street.

The Policy Plan specifies that the Downtown Mixed-Use Area is to be implemented
through the approval of an Area Plan or Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) prior to the
development of properties within the Area. In compliance with this requirement, the
Applicant has submitted the Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development
(included as Attachment 1 to the attached Resolution), which is consistent with this vision,
and the goals and policies of the Policy Plan.

The purpose of the PUD is to secure a fuller realization of the Policy Plan than would
result from the strict application of present zoning district regulations and to: [a] promote
high standards in urban design; [b] encourage the development of exceptionally high
quality, mixed-use, medium to high intensity projects, while establishing regulations and
standards for uses with unique regulatory and design needs; and [c] ensure harmonious
relationships with surrounding land uses. In addition, the Euclid Avenue and E Street
Planned Unit Development (PUD) is intended to function as a set of planning and design

Page 2 of 21

ltem C and D - 2 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

principles, development regulations, and performance standards to guide and govern the
development of the 0.36-acre site. This PUD will facilitate the development of retail and
commercial services that will help achieve the City’s goals to economically revitalize and
aesthetically enhance the historic downtown area.

A PUD is comparable to a Specific Plan in that it sets development regulations that are
unique to a specific area; however, it is also unlike a Specific Plan in that a PUD is typically
intended to apply to a single development project or several interrelated development
projects that function together as a single, comprehensive project.

In conjunction with the proposed Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD, the Applicant is
requesting Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) and Certificate of Appropriateness
(File No. PHP19-009) approval to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant
(Starbucks Coffee), with a 480 square foot outdoor patio. On November 14, 2019, the
Historic Preservation Subcommittee considered the Certificate of Appropriateness
application and recommend Planning Commission approval. Subsequently, on November
18, 2019, the Development Advisory Board considered the Development Plan and
recommended that the Planning Commission approve the application, subject to the
recommended departmental conditions of approval included with the attached resolution.

[2] Planned Unit Development (File No. PUD18-001)

[a] Land Use and Development Regulations — Consistent with the requirements
of the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) zoning district, the proposed PUD allows for uses
intended to encourage retail, commercial and entertainment uses to service local
residents and other commercial users and attract pedestrian traffic within the downtown
area. The development regulations set forth in the PUD will govern the placement, height,
and bulk of permitted buildings and structures; to establish locational criteria for vehicular
access to site, parking and loading requirements, landscape, sign standards; and identify
historic preservation features to be incorporated and/or considered for development
plans. Buildings may be developed to a maximum height of 35 feet. Building setbacks are
limited to 0 to 3.5 feet from the Euclid Avenue right-of-way and 0 to 10 feet from the E
Street right-of-way, 0 feet from interior property line and 5 feet from rear (adjacent to
alley).

[b] Landscaping and Drainage — Landscaping elements provide significant
contributions to the aesthetic quality and character of the Euclid Avenue and E Street
PUD, with respect to public and private spaces. The PUD requires the use of “California
friendly,” low water using plant materials and a water efficient irrigation system with
weather-based controllers consistent with Assembly Bill 1881 and other applicable State
laws.

[c] Off-Street Parking — Parking requirements within the PUD will be governed by
the established parking requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code. In
addition, the Ontario Development Code allows parking to be analyzed using the

Page 3 of 21

ltem C and D - 3 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Downtown Ontario Parking Model. Based on the proposed floor plan and the existing land
uses on the block, through a parking analysis using the City’s Parking Model.

[d] Design Guidelines — Section 6.8 (Architectural Character\Details) of the Euclid
Avenue and E Street PUD is in compliance with the Ontario Downtown Design Guidelines
of the historic downtown area. The Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines were adopted
in 1998 to guide the physical revitalization of Ontario’s historic downtown. The Guidelines
provide architectural and design principals, as well as design concepts for downtown
districts. The project area is located within the Historic Retail District, a mixed-use area
with a focus on housing, commercial and retail. The design principles and desired
architectural features required by the PUD are derived from the architectural style and
elements set forth in Section 3.5.3 of the Downtown Design Guidelines and in Section
2A.4.3.2 Design Guidelines for Context Buildings in the 1950’s styles Subdistrict for new
in-fill development. The guidelines focus on key design elements such as storefront
modulation, entrances, roof design, mechanical equipment, building elements (cornices,
storefront frame, mid-floor panel, transom windows, bulkheads), awnings, materials and
colors.

[3] Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038)

[a] Site Design/Building Layout —The project site consist of two parcels (0.14 and
0.22 acres, total 0.36 acres) and currently developed with a parking lot on the southeast
area of the site, a commercial building (furniture store) on the north and a commercial
building on the west. A lot line adjustment will be required to be submitted to combine
both parcels into one parcel, prior to development of the site. Both the buildings are
proposed to be demolished to facilitate the redevelopment of the site. The Historic
Preservation Subcommittee (HPSC) reviewed commercial properties for eligibility listing
to the Ontario Register of Historic Places at their June 13, 2019 and August 8, 2019
meetings. The buildings are simple in design and do not possess any distinguishing
architectural features to be associated with a style. Additionally, there was no evidence
to suggest that the site was associated with a business, company, or individual that made
significant contributions to the City, State or Nation. Therefore, the HPSC determined that
properties did not meet the minimum designation criteria for landmark designation as
contained in the Development Code.

The 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee) and 480 square foot
outdoor patio (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached) is oriented with the building entry and
patio fronting onto Euclid Avenue. The patio will have a solid roof cover and be enclosed
by a 4-foot high decorative metal fence. A 3-foot landscape setback, behind the sidewalk,
has been provided along the Euclid Avenue frontage of the building. The drive-thru lanes,
pick-up window, and off-street parking facilities are oriented toward the rear building and
are not visible from Euclid Avenue. The drive-thru lane will be screened from view of a
public street through building orientation, landscaping, and low screen wall.

Page 4 of 21

ltem C and D - 4 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

[b] Site Access/Circulation — Primary vehicular access to the project site will be
from a driveway on E Street. A second separate driveway, to the west of the primary
driveway, is proposed for drive-thru lane access only. From E Street, the drive-thru lane
continues north, along the outer edge of the parking lot, looping east and south along the
west side of the building. The drive-thru lane will have enough stacking to accommodate
11 vehicles behind the drive-thru pickup window (a minimum of 6 stacking spaces is
required). The menu board and order canopy will be located within a landscape planter
along the north loop of the drive-thru lane. Primary pedestrian access will be from the
sidewalk, along the Euclid Avenue frontage, into the front entrance of the building. From
the rear parking lot, a secondary pedestrian and handicap access will be taken through
the patio entry door located south of the pick-up window across the exit lane of the drive-
thru window.

[c] Parking — As established in the Ontario Development Code, a fast food
restaurant use requires 13.3 parking stalls for every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area
(GFA) which includes the outdoor seating area up to 25 percent of GFA. Restaurants with
a drive-thru may be credited one space for each 24 lineal feet of drive-thru lane behind
the pickup window. As demonstrated in the Parking Summary Table below, project
development proposes 2,430 square feet of restaurant with a 480 square foot patio (20
percent of GFA) with a credit of 11 drive-thru spaces resulting in 21 required parking
spaces. The subject property will be developed with 12 on-site parking spaces, resulting
is parking shortage of 9 spaces. However, the Ontario Development Code allows parking
to be analyzed using the Downtown Ontario Parking Model. Based on the proposed floor
plan and the existing land uses on the block, a parking analysis was performed using the
Parking Model. The project site is located on Block 21 (Exhibit D: Parking Block 21) of the
parking model.

Parking Summary Table

Land Use Square Parking Ratio Required | Total Parking
Feet Parking Provided
Fast Food 2,460 13.3 spaces per 1,000 SF 32 12
Restaurant (0.0133/SF) of GFA (includes
480 SF outdoor seating area up to 25 percent 11
(Patio) of GFA). Restaurants with drive-thru (Drive-Thru
may be credited one space for each Spaces)

24 lineal FT of drive-thru lane behind
the pickup window

Total 2,940 32 23 (-9)

With the proposed development, the block will have 133 available parking spaces. Of the
total spaces, 92 are off-street and 41 are on-street. The analysis found adequate parking
availability to fulfill the requirement of 9 spaces (21 less the 12 on-site spaces). The tables
below illustrate available parking for the project site (Block 21) with the existing and
proposed uses.

Page 5 of 21

ltem C and D - 5 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Available Public Parking with Proposed Use: Day Hours (8:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m.)

8 a.m.

9 a.m.

10 a.m.

11 a.m.

12 p.m.

1p.m.

2 p.m.

3 p.m.

Block 21

59

44

38

34

25

23

19

31

Available Public Parking with Proposed Use: Evening Hours (3:00 p.m.-10:00 p.m.)

4 p.m.

5p.m.

6 p.m.

7 p.m.

8 p.m.

9p.m.

10 p.m.

Block 21

47

67

91

96

108

124

132

[d]

Architecture — An Art Deco inspired modern architectural style is proposed to

complement the historic buildings and context of the historic downtown area (see Exhibit
D-1 and D-2 —EXxterior Elevations, attached). The modern architectural style building is
proposed as a single story, with a two-story massing consistent with the existing buildings
south of the project site along Euclid Avenue. The height of building is 26 feet to the top
of the roof parapet and 31 feet to the top of the entry tower. The architectural character
of the building complements the various style of buildings within the historic downtown by
using similar proportions (scale and massing), building details and building materials.

The proposed project illustrates the type of high-quality commercial promoted within the
Downtown Mixed-Use District and the Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD. The building
design utilizes horizontal and vertical changes in the wall plane, with a vertical tower
element, vertical pilasters, color, and horizontal material banding. Architectural elements
proposed include:

e Entry tower element (31-feet in height) with an aluminum L- panel cornice (aged
bronze color) treatment with redwood horizontal banning below the eves of the
tower;

¢ 10-foot-high store front windows along frontage of the building;

e Decorative metal transom design element above the storefront windows with an
aluminum L- panel (aged bronze color) eyebrow awnings below transom;

e Redwood horizontal banding along the top portions of the building frontage,
wrapping back along the top of the north elevation and transitioning into vertical
column pattern along key areas of the rear (west) elevation;

o 127X24” decorative porcelain tile wainscot treatment, with bullnose cap, along the
base of the building;

o Vertical pilasters, with horizontal expansions joints, flanking the storefront
windows on the right and left sides;

e Covered aluminum L- panel awning (aged bronze color) over the drive-thru pick-
up that extends out 6 feet from the building plane.

e Aluminum L- panel (aged bronze color) exterior on the patio columns and along
the roof facia of the patio and a decorative Art Deco design 4-foot high metal
fencing (dark bronze) patio enclosure.

Page 6 of 21

ltem C and D - 6 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

[e] Landscaping —Landscaping elements provide significant contributions to the
aesthetic quality and character of Euclid Avenue and the historic downtown area, with
respect to public and private spaces. The proposed landscape plan design provides a
transition from adjacent uses, defines the circulation pattern on the lot, screens the drive-
thru/parking lot from the street, highlight entries, provide shade for parking, as well as the
patio area, and to soften the appearance of the building.

The project provides an overall landscape coverage of 21 percent, including a 5 to 7-foot
landscaped setback along the project’s E Street frontage and wrapping around the corner
to Euclid Avenue. The project will also include the construction of a 5-foot wide landscape
parkway along the frontage of E Street. Along Euclid Avenue, a 3-foot wide planter is
proposed along the base of the storefront windows, to help soften the building
appearance from the sidewalk (see Exhibit E—Landscape Plan, attached). In addition,
the frontage along Euclid Avenue will be improved with new sidewalk and tree wells. The
drive-thru lane will be flanked on each side by landscaping planters that range in width
from 3 to 10 feet. Along the eastern edge of the drive-thru, along to the west (rear)
elevation of the building, two 16-foot high metal trellises with vine planning is proposed
along the building plane. The drive-thru exit portion of the drive-thru lane will be screened
from public view by a combination 4-foot-high decorative wall and dense shrub planting
(Strappy-Leaf Screen Shrubs).

The proposed plant palette includes many varieties of low and medium shrubs and
groundcover to screen and enhance the areas around the patio, building and parking lot.
The tree palette (15 to 48 gallon in size) for the project includes:

Engelmann Oak and True Green Elm for parking lot shade trees;

Arbutus Standard and Chinese Pistache for patio shade trees;

Elegant Water Gum for perimeter trees;

Maidenhair Tree, Holly Oak and Chinkapin Oak for street parkway trees; and
Gold Medallion Tree, Western Redbud multi-trunk, and Tuscarora Crape Myrtle for
accent trees.

[f] Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to
serve the project. Additionally, the Applicant has submitted a completed Preliminary
Water Quality Management Plan (“PWQMP”) form, which established that the project is
listed under one of the categories subject to the requirements of the San Bernardino
County Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Permit (“MS4 Permit”); therefore, the
proposed development will be required to design and install Site Design Low Impact
Development (“LID”) Best Management Practices (“BMPs”) or Treatment Control BMPs
to treat a two-year, 24-hour storm event.

[4] Certificate of Appropriateness (File No. PHP19-009)

Page 7 of 21

ltem Cand D -7 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

The project site is located within the EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay) zoning district. Section
6.01.035(2), EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay Zoning District) of the Ontario Development
Code, requires Certificate of Appropriateness approval for any development project within
the Euclid Avenue Overlay Zoning District which requires Development Plan approval.
The Euclid Avenue Overlay Zoning District is intended to recognize, protect, and enhance
the visual character and quality of Euclid Avenue as a major scenic and historic resource
of the City and to identify and safeguard Euclid Avenue’s position on the National Register
of Historic Places. The intent of the Overlay Zoning District is not to create a false sense
of history with any new development along the Euclid Avenue Corridor, but rather to
ensure that new development does not cause an adverse effect on the character-defining
features of Euclid Avenue, such as the 60 foot wide landscaped median, rock curbs, and
King’s Standard lampposts. Additionally, all new construction should be compatible with
the surrounding developments in site design, massing and scale.

The Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties are used
to guide work on historic resources such as Euclid Avenue and have been adopted and
incorporated into the Ontario Development Code. The Standards state that alterations
will not destroy historic features and spatial relationships that characterize the historic
resource and that new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with
historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportion, and massing to protect the
integrity of the resource. The Downtown Design Guidelines were also used to guide the
project. The project site is located within the 1950’s Subdistrict of the Downtown Design
Guidelines. The 1950’s Subdistrict is predominately single-story commercial
development with a multi-family residence and a church that pre-date the 1950’s. The
1950’s were associated with the technological advances associated with the atomic age
but also built on the Art Deco and Art Moderne architecture of the previous decades. The
materials used during this time ranged from various metals such as aluminum, structural
glass, colored glazed bricks, or mosaic tiles.

The commercial properties within this subdistrict have been constructed in a variety of
styles from the 1950s including Modern Commercial, Googie and New Formalism. The
northeast corner and southeast corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street are developed with
gas stations constructed after the 1950’s. The proposed building features two-story
massing along the sidewalk, a flat roof, square columns, glass storefronts, cantilevered
awnings and a smooth plaster finish that are present on other buildings on the block. The
site design of the project is consistent with that of the surrounding area. The design, site
configuration and landscaping of the commercial building is appropriate in scale and
massing for the infill construction and will not detract or adversely affect the historic
character of Euclid Avenue or the proposed Downtown Historic District.

On November 14, 2019, the Historic Preservation Subcommittee (HPSC) reviewed the
project and recommended approval to the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission,
subject to conditions of approval and are attached to this report.

Page 8 of 21

ltem C and D - 8 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

The Planning Commission, serving as the Historic Preservation Commission, must
consider and clearly establish certain findings of facts for all Certificate of Appropriateness
applications. The proposed project is appropriate because:

(1) The proposed project will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect any significant architectural feature of the resource. While there are
no identified historic resources within the project site, the site has frontage along historic
Euclid Avenue and is within the proposed Downtown Historic District. Through
appropriate scale, massing and use of materials, the new construction is consistent with
the surrounding buildings and therefore, will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect any significant architectural feature of the resource.

(2) The proposed project will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect the historic character or value of the resource. While there are no
identified historic resources within the project site, the project has frontage along historic
Euclid Avenue and is within the proposed Downtown Historic District. The project
proposes appropriate building massing and scale, site design, building layout, and
architecture that is in keeping with the area.

(3) The proposed project will be compatible with the exterior character-
defining features of the historic resource. Although the project site is not considered
historic, the project site has frontage along historic Euclid Avenue and is within the
proposed Downtown Historic District. Through enhanced architectural elements in the
modern commercial architectural style the proposed project does not detract from the
character of Euclid Avenue and is compatible with the 1950’s Subdistrict and proposed
Downtown Historic District.

(4) The proposed project will not adversely affect or detract from the
character of the historic district. Through enhanced architectural elements in the
modern commercial architectural style, the proposed project does not detract from the
character of Euclid Avenue and is compatible with the 1950’s Subdistrict and proposed
Downtown Historic District.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are
as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

= QOperate in a Businesslike Manner
= Focus Resources in Ontario’s Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods

[2] Vision.

Page 9 of 21

ltem C and D - 9 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Distinctive Development:
= Commercial and Residential Development

» Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California.

[3] Governance.
Decision Making:

= Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices.

» G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan)

Land Use Element:

=  Goal LU1: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and price ranges
that match the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live and work in
Ontario and maintain a quality of life.

» LU1-1 Strategic Growth. We concentrate growth in strategic locations that
help create place and identity, maximize available and planned infrastructure, and foster
the development of transit.

» LU1-6 Complete Community: We incorporate a variety of land uses and
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers and visitors have a wide spectrum of
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario. (Refer to
Complete Community Section of Community Economics Element).

= Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses.

» LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character.

Page 10 of 21

ltem C and D - 10 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Community Economics Element:

= Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where
people choose to be.

» CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community.

» CEZ2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique,
functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the
region.

» CEZ2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of
equal or greater quality.

» CEZ2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep,
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property
protects property values.

Safety Element:

= Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards.

» S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading.

Community Design Element:

= Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among
residents, visitors, and businesses.

» CD1-1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of
our existing viable neighborhoods.

» CD1-2 Growth Areas. We require development in growth areas to be
distinctive and unique places within which there are cohesive design themes.

Page 11 of 21

ltem C and D - 11 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

» CD1-3 Neighborhood Improvement. We require viable existing residential
and non-residential neighborhoods to be preserved, protected, and enhanced in
accordance with our land use policies.

= Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces,
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct.

» CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to
convey visual interest and character through:

¢ Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and
proportion;

e A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting;
and

e Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality,
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style.

» CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural
systems, building materials and construction techniques.

» CD2-8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways,
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintenance of visibility and accessibility, and
use of lighting.

» CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits.

» CD2-11 Entry Statements. We encourage the inclusion of amenities,
signage and landscaping at the entry to neighborhoods, commercial centers, mixed use
areas, industrial developments, and public places that reinforce them as uniquely
identifiable places.

» CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all
development plans and permits.

Page 12 of 21

ltem C and D - 12 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

» CD3-1 Design. We require that pedestrian, vehicular, bicycle and
equestrian circulation on both public and private property be coordinated and designed
to maximize safety, comfort and aesthetics.

» CD3-3 Building Entrances. We require all building entrances to be
accessible and visible from adjacent streets, sidewalks or public open spaces.

» CD3-5 Paving. We require sidewalks and road surfaces to be of a type and
quality that contributes to the appearance and utility of streets and public spaces.

» CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics,
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings.

= Goal CDS5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties,
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional
public and private investments.

» CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly
and consistently maintained.

» CD5-2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual
maintenance of infrastructure.

HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The proposed project is categorically exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended,
and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, and meets all of the following conditions:
[11 The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all
applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and
regulations; [2] The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of
no more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; [3] The project
site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; [4] Approval of
the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or

Page 13 of 21

ltem C and D - 13 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

water quality; and [5] the Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities
and public services.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports.

Page 14 of 21

ltem C and D - 14 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

TECHNICAL APPENDIX:

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use:

. g General Plan . . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation Land Use
Site: Parking Lot/ Downtown Mixed-Use | MU-1 (Downtown N/A
' Commercial District Mixed Use)

) . Downtown Mixed-Use MU-1 (Downtown
North: Commercial District Mixed Use) N/A

) . Downtown Mixed-Use MU-1 (Downtown
South: Commercial District Mixed Use) N/A

] . Downtown Mixed-Use MU-1 (Downtown
East: Commercial District Mixed Use) N/A

. - Downtown Mixed-Use MU-1 (Downtown
West: Religious Assembly District Mixed Use) N/A
General Site & Building Statistics

Meet.
Item Proposed Min./Max. Standard e
Y/N
Project Area: 0.36
Lot/Parcel Size: 0.36
Building Area: 2,430 SF
Patio 480 SF

Page 15 of 21

ltem C and D - 15 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION

Page 16 of 21

Iltem C and D - 16 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN

DD

Kl
V

SITE PLAN KEY NOTES =
() cowmere uae
@

3} PR LA MONIE § o DR SSPARATE =T

(3 oo com - raren - sem meraL.

[
2
o
[ %)
E (05 it UHTE EVTER @\ PRI oW G0N HGT LZ85 M B o X
i) HIHI IHITE O PARK NG 4 ' N PARRNG Q
ﬁ T\ na AT cou o ND NET L 268 it B ot =]
& (@1 HEW BoARD 4D RELAED ITEHS = BraRmucks N ‘né
() reas- OGS SIE SEAL ] ]
23] @ . < o8
(3 oumnrio e sy sramirs = <&
slvacen = o] =p
B3 ommoriona skwacs = snmmucke 25
@ a gz
D = 2g
2 ¥
@ ) z =
o = i
53] w3
S
ST FLAR

R UR

FSCRLK

: SITE PLAN g3

EUCLID AVENUE (6 B g

Page 17 of 21

ltem Cand D - 17 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Exhibit C—FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS

———————

L
n [ — L -
D.T.W. “2-?:?.::'.:“
] |
OUTDOOR }
SEATINGAREA | =TT ———-——— oo
480 §Q. FT. } ‘ ”
f } } ats 2o %
s . o
P! S
= .
| W I | @
7 7 ) | N [ pr— 5
= E— SR L — IS :
e | E pre oy g
i R AR R S a0t b\ ;::‘
o A -
g gt
p 5 a9f
o o Zg
= Z 5z
FLOOR PLAN N =

Page 18 of 21

ltem C and D - 18 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Exhibit D-1—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AU LFaE 1D CRODVE
FFSRIDE", COLCR:

s e g e
N L ! / R It
cRobinr J / sow AL sER——
precpwegs A ; /s rzpupen myms — SeRrii i
EEZose e rET. e e ; / _ ok o .
- 1

BF G (TR

; 2 i
10F of aRamEr i 7 { omopaeper 0 Com ek EIRAFEL | )
% 4

4 / [ \
e = y 2xe hoeH
oomoeE s - N I D | EY
B "LITF Gzverr N -
& szl 2| 7|~ |7 27 7| 2 ERiEi || -
G ; 4 7
e AEd VA Ed g BB P i 7 ng AT e
7 L crevereour s s surmrr . : Lt SEL L b0 aRoOvE stoRRAC Ev LS A —
e " et B E U rE 5 BT sEeE oo Ay
oK DR - N U coLoR SULLNOSE TS A e & VNG L, EOLOR:
DK B L aa e S Faor ILE T AR BRONE

EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

P

5 54 €1 THRFTT

[ It REGUGSE TTTES

SR FLATER
ZCLER IO VAIGH e
A =CikRE

N DEEIE B0V 1G.E
EEGE (TTF.

=ROERT LHe

R

Lt =omcELAN

steel RELLIS
TLES. {TTF. YR

] \
LmLsEREPABIN b DRI
Helgs o L s T SECoRaThE
AT AN e

WEST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION

e

"z

EUCLID STARBUCKS CORNER

o g
Z =
= ik
A =
24U
=]
oo
20
=S
v &

=i

FLPVATIONS

SHEDAED =

oure oi 2z

onie P

=

N oEER

e
FERAT

MBI

Page 19 of 21

ltem C and D - 19 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report
File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Exhibit D-2—EXTERIOR ELEVATION EUCLID AVE. STREET PRESPECTIVE

STARBUCKS
511 N. EUCLID AVE.
ONTARIO, CA 91760

Page 20 of 21

Item C and D - 20 of 111



Planning Commission Staff Report

File Nos.: PUD19-001, PDEV19-038 and PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Exhibit E—LANDSCAPE PLAN

PLANT SCHEDULE

At T

Propsses
rarkuay

O GOO00K

E STREET

Appros
TR

fpprox. BFP
denlca lanatians

Lonmmcape Tabulstion:
Toxor sne. 15758 wF(BM
1o Bricate Sovis; 238 oa e (2188 of slsh
canima e, snown: 13 siais

ot s prave

. Agmnamenl sul teming 1o e rapart of oaia test il 0 s or laiscean
oL
pians shail meet the requrements of Gty of Dntoris's Londseape

ComgEien non srzured, ot amrng oees ors wnere e
o e e Thon S8 e 2 et
coep arec; for e Iniiriion 1o amirs area shan be

R —— Ao
orpost I Tomecdover tha woh Saices, bafare fractuing ' Gegir e aich. bon Sl
G T Bl v en arcs e a e AN
B iy =2 Serpat

Shmemom o T o Faseebion

 Piorting Sel

5. A1 choue—ground uifities sush 03 tronatormars snd bosclow devioes shal be acsesned
froen ks .

Trae aizen for an-alle freess 5% 45° box, 10K 367 box, J0% 247 box. ard 55% 5—galon

Tree speciex A mirmUT of 3% of trees shall be caffornia RaTve apecies.

& um e s

of & St area of ony milch. N shiiks ot groasd

EUCLID AVENUE

Proposed tree wells with 0

2456 Huminghire Way
Lo veme, Ch 91750~

Sytvia E. Lyons, Landseape Architect #1549
Teleprone: (308)59%
Emoil: ropolookdesignéverizan.ne:

ROYAL QAK DESIGN

PROJECT: EUCLID STARBUCKS CORNER

l ,

( PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE COLOR PLAN

Page 21 of 21

Iltem C and D - 21 of 111



RESOLUTION NO. PC

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE FILE NO. PUD19-001, A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
(EUCLID AVE AND E STREET) TO ESTABLISH DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS, DESIGN GUIDELINES AND INFRASTRUCTURE
REQUIREMENTS TO FACILITATE A COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT
ON 0.36 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF EUCLID AVENUE AND E STREET (110 WEST E. STREET AND 511
N. EUCLID AVENUE), WITHIN THE MU-1 (DOWNTOWN MIXED USE)
AND EA (EUCLID AVENUE OVERLAY) ZONING DISTRICTS, AND
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APNS: 1048-355-09 AND
10.

WHEREAS, Hannibal Petrossi ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the
approval of a Planned Unit Development, File No. PUD19-001, as described in the title of
this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 0.36 acre of land generally located on the
north west corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street at 110 West E. Street and 511 N. Euclid
Avenue within the MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay)
zoning districts, and is presently improved with a parking lot on the southeast area of the
site, a commercial building (furniture store) on the north and commercial building on the
west; and

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the MU-1 (Mixed
Use Downtown) zoning district and is developed with commercial land use. The properties
to the east, across Euclid Avenue, is within the MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning
district and is developed with two service stations. The property to the south is within the
MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning district and is developed with a commercial use.
The property to the west is within the MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning district, and is
developed with a commercial use; and

WHEREAS, the project site is located within the Center City Redevelopment
Project Area, established in 1983. While the practice of redevelopment was eliminated by
the State, the Center City Redevelopment Project Area Plan is still in effect, and
encourages the development of a high intensity, multi-use central business district. In
addition, The Ontario Plan (“TOP”) Policy Plan (General Plan) contains goals and policies
for the City’s Downtown and East Holt Mixed Use Areas, which further support the goals
of the Center City Redevelopment Project Area Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Center City Redevelopment Project Area Plan envisions
revitalization of the City’s Downtown Mixed-Use Area, in part, by infusing medium and

Iltem C and D - 22 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 2

high-density residential developments, and mixed-use developments, into the area. The
Policy Plan was established to further this vision and provides for the creation of low-rise
developments (up to 5 stories in height) consisting of a mixture of retail, office and
residential uses, for the purpose of creating identity and place in the Downtown Mixed-
Use Area; and

WHERAS, The Ontario Plan describes the Downtown Mixed-Use Area as an
intensive vertical and horizontal mixture of retail, office, and residential uses in a
pedestrian friendly atmosphere where the historic character is prominent. The most
intensive uses are envisioned along Euclid Avenue and Holt Boulevard. The Downtown
Mixed-Use Area is the historic heart of Ontario, which has a unique blend of historic,
social and cultural uses set in a compact street grid. The Downtown Mixed-Use Area
includes the Civic Center, City library and surrounding diverse residential neighborhoods
that provide increased demand for retail opportunities along Euclid Avenue, Holt
Boulevard and B Street; and

WHEREAS, the Policy Plan specifies that the Downtown Mixed-Use Area is to be
implemented through the approval of an Area Plan or Planned Unit Development (“PUD”)
prior to the development of properties within the Area. In compliance with this
requirement, the Applicant has submitted the Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit
Development (included as Attachment 1 to the attached Resolution), which is consistent
with this vision, and the goals and policies of the Policy Plan; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the PUD is to secure a fuller realization of the Policy
Plan than would result from the strict application of present zoning district regulations and
to: [a] promote high standards in urban design; [b] encourage the development of
exceptionally high quality, mixed-use, medium to high intensity projects, while
establishing regulations and standards for uses with unique regulatory and design needs;
and [c] ensure harmonious relationships with surrounding land uses. In addition, the
Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development (PUD) is intended to function as
a set of planning and design principles, development regulations, and performance
standards to guide and govern the development of the 0.36-acre site. This PUD will
facilitate the development of retail and commercial services that will help achieve the
City’s goals to economically revitalize and aesthetically enhance the historic downtown
area; and

WHEREAS, PUD is comparable to a Specific Plan in that it sets development
regulations that are unique to a specific area; however, it is also unlike a Specific Plan in
that a PUD is typically intended to apply to a single development project or several
interrelated development projects that function together as a single, comprehensive
project; and

Iltem C and D - 23 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 3

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the proposed Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD,
the Applicant is requesting a Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) and Certificate of
Appropriateness (File No. PHP19-009) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru
restaurant (Starbucks Coffee), with a 480 square foot outdoor patio; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000), hereinafter
referred to as "CEQA"; and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and make
recommendation to the City Council on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the
Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight
impacts of current and future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that
date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

Iltem C and D - 24 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 4

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds
as follows:

(1)  The administrative record have been completed in compliance with CEQA,
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(2)  The Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the
CEQA Guidelines, and meets all of the following conditions: [1] The Project is consistent
with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies, as
well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; [2] The proposed development
occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, and is substantially
surrounded by urban uses; [3] The project site has no value as habitat for endangered,
rare, or threatened species; [4] Approval of the Project will not result in any significant
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and [5] the Project site can be
adequately served by all required utilities and public services; and

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

(4)  The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the Planning Commission.

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as
the recommending authority for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based
on the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation,
at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element
of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is
not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code

Iltem C and D - 25 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 5

Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise,
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As
the recommending authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria
(ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table
2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the
PLANNING COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the
policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed PUD, or amendment thereto, is consistent with the
goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed project is
located within the Downtown Mixed Use land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use
Map, and the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. The development standards
and conditions under which the proposed project will be constructed and maintained, is
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan.

(2) The proposed PUD, or amendment thereto, would not be detrimental
to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City.
The City has required certain safeguards, and has required certain changes, which have
been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Planned Unit Development are
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare;
[iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will
be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full
conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The
Ontario Plan.

Iltem C and D - 26 of 111


http://ww2.cityofpasadena.net/zoning/P-8.html#CITY

Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 6

(3) In the case of an application affecting specific property(ies), the
proposed PUD, or amendment thereto, will not adversely affect the harmonious
relationship with adjacent properties and land uses. A thorough review and analysis
of the proposed project and its potential to adversely impact properties surrounding the
subject site was completed by City staff. As a result of this review, certain design
considerations were incorporated into the project to mitigate identified impacts to an
acceptable level, including the use of upgraded materials, the inclusion of certain
architectural design elements on building exteriors, intensified landscape elements, and
decorative hardscape elements.

(4) In the case of an application affecting specific property(ies), the
subject site is physically suitable, including, but not limited to, parcel size, shape,
access, and availability of utilities, for the request and anticipated development. In
preparing the proposed PUD, a thorough review and analysis of the proposed project and
the project site’s physical suitability for the proposed project was completed, including
analysis of the project size, shape, intensity of development, building height, building
setbacks, site access, site landscaping and drainage, fences and walls, vehicle
circulation, pedestrian connections, availability of mass transit, necessary street
dedication and easements, public right-of-way improvements, availability of utilities and
other infrastructure needs, off-street parking and circulation, building orientation and
streetscapes, architectural character, building materials and color, and site signage.

(5) The proposed PUD is superior to that which could be obtained through
the application of the Development Code or a specific plan. The proposed PUD
addresses aspects of the project that are specifically related to the Development Plan
proposed in conjunction with the PUD application, including necessary building setbacks,
site access points, off-street parking and site circulation, and architectural character.

SECTION &: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby
RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE the herein described Application,
subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports attached hereto
as “Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located

Iltem C and D - 27 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 7

at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 26th day of November 2019, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Jim Willoughby
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director and
Secretary to the Planning Commission

Iltem C and D - 28 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 8

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC19-XXX, was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on November 26, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Iltem C and D - 29 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PUD19-001

November 26, 2019

Page 9

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PUD19-001
Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development

(To follow this page)

Iltem C and D - 30 of 111



PREPARED BY:
HANNIBAL PETROSSI
1300 BRISTOL STREET NORTH, SUITE 270
NEWPORT BEACH, CA 92660
AND
CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Item C and D - 31 of 111



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(O | \NJ =101 ] 0 yf (o] Ve — N — 4
2. PUD OBJECTIVES =nnnmcccommn i i i i 5
2.1  The Ontario Plan (TOP) CONSISLENCY ----=-====n==nmmmm oo oo oo 5
2.2  Center City Redevelopment Plan Objectives -----------=-=-m-mmmmmmmmmm oo 14
2.3 PUD District and Plan Objectives -----=-=-=====mmmmmmmmmmem oo ------14
3. LAND USE PLAN ----nmmmceeeemmmmmcocceee S — S—— 15
3.1 Land Use Designation  ==-=====mmmmmm oo oo oo oo 15
3.2 Permitted Uses ---------=-===nmmmmmmmmmom oo mmmmmmmmmmmeeeeeee -------16
4. DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS -----xxzznnmmmmmmmmmmeeaenas S — 21
4.1 INEENSILY =mmmmm oo 21
4.2  Building Height ------=--=mmemmmmmmemeee- e 21
4.3 Building/Parking Setbacks -------------------=------ e 21
4.4 LandSCaping --=---===n=nmmmm e oo e e 22
4.5  Equipment/Mechanical Screening -------------- et e 23
4.6 Fencing and Walls ---------mmmmm oo 23
5. CIRCULATION AND PARKING ------mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmeeeeeeeeeen S — 24
5.1  Pedestrian Connections -------==-====-==-=-==--mnm--- mmmmmmmmmmmemoeoee- ------24
5.2  Public Right-Of-Way Improvements ---------========mmmmmmmommmmeeoeee ------24
5.3 INFrastrUCtUre =======m e mm e e e 24
54  Parking ------- s -25
5.5  Drive-Thru Facilities ---------=============----- e -25
6. DESIGN GUIDELINES ----------zmmmmmmmmmmmev U — 27
6.1  Site Design e e eee ---—---27
6.2 Building Orientation —----==-===mmmm e oo e 27
6.3 Building Street Side Setbacks------==-======mm e 27
6.4  Street Frontage and Parking Lots -------- e 27
6.5  Service and StOrage Area --------=--=mmmmmm o e 28
Page | 2

Iltem C and D - 32 of 111



6.6  Refuse CONaINErS--=-=n=n=nmnmmmmm oo 28
6.7 Sidewalks------- T 28
6.8  Architecture Character\Details----------=-=-==mmmmmmmmmmmcmcm oo ------28
6.9  Outdoor DiniNg Areas---------=-====m=mmmmmmmmmm oo ------31
6.10 Signs------------- e e e e e e 31
6.11  Lighting --------=nmnmmmm oo ------31
7. HISTORIC PRESERVATION --- S — S — 32
7.1 Historic Context and Background------------------- -- -32
7.2 Existing Historic Resources ------------=-=-=-=-=-=------ m-mmmmmmeeoeoes ----33
8. ADMINISTRATIOM =--xxxeeeeeemmnee — 33
8.1 Items Not Addressed IN PUD ------=-=nmnmmmm oo oo 33
8.2 Development Applications ------------=---=-=-=-=------- —mmmmmeoees ------33
8.3  Administrative EXCEPtiONS---=-====mmmmmmmmm oo 33
LIST OF EXHIBITS AND TABLE
EXHIBIT 1-1: PUD Location Map --- e 4
EXHIBIT 1-2: Downtown Mixed-UsSe Ara -----=-=-=-=nmnmmmmmm oo oo 5
EXHIBIT 3-1: Land Use District Map ------====-===mm oo oo oo ----16
EXHIBIT 5-1: Drive —Thru Street Oriented Site Plan Example -------==-====mmmmmmmmmmmm oo 26
TABLE 3-2: Permitted USES ------=-=nmmm e o oo 17
TABLE 4-1: Building(s) Sethacks-------===-==mm e 22

Page | 3

Iltem C and D - 33 of 111



1. INTRODUCTION

This document is intended to function as a set of planning and design principles, development
regulations and performance standards to guide and govern the development of 2 parcels located
on the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (see Exhibit 1-1, PUD Location Map).

The Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development (PUD) will replace the existing zone
district designations and zoning standards that apply to the affected properties. Unless otherwise
defined herein, definitions and interpretations contained in the Development Code shall apply.
City staff and private developers will rely on this PUD to determine whether precise plans for
development ("Development Plans™) will adequately meet the City's land use and design
objectives.

Exhibit 1-1: PUD Location Map

Page | 4

Item C and D - 34 of 111



2. PUD OBJECTIVES

2.1 THE ONTARIO PLAN (TOP) CONSISTENCY

The Ontario Plan Policy Plan (General Plan) designates the project area and surrounding properties
as MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use). The Ontario Plan describes the Downtown Mixed Use Area as
an intensive vertical and horizontal mixture of retail, office, and residential uses in a pedestrian
friendly atmosphere where the historic character is prominent. The most intensive uses are
envisioned along Euclid Avenue and Holt Boulevard. The Downtown Mixed Use Area is the
historic heart of Ontario, which has a unique blend of historic, social and cultural uses set in a
compact street grid. The Downtown Mixed-Use Area includes the Civic Center, City library and
surrounding diverse residential neighborhoods that provide increased demand for retail
opportunities along Euclid Avenue, Holt Boulevard and B Street. The densities and intensities of
the mixed use designation represented within The Ontario Plan (TOP) are the intended level of
anticipated development; however, individual projects may vary depending upon an approved
master plan, such as an area plan, specific plan, or planned unit development.

Exhibit 1-2: Downtown Mixed Use Area

fSst=——1—=3" T llme—E—=—=t===
x _l /! .
i ==

[I— | —
Fe——

The Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD is consistent with the principles, goals and policies contained
within the components that make up The Ontario Plan (TOP), including: (1) Vision, (2) Policy
Plan (General Plan), and (3) City Council Priorities. The policies furthered by this PUD are as
follows:

1. Vision
On February 13, 2007, the Ontario City Council adopted The Ontario Vision. The
central theme that motivates the Vision is — “A sustained, community-wide prosperity
which continuously adds value and yields benefits.” Everything the City does and every
action the City takes is done with the simple yet comprehensive theme in mind, from
the design quality of the built environment, to the intent of designing socio-economic

Page | 5

Iltem C and D - 35 of 111



programs, to the way in which its leaders govern as a community. In discussing a Vision
that would endure for the lifetime of The Ontario Plan (30 years or more), the City
Council recognized that there are four components that serve as the basic building
blocks that set the foundation for a unified and prosperous community. These
foundational blocks must be expressed and widely accepted throughout the Plan’s
lifetime. They are:

1. A Dynamic Balance that enables our community to confront the continued
dynamic growth of the region and technological change with confidence and a
sense of opportunity.

2. A Prosperous Economy that sustains the perception and reality of prosperity
across our entire community that positively impacts all the people of Ontario
and is broadly — though not uniformly — shared.

3. Distinctive Development that integrates our varied and diverse focal points,
districts, villages, and neighborhoods to provide a feeling of coherence without
sacrificing uniqueness.

4. Recognized Leadership in local governance that stimulates excellence and
serves to unify the people of Ontario in support of best practices in conducting
public endeavors.

Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD will implement the Ontario Vision in several ways
that will further the City’s desire to be a sustainable and prosperous community.

DISTINCTIVE DEVELOPMENT
Commercial and Residential Development

e The PUD will support, the City’s Civic Center area, new multifamily developments
and surrounding existing residential neighborhoods by providing the increased
demand for retail uses in a more pedestrian friendly atmosphere.

e The PUD will seek to ensure additional mix of retail uses in the downtown that will
provide a services to the surrounding community and Civic Center area.

Design Quality

e The PUD will require a well-designed project(s) that coveys visual interest and
character through:

> Appropriate scale and massing

> Architectural style and design that are complementary and appropriate for
its setting.

» The use of high quality materials that will create visual interest, high
quality, durable and appropriate for the architectural style.

» Appropriate Site Planning to ensure building orientation visibility from the
street, adequate number of driveways, sidewalks, building setbacks,

Page | 6

Iltem C and D - 36 of 111



parking lot orientation, adequate refuse storage areas and well-designed
street frontages.

Public Safety

e The PUD will ensure that proper exterior lighting standards be located and designed
to minimize direct glare beyond parking lots and future residential development/ or
mixed-use projects in the downtown area. In addition, per the Ontario Police
Department, to ensure that all lighting standards comply with the one-foot candle
illumination to provide a level of security and public safety within the retail center.

2. Policy Plan
LAND USE ELEMENT

LU1 Balance

Goal LU1: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match
the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and
maintain a quality of life.

The PUD, through the development of retail and commercial uses, will help provide jobs
to support the existing and new development within the surrounding downtown area.

Polices

e LU1-3 Adequate Capacity. We require adequate infrastructure and services for all
development.

The PUD, along with the future development entitlements for the site, will require
the necessary infrastructure to serve the site and provide the necessary right-of-
ways dedication for street widening.

e LU1-4 Mobility. We require development and urban design, where appropriate,
that reduces reliance on the automobile and capitalizes on multi-modal
transportation opportunities.

TOP Mobility Element System (Figure M-1) identifies Euclid Avenue as future Bus
Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridor. The PUD will seek to capitalize pedestrian traffic,
vehicle and future BRT ensuring a mix of retail and commercial uses and business
that will provide a variety of goods and service to the surrounding community and
the future Buss Rapid Transit (BRT) users.

Page | 7

Iltem C and D - 37 of 111



LU2 Compatibility

Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses.

The PUD, through land use regulations for permitted uses, have ensured that those
permitted uses allowed within the PUD are compatible with the downtown and surrounding
area and not allow those uses that may have potential to create adverse impacts to the
surrounding area.

Polices:

e LU2-1: Land Use Decisions: We minimize adverse impacts on adjacent properties
when considering land use and zoning requests.

The project area is zoned MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and requires that a PUD
be implemented for the project area to establish the development standards, land
use regulations and design guidelines. The permitted uses within PUD have been
established to provide retail and commercial uses to serve the downtown, Civic
Center and surrounding residential area. Careful consideration has been given to
ensure that permitted uses that may have potential to create adverse impacts to the
surrounding area are not allowed.

e LU2-2 Buffers. We require new uses to provide mitigation or buffers between
existing uses where potential adverse impacts could occur.

The PUD, through the site planning, requires the that future building(s) developed
on the site shall be placed along the frontage of Euclid Avenue to keep a buffer
between the future and exiting residential development to the west.

e LU2-4 Regulation of Nuisances. We regulate the location, concentration and
operations of potential nuisances.

The project area is zoned MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and requires that a PUD
be implemented for the project area to establish the development standards, land
use regulations and design guidelines. The permitted uses within PUD have been
established to provide retail and commercial uses to serve the downtown, Civic
Center and surrounding residential area. Careful consideration has been given to
ensure that permitted uses that may have potential to create adverse impacts to the
surrounding area are not allowed. Those uses with operations that may have
potential to create nuisances, will require discretionary approval through the
Conditional Use Permit process.

e LU2-5Regulation of Uses. We regulate the location, concentration and operations
of uses that have impacts on surrounding land uses. The project area is zoned MU-
1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and requires that a PUD be implemented for the project
area to establish the development standards, land use regulations and design
guidelines. The permitted uses within PUD have been established to provide retail

Page | 8

Iltem C and D - 38 of 111



and commercial uses to serve the downtown, Civic Center and surrounding
residential area. Careful consideration has been given to ensure that permitted uses
that may have potential to create adverse impacts to the surrounding area are not
allowed.

LU3 Flexibility

Goal LU3: Staff, regulations and processes that support and allow flexible response to
conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision.

e LU3-1 Development Standards. We maintain clear development standards which
allow flexibility to achieve our Vision.

To provide flexibility the densities and intensities of the mixed use designation
represented within TOP are the intended level of anticipated development;
however, individual projects may vary depending upon an approved master plan,
such as an area plan, specific plan, or planned unit development. The project area
is zoned MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and requires that a PUD be implemented
for the project area to establish the development standards, land use regulations and
design guidelines. The development standards within the PUD are intended to
ensure quality and appropriate development to achieve TOP Vision for well-
designed projects that covey visual interest.

COMMUNITY ECONOMICS ELEMENT

CE1 Complete Community

Goal CE1: A complete community that provides for all incomes and stages of life.

The permitted uses within PUD have been established to provide retail and commercial
uses to enhance the economic growth of downtown serve and surrounding residential
areas.

Policies:

e CE1-7 Retail Goods and Services. We seek to ensure a mix of retail businesses
that provide the full continuum of goods and services for the community.

The permitted uses within PUD have been established to provide retail and
commercial uses to serve the downtown and surrounding residential areas. These
retail and commercial uses that will help to revitalize the downtown area and
enhance its economic growth by much needed commercial and retail
opportunities.

Page | 9

Iltem C and D - 39 of 111


http://www.ontarioplan.org/vision/

CEZ2 Place-Making

Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where people
choose to be.

The PUD will seek to ensure a mix a retail and commercial uses that will provide a variety
of goods and services for the downtown and surrounding area. The PUD will seek to help
revitalize the downtown area and enhance its economic growth by creating retail and
commercial opportunities within a historic downtown setting. The PUD area will be
distinctive through the requirement of well-designed project(s) that respect and
complement the historic context of downtown consist with the Downtown Ontario Design
Guidelines (Adopted in 1998) through

» Appropriate scale and massing

» Architectural style and design that are complementary and appropriate to for its
setting.

» The use of high quality materials that will create visual interest, high quality,
durable and appropriate for the architectural style.

» Appropriate site planning to ensure building orientation visibility from the
street, adequate number of driveways and sidewalks. Building setbacks, parking
lot orientation, adequate refuse storage areas and well-designed street frontages.

MOBILITY ELEMENT

M3 Public Transit

Goal M3: A public transit system that is a viable alternative to automobile travel and meets
basic transportation needs of the transit dependent.

TOP Mobility Element System (Figure M-1) identifies Euclid Avenue as future Bus Rapid
Transit (BRT) Corridor. The PUD will seek to capitalize pedestrian traffic, vehicle and
future BRT ensuring a mix of retail and commercial uses and business that will provide a
variety of goods and service to the surrounding community and the future Buss Rapid
Transit (BRT) users. The PUD, along with the future development entitlements for the site,
will require the necessary infrastructure to serve the site and provide the necessary right-
of-ways dedication for street widening.

Polices:
e M3-4 Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridors. We work with regional transit agencies
to implement BRT service to target destinations and along corridors, as shown in

the Transit Plan.

TOP Mobility Element System (Figure M-1) identifies Euclid Avenue as future Bus
Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridor. The PUD will seek to capitalize pedestrian traffic,

Page | 10

Iltem C and D - 40 of 111


http://www.ontarioplan.org/exhibit-m-4-public-transit-plan/

vehicle and future BRT ensuring a mix of retail and commercial uses and business
that will provide a variety of goods and service to the surrounding community and
the future Buss Rapid Transit (BRT) users. The PUD, along with the future
development entitlements for the site, will require the necessary infrastructure to
serve the site and provide the necessary right-of-ways dedication for street
widening.

COMMUNITY DESIGN

CD1 Image & ldentity

Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and commercial
districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and
businesses.

e To provide flexibility the densities and intensities of the mixed use designation
represented within TOP are the intended level of anticipated development;
however, individual projects may vary depending upon an approved master plan,
such as an area plan, specific plan, or planned unit development. The project area
is zoned MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and requires that a PUD be implemented
for the project area to establish the development standards, land use regulations and
design guidelines. The development standards within the PUD are intended to
ensure quality and appropriate development to achieve TOP Vision for well-
designed projects that covey visual that respect and complement the historic context
of downtown.

Policies:

e CD1-2 Growth Areas. We require development in growth areas to be  distinctive
and unique places within which there are cohesive design themes.

The PUD will seek to ensure a mix a retail and commercial uses that will provide a
variety of goods and services for the downtown and surrounding area. The PUD
will seek to help revitalize the downtown area and enhance its economic growth by
creating retail and commercial opportunities within a historic downtown setting.
The PUD area will be distinctive through the requirement of well-designed
project(s) that respect and complement the historic context of downtown consist
with the Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines (Adopted in 1998) through:

» Appropriate scale and massing

» Architectural style and design that are complementary and appropriate to
for its setting.

» The use of high quality materials that will create visual interest, high
quality, durable and appropriate for the architectural style.

» Appropriate site planning to ensure building orientation visibility from the
street, adequate number of driveways and sidewalks. Building setbacks,

Page | 11

ltem C and D - 41 of 111



parking lot orientation, adequate refuse storage areas and well-designed
street frontages.

e CD1-4 Transportation Corridors. We will enhance our major transportation
corridors within the City through landscape, hardscape, signage and lighting.

TOP Mobility Element System (Figure M-1) identifies Euclid Avenue as future Bus
Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridor. The PUD will seek to capitalize pedestrian traffic,
vehicle and future BRT ensuring a mix of retail and commercial uses and business
that will provide a variety of goods and service to the surrounding community and
the future Buss Rapid Transit (BRT) users. The PUD, along with the future
development entitlements for the site, will require the necessary infrastructure to
serve the site and provide the necessary right-of-ways dedication for street
widening.

CD2 Design Quality

Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and
developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct.

Polices:

e (CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to convey
visual interest and character through:

e Duilding volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and
proportion;

e atrue architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and elevation
through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its
setting; and

e exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality,
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style.

The PUD will seek to help revitalize the downtown area and enhance its economic
growth by creating retail and commercial opportunities within a historic downtown
setting. The PUD area will be distinctive through the requirement of well-designed
project(s) that respect and complement the historic context of downtown consist
with the Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines (Adopted in 1998) through:

> Appropriate scale and massing

» Architectural style and design that are complementary and appropriate to
for its setting.

» The use of high quality materials that will create visual interest, high
quality, durable and appropriate for the architectural style.

» Appropriate site planning to ensure building orientation visibility from the
street, adequate number of driveways and sidewalks. Building setbacks,

Page | 12

ltem C and D - 42 of 111



parking lot orientation, adequate refuse storage areas and well-designed
street frontages.

e (CD2-3 Commercial Centers. We desire commercial centers to be distinctive,
pedestrian friendly, functional and vibrant with a range of businesses, places to
gather, and connectivity to the neighborhoods they serve.

The permitted uses within PUD have been established to provide retail and
commercial uses to serve the downtown, Civic Center and surrounding residential
area. The PUD will seek to capitalize on the downtown location by ensuring a mix
a retail and commercial uses that will easily accessed by pedestrians through
downtowns unique grid street pattern design.

e (CD2-5 Streetscapes. We design new and, when necessary, retrofit existing streets
to improve walkability, bicycling and transit integration, strengthen connectivity,
and enhance community identity through improvements to the public right of way
such as sidewalks, street trees, parkways, curbs, street lighting and street furniture.

The PUD, along with the future development entitlements for the site, will require
the necessary infrastructure to serve the site and provide the necessary right-of-
ways dedication and/or improvements.

e (CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials and
designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits.

The PUD development standards will ensure landscape design and materials will
be used to enhance the aesthetics of structure(s), create and define public and
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits.

e (CD2-10 Surface Parking Areas. We require parking areas visible to or used by the
public to be landscaped in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally
sensitive manner. Examples include shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off
capture and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking
field.

The PUD development standards will ensure water conservation be provided
through low water using plant materials, hydro zones, water efficient irrigation and
weather based controllers. Landscaped areas may be used for storm water
infiltration through vegetated swales, retention basins, or dry wells as needed with
the use of appropriate planting materials. Broad canopy shade trees will be used to
reduce heat gain on buildings, paving and parking areas.

Page | 13

Iltem C and D - 43 of 111



City Council Priorities

Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy

Maintain the Current High Level of Public Safety

Operate in a Businesslike Manner

Pursue City's Goals and Objectives by Working with Other Governmental

Agencies

= Focus Resources in Ontario's Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods

= |nvest in the City's Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm Drains and
Public Facilities)

= Encourage, Provide or Support Enhanced Recreational, Educational, Cultural and
Healthy City Programs, Policies and Activities

= Ensure the Development of a Well Planned, Balanced, and Self-Sustaining

Community in Ontario Ranch

2.2 CENTER CITY REDEVELOPMENT PLAN OBJECTIVES

The Center City Project Area encompasses the historic Euclid Avenue District, as well as
East Holt Boulevard. Ontario’s City Hall and surrounding Civic Center, Senior Center,
Ovitt Family Community Library, the Museum of History and Art, Ontario Town Square,
and the Law School of the University of La Verne are all within the Center City Project
Area. Development is designed to create an immediate and positive identity transforming
the area into a comfortable place to stroll and be seen.

The current goals of the Center City Project include:

= Encourage development of a high intensity, multi-use central business district and
surrounding neighborhoods that maximize the economic productivity of the
commercial areas and maximize the housing opportunities of the residential areas.

= Apply innovative mixed use urban design that maintains a flexible approach to allow
for changing opportunities over a long-term, phased revitalization effort.

= Create a healthy and exciting urban environment, with the ability to work, live, shop
and play within a small area, combine daytime and nighttime use and conserve energy
and resources through mixed use development.

= Cluster activity centers within walking distance of each other, supported by a pedestrian
network that provides an enjoyable pedestrian flow.

2.3 PUD DISTRICT PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development (PUD) is intended to function as a set
of planning and design principles, development regulations, and performance standards to guide
and govern the development of the 0.36 acre site. This PUD will facilitate the development of

Page | 14

Iltem C and D - 44 of 111



retail and commercial services that will help achieve the City’s goals to economically revitalize
and aesthetically enhance the historic downtown area.

The objectives of the PUD District are to:

Promote development projects that are consistent with the land use/downtown
revitalization objectives of the Center City Redevelopment Project area.

Promote the revitalization the downtown area and enhance its economic growth by creating
retail uses within a historic downtown setting.

Promote community retail uses to meet the needs of the downtown residents, Civic Center
visitors and surrounding residential neighborhoods.

Promote the development of outdoor patio as part of the commercial development
providing for social and pedestrian interaction.

Orient commercial buildings along the frontage of Euclid Avenue to create an accessible
urban edge and sense of arrival and appropriate relationships among new with existing
adjacent land use.

Provide for a circulation network which promotes pedestrian walkways and bicycle
activity as alternative modes of travel while also providing for safe and efficient
movement of automobile travel through the project site.

Incorporate a landscape to enhance and compliment the urban environment along Euclid
Avenue and E Street.

3. LAND USE PLAN

3.1 LAND USE DESIGNATION

This PUD establishes the MU-1 Commercial district and the land use designations, as shown on
Exhibit 3-2, Permitted Use Table, for the project limits. Retail, commercial and entertainment uses
are strongly encouraged along the Euclid Avenue corridor to service local residents and other
commercial users, and attract pedestrian traffic within the downtown area.

Page | 15

Iltem C and D - 45 of 111



Exhibit 3-1: Land Use District Map

l
-‘ - - \
F ST

— N /
AL

LAUREL AV
EUCLID AV

L

I 1T
=y

Mixed Use 1 (MU-1) Commercial

Project Area:
Adjacent Zoning: - Mixed Use 1 (MU-1) Downtown Mixed Use
] Low Intensity Office (OL)

High Density Residential (HDR-45)

3.2 PERMITTED USES

Table 3.2 (Permitted Uses) shows the allowable land use, activity or facility permitted within the
Mixed Use 1 (MU-1) Commercial District of the Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD. A land use not
listed in Table 3.2 shall be considered a prohibited land use. For a land uses similar to those listed
in Table 3.2, but not expressly stated in the PUD, the Planning Director or her/his designee has the
authority to make a determination of applicability of the similar land uses.

Page | 16

Iltem C and D - 46 of 111



MEDICAL

Animal Hospital/Veterinarian NP
Medical Office NP
MEDICAL OFFICE/FAMILY CLINIC

Pharmacies and Drug Stores P
Pharmacies and Drug Stores with Drive-thru Facilities P Note 3
Industrial Clinic NP
PUBLIC FACILITIES

Police / Fire Station P
Police Storefront / Substation P
RELIGIOUS

Religious Assembly C

NON-PROFIT/SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS 501 (C) (3)
(PER DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTION 9-101305 N)

Campaign Offices P

Charitable, Philanthropic, Service and Other Non-Profit Organization Offices P

Charitable Distribution Services (i.e. Food Banks, etc.) NP

ALCOHOL

Alcoholic Beverage Sales for Off-Premise Consumption C

Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption GFA than 10,000 SF A/C Note 2
Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption GFA more than 10,000 SF C Note 2
Liguor Store NP
AUTOMOBILE RELATED SERVICES

Automotive Parts and Accessories Stores (Retail Sales Only) NP

Automotive Services (i.e. Tune-Up, Emission Tests, Batteries, etc.

No use of impact wrenches or other equipment that could create noise impacts.) NP

Minor Repair (i.e. Brakes, tires, radiators, electrical, etc.) NP

Gas Stations NP

Tire Stores NP

Car Wash — Full NP

TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES

Page | 17

Iltem C and D - 47 of 111



Wireless Telecommunications Facility (Refer to the Development Code)

DAY CARE FACILITIES

Commercial Daycare

EATING DRINKING PLACES AND FOOD SERVICES

Restaurants (Sit Down / Full Service)

Banquet Facilities in conjunction with a restaurant

Bar/Cocktail Lounge

Fast Food

Fast Food with Drive-thru Facilities

U|T|O|T|T

Note 3

ENTERTAINMENT AND RECREATION

Live Entertainment (in conjunction with restaurant use only) — GFA than 10,000 SF

Live Entertainment (in conjunction with restaurant use only) — GFA 10,000 or more SF

03

OFFICES

Administrative, Professional, and Other Offices

o

RETAIL

Antigue Stores

Art Galleries and Art Supply Store

Beauty Supply Store

Book Stores

Hardware Store

Camera and Photographic Supply Store

Cigar and other Tobacco Products Store

Clothing and Accessory Stores

Computer and Home Electronic Stores

Florist

Furniture Stores

General Merchandise Stores

Department Store

Discount Variety Store

Guns and Ammunition Stores

Hobby, Toy and Game Store

Home Appliance Store

©|v|5|v|v|v|0|v|v|T|5|T|T|0|T|T|T

Page | 18

Iltem Cand D - 48 of 111



Jewelry Store

Luggage and Leather Goods

Music and Video Stores

Office Supply, Stationery & Gift Stores

Pawnshop / Pawnbroker

Pet and Pet Supply Store

Z
'U.U'U'U'U'U

Shoe Store

FOOD AND BEVERAGE STORES

Bakery

Delicatessen

Convenience Market

Grocery Store

Specialty Food Stores

T|(T|T0|T|T

SERVICES

Advertising Agency

Data Processing Services

Exterminating Service

Equipment Sales and Rentals

Photography Studio

Photocopying and Duplicating Services

T|(U|T|T0|T|T

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Banks, Credit Unions and other Depository Institutions

Banks, Credit Unions and other Depository Institutions with Drive-thru Facilities

Note 3

Check Cashing

Check / Payday Advance

Money Transmitting

Other Financial Services

PERSONAL SERVICES

Barber Shop and Beauty / Nail Salon

Dry Cleaners

Dry Cleaners with Drive-Thru Facilities

Laundry - Commercial

P
P
P Note 3
C

Page | 19

Iltem C and D - 49 of 111



Pet Grooming P
Tailor P
Travel Agency P
REPAIR SERVICES

Computer, Home Electronics, and Small Home Appliances NP
(when ancillary to another use)

Electrical Equipment NP
Jewelry and Watches / Clocks P
Locksmith / Key Shop P
RESIDENTIAL

Multiple Family Dwellings NP
Second Dwelling Units NP
Senior Housing Developments NP
Single-Family Dwellings NP
Single Room Occupancy Facilities NP
Supportive Housing NP
Work/Live Units NP

Notes

1. In the MU-1 zoning district, live entertainment is administratively permitted only in conjunction with a bona fide

restaurant or alcoholic beverage manufacturer’s tasting room.

2. See Ontario Development Code Section 5.03.025 (Alcoholic Beverage Sales): Alcoholic beverage sales is administratively permitted

only in conjunction with a bona fide restaurant or alcoholic beverage manufacturer’s tasting room.

3. See Section 4.1.XX Drive Thru Standards of this PUD

Page | 20

Item C and D - 50 of 111



4. DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

This section sets forth the standards to govern the placement, height, and bulk of permitted
buildings and structures; to establish locational criteria for vehicular access to site, parking and
loading requirements, landscape, sign standards; and identify historic preservation features to be
incorporated and/or considered for development plans. Unless otherwise stated herein, all
development within the project area shall meet the applicable standards and requirements of the
Ontario Development Code.

4.1 INTENSITY

Commercial retail uses within the mixed-use district are allowed a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of up
to 1.0. Floor Area Ratio is calculated by dividing the building square footage by the net lot area
(after right-of-way dedications).

4.2 BUILDING HEIGHT

The buildings within the MU-1 Commercial district area shall be a maximum of 35 feet or
consistent with scale and height of the adjacent buildings along Euclid Avenue or E Street.

4.3 BUIDING\PARKING SETBACKS

All setbacks shall be measured from the ultimate property lines after all dedications to develop
streets to the ultimate right-of-way width (Table 4.1, Building Setback(s)). Placement of buildings,
structures, fences, walls, utility facilities, yards, etc. will be based on the street rights-of-way and
property line dimensions.

Page | 21

Iltem C and D - 51 of 111



Table 4-1: Building(s) Setbacks

MU-1 Commercial District Development Standards
Requirements MU-1 Additional Requirements
Commercial

District

Building Development Standards

1. Euclid Avenue Street Setback 0 Feet Minimum Building  Architectural features/
3.5 Feet Maximum awnings may encroach into the right-
of-way, subject to the California
Building Code requirements.

2. E Street Setback 0 Feet Minimum Building  Architectural features/
10 Feet Maximum awnings may encroach into the right-
of-way, subject to the California
Building Code requirements.

3. Interior Side Property Setbacks 0 Feet Minimum Setback areas shall be landscaped
4. Rear Property Setbacks 5 Feet Minimum
Site Development Standards
1. Minimum Landscape Coverage 10%
2. Minimum Parking Space or 5 feet Setback areas shall be landscaped.

Drive Aisle Setbacks to Street
Property Line

3. Minimum Parking Space or 5 Feet Setback areas shall be landscaped.
Drive Aisle Setbacks to Interior
Side Property Lines

4. Minimum Parking Space or 2.5 feet Setback areas shall be landscaped.
Drive Aisle Setbacks to Rear
(Alley) property line

5. Minimum Parking Space or 5 Feet Setback areas shall be landscaped.
Drive Aisle to buildings, walls or
fences

4.4 LANDSCAPING

Landscaping elements provide significant contributions to the aesthetic quality and character of
the Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD, with respect to public and private spaces. Detailed
landscape/irrigation plans shall be included in the Development Plan submittals for the PUD. The
plan shall specify all landscape and hardscape elements for the development plan site and indicate
how the improvements will coordinate with the other sites within the PUD. The landscape plans
shall show the location of all ground mounted utility structures such as transformers, back flow
prevention devices, trash enclosures, and HVAC equipment and indicate the methods for screening
these items. All utility structures and equipment shall be screened from view of the public streets
and adjacent development.

Page | 22

Iltem C and D - 52 of 111



Water conservation shall be provided through low water using plant materials, hydro zones, water
efficient irrigation and weather based controllers. Landscaped areas may be used for storm water
infiltration through vegetated swales, retention basins, or dry wells as needed with the use of
appropriate planting materials. Broad canopy shade trees shall be used to reduce heat gain on
buildings, paving and parking areas. The plan shall identify all existing trees on site and preserve
them where possible. The landscape design shall meet the requirements of the Landscape
Development Standards outlined in the Ontario Development Code and shall create well-
functioning spaces within a sustainable design.

Landscaping shall be used on the site to show transition from adjacent uses, define a circulation
pattern on the lot, screen the parking lot from the street, highlight entries, provide shade for parking
as well as outdoor seating areas, and to soften the appearance of the building.

Developments shall comply with the following:

e The minimum amount of on-site landscaping, including defined plazas and
courtyards, shall equal 15 percent of the net lot area.

e Ataminimum, landscaping shall include 15-gallon trees planted no more than 20
FT on center, within minimum 5-FT wide planters.

e A suitable plant material (grasses, ivy, etc.) should be used as ground cover in
planters.

Street trees shall comply with the variety, size, and spacing as directed by the City of Ontario
Master Street Tree Plan. A minimum of fifteen (15%) percent of the site shall have landscaping,
not including right-of-way or paved areas.

4.5 EQUIPMENT AND MECHANICAL SCREENING

All roof mounted and ground mounted equipment shall be fully screened from view of the public
street and adjacent developments. The location of items shall be designed to allow screening with
landscape materials, walls, architectural features, parapet walls, etc. Screening shall be designed
to be integrated into the design of the project.

Ladders for roof access shall be mounted on the inside of the building or shall be completely
concealed from public view.

4.6 FENCES AND WALLS

Fences and walls within the project area shall be made of decorative materials which are
compatible with the overall architectural character of the development within the PUD area. All
fences and walls shall be in scale with the development to fulfill such needs as screening and
security.

Fences, walls and hedges within the project area shall comply with Engineering Corner Sight
Distance Standards and other applicable standards. All decorative walls, monuments and/or other
similar features shall not encroach into the public street right-of-way.

Page | 23

Iltem C and D - 53 of 111



Walls shall be limited to a maximum of four (4) feet in height within any street frontage areas.
Interior or rear walls shall be a maximum of six (6) feet in height.

Walls shall be an integral design of the building architecture and feature similar finished material,
reveal lines, trim, etc.

5. CIRCULATION, PARKING & INFRASTRUTURE

Access to the site will be limited to E Street or the western ally adjacent to the PUD area. Access
onto Euclid Avenue will not be permitted.

5.1 PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIONS

Pedestrian connections shall be provided to each building from the public street within the PUD
site. The Mixed-Use Commercial land use district shall also provide pedestrian pathways to
connect all of the commercial developments as well as pedestrian pathways from the corner
promoting public use of the corner patio.

5.2 PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IMPROVEMENTS

The public right-of-way shall be improved with each proposed development. The public right-of-
way improvements required are to include, but are not limited to the following: street pavement,
curb & gutter, parkway landscaping, parkway irrigation, public sidewalk, traffic signing and
striping, street lights, bus stop, bus shelter and amenities. The extent of the required improvements
shall be determined for each development plan. At a minimum, the improvements shall incorporate
all items along the street frontages of the properties to be developed with proper transitioning if
the entire block frontage is not being installed with a particular development.

5.3 INFRASTRUCTURE

There is an existing water line within E Street that shall serve the PUD site. Wastewater flows for
the PUD site will be designed to use an existing 8 inch sewer line located within alley at the rear
(west) of the project site.

On-site stormwater drainage facilities shall be provided to capture and infiltrate a 2-yr, 24-hour
storm event, consistent with the San Bernardino County Stormwater Program's Water Quality
Management Plan (WQMP) requirements for new development projects. Stormwater capture and
infiltration facilities may include the utilization of vegetated swales, depressed landscaped basins,
pervious concrete pavement or underground stormwater retention/infiltration vaults. All building
roof and paved area runoff shall be directed into depressed landscaped swales, trenches or basins,
within the development, in order to comply with the requirement to capture and infiltrate the 2-yr,
24-hour storm event runoff.

The Applicant/Developer will be responsible to design and construct street improvements, along
property frontage of Euclid Avenue and E Street, in accordance with conditions issued by City’s
Engineering Land Development Division. These, and all other street improvements required

Page | 24

Iltem C and D - 54 of 111



herein, shall include, but not limited to, concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, LED street lights,
signing and striping, and parkway landscaping.

Existing Street light fixtures, along Euclid Avenue and E Street will be required to be replaced
with City-approved LED equivalent fixtures. Refer to the Traffic and Transportation Design
Guidelines for LED fixture requirements. The type of street lighting will be determined at the
time of development.

5.4 PARKING

Parking shall be provided on-site at the rates required by the City of Ontario Development Code.
In addition, the Downtown Ontario Parking Model may be used to satisfy the on-site parking
requirement. Parking lots shall be not be visible from the Euclid Avenue view corridor.

5.5 DRIVE-THRU FACILITIES

The following standards shall govern the establishment and operation of drive-thru facilities, and
are intended to result in facilities that are well designed, encourage pedestrian activity, and enhance
the commercial areas in which they located.

Drive-thru facilities shall be permitted for those uses identified in Exhibit X Permitted Use Table
and where other uses deemed have been appropriate by the Zoning Administrator pursuant to the
procedures established in Section 1.02.010 (Interpretations and Land Use Determinations) of the
City of Ontario Development Code.

Uses incorporating drive-thru facilities shall comply with the following:

= No minimum lot area is required. The project must meet all setback, landscaping
and parking requirements.

= The lot coverage shall exceed 40 percent of the lot area.

= The minimum floor area for businesses incorporating a drive-thru shall be 2,400SF
(including enclosed floor area within a building and outdoor seating areas), with a
minimum interior floor area of 2,000 SF.

= A minimum 25-FT landscaped setback shall be maintained between any drive-thru
facility, including drive-up windows, drive-thru lane and menu/order stations, and
any adjacent residentially zoned property or residential land use.

= The building shall maintain the minimum building and landscape setback prescribe
in Table 4.1 (Building Setbacks). Design elements, such as trellises, may encroach
into the setback when well integrated with the landscape.

= Decorative low garden walls shall be provided to screen the parking lot and drive-
thru aisle from view of the public street, where necessary.

= Drive-thru lanes in conjunction with restaurants shall have a minimum length of
144 FT, measured from entry to pick-up window, which accommodates a minimum
of 6 vehicles.

Page | 25

Iltem C and D - 55 of 111



= Drive-thru lanes shall have a minimum width of 11 FT on straight sections and 12
FT on curved sections.
= Drive-up windows shall feature roofs, trellises or metal awning over drive-up
windows. Posts supporting roofs or trellises should be substantial in appearance
and fully integrated into the architecture of the building. The stacking area for
drive-up windows should be screened from the street through a combination of low
walls and landscaping.

Buildings incorporating drive-thru facilities shall be orient toward the street, as exemplified in
Figure 5.03-1 (Street-Oriented Example Site Plan), top right. Drive-thru lanes, pick-up windows,
and off-street parking facilities shall be oriented toward the rear yard and not visible from Euclid
Avenue. Drive-thru lanes shall be screened from view of a public street through building
orientation, landscaping, low screen walls, and trelliswork.

Each developed site shall not have more than one drive approach per street frontage. Drive-thru
ingress and egress aisles shall not take direct access from Euclid Avenue, but instead shall take
access from E Street, ally or a parking area or on-site drive aisle, as exemplified Exhibit 5-1 (Street-

Oriented Site Plan Example).

Exhibit 5-1: Street Oriented Site Plan Example

E STREET

§ ’ VE"W S //7/
/// 4 ','/, 7 (/
/ / P / 7 a4
S STARBYUCKS . S
T AWSQAT, p &

P / & V"
/ P e
I 7, I {

==

S e R s

EUCLID AVENUE

Pedestrian walkways should not intersect drive-thru lanes; however, in the event this occurs,
adequate visibility for pedestrians and vehicles shall be provided, and pedestrian crossings shall

be clearly marked with signs.

Page | 26

Iltem C and D - 56 of 111



Minimum 3-FT wide planters containing a combination of hedges and low walls shall be used to
screen drive-thru lanes from view of public streets.

6. DESIGN GUIDELINES

The following design guidelines are intended as a reference to assist the designer in understanding
the City’s goals and objectives for high quality commercial development. The guidelines
compliment the mandatory development standards contained in Subsection 4 (Development
Regulation) above.

Design principles and examples of desired styling elements to guide the development within the
downtown are set forth in the Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines (“Guidelines”), adopted by
the Ontario City Council on August 18, 1998. The design guidelines in this PUD are general in
nature and may be interpreted with some flexibility in their application to specific projects. The
guidelines will be utilized during the City’s development review process to encourage the highest
level of design quality, while at the same time providing the flexibility necessary to encourage
creativity on the part of the project designer(s). As such, some variations from the Guidelines are
permitted, provided that the integrity of the urban design and historic preservation principles is not
compromised. To safeguard the integrity of the historic district, a Certificate of Appropriateness
is required for development.

6.1 SITE DESIGN

The site design shall minimize pedestrian/vehicle conflicts by creating opportunities for
courtyards, plazas, outdoor dining, and landscaped pathways that promote safe and convenient
pedestrian movement

6.2 BUILDING ORIENTATION

Buildings should be oriented towards Euclid Avenue. Frontages should be enhanced with entry
elements, interesting architecture, enhanced materials, and pedestrian scale to provide connection
between the development and the street. Windows and entries should face the street avoiding blank
walls dominating public views. Stores with entries not visible from the street may be oriented
towards pedestrian open space. The building entries may be located on the side of the building so
long as strong pedestrian connection is maintained through wide walkways, enhanced pavers,
plazas, appropriately scaled lighting and/or other similar features. Rear entrances, if needed,
should be secondary in nature.

6.3 BUILDING STREET SIDE SETBACKS

The sides of buildings along street edges shall be landscaped within the setback to soften the
building’s appearance as well as designed with windows or design elements.

6.4 STREET FRONTAGE AND PARKING LOTS

Parking lots should generally be placed away from streets. Street frontages shall be broken up with
buildings, landscaping, plazas, and other pedestrian features. Continuous parking lots along the

Page | 27

Iltem C and D - 57 of 111



street frontage should be avoided. Any parking along street edges shall be setback with a
landscaped buffer to minimize the dominant feeling of the automobile along the street. Continuous
parking stalls may be interrupted by landscaped islands no more than 10 stalls apart. Parking lots
are encouraged to be interconnected rather than separated for each building. Separated parking lots
encourage customers to drive from store to store. Parking lots shall not be visible form the Euclid
Avenue corridor.

6.5 SERVICE AND STORAGE AREAS

Loading areas and storage areas are to be located behind or to the side of buildings siting onto
secondary access and not on Euclid Avenue or E Street. These features must be screened with
walls and landscaping as much as possible from public view of streets, residences, and pedestrian
walkways. Loading areas and storage areas should not conflict with pedestrian walkways.

6.6 REFUSE CONTAINERS

Refuse containers and equipment shall be easily accessed by service vehicles. Service facilities
such as trash enclosures, loading zones and yard areas shall be designed, located and oriented to
have a minimal visual impact on the development within the PUD area. Trash enclosures shall be
designed to coordinate with the architecture, colors and materials of the style of the development
and shall be located to provide adequate access for trash pickup without encroaching on access
drives or landscaped areas. Trash enclosures shall be designed and constructed with a solid roof
cover which shall also be designed to match the architecture of the development.

6.7 SIDEWALKS

Sidewalks shall be located along natural pedestrian travel paths. Sidewalks should be a minimum
of 5” wide along pedestrian pathways.

6.8 ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER\DETAILS

The project area is located within Ontario’s historic downtown area, and shall comply with the
Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines. The Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines were adopted
in 1998 to guide the physical revitalization of Ontario’s historic downtown. The Guidelines
provide architectural and design principals, as well as design concepts for downtown districts. The
project area is located within the Historic Retail District, a mixed-use area with a focus on housing,
commercial and retail.

The design principles and desired architectural features for the mixed-use blocks are derived from
the architectural style and elements set forth in Section 3.5.3 of the Downtown Design Guidelines
and in Section 2A.4.3.2 Design Guidelines for Context Buildings in the 1950’s styles Subdistrict,
with respect to storefront modulation, entrances, roof design, mechanical equipment, building
elements (cornices, storefront frame, mid-floor panel, transom windows, bulkheads), awnings,
materials and colors. Those guidelines, together with the following, shall be incorporated into the
Development Plans and Certificates of Appropriateness for each block, subject to final
interpretation by the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission and City Council.

Page | 28

Iltem C and D - 58 of 111



Architectural Character

= Create an architectural character that reflects the various styles within the historic
downtown by using similar proportions, building details and building material.

= New buildings should appear to fit in contextually with existing historic buildings by using
similar proportions, articulation, building details and building material.

= The overall character should feel like a modern interpretation of a traditional American
small town.

= Create compatibility between the mixed-use architecture and the residential architecture
within the downtown area; the introduction of unifying elements such as similar materials
and colors should be considered; however, “sameness” is discouraged.

Massing & Scale

= Employ simple, yet varied massing, with wall openings that create shadow line and provide
visual relief. Monolithic buildings and extensive blank wall surfaces are not allowed.

= Emphasize massing and height of corner elements

= Building increments should be a maximum of 50 feet in width. Buildings that exceed fifty
(50) feet of frontage should use various architectural devices to replicate the building
increments and pattern of the existing downtown including horizontal breaks and offsets
every 25 to 50 feet

= The upper portion of the buildings should reflect the same increment of articulation as the
ground level (storefront level)

= The cornices and moldings at the top of facades should also reflect the vertical massing
(increments) of the building

= Use strong and identifiable building forms to demarcate street intersections for instance, a
taller building mass, tower element/clock tower, or cupola may be considered.

=  Where adjacent buildings will be of varying heights, they should be sensitively designed
to promote a compatible transition in massing and avoid abrupt changes in scale along the
streetscape.

Articulation & Fenestration

= Design buildings with 3-dimensional quality; building facades should be based upon a
pleasing set of proportions and a clear pattern of building openings.

= Differentiate between the base, middle and top levels of a building; for instance, street-
oriented shops may feature a 1) a bulkhead; 2) display windows; and 3) transom and
detailed cornice.

= Avoid monotonous or blank facades on a building; buildings shall be articulated on all
sides. Use fenestration (windows and doors), as well as changes in wall plane, material,
texture, color, etc. to create shadow lines and articulate building walls.

= Provide highly visible public entrances, preferably oriented to streets and outdoor spaces;
shop entrances may be clearly expressed with recesses, overhangs, special materials, and/or
detailing.

Page | 29

Iltem C and D - 59 of 111



= Require a high degree of street level transparency, especially along sidewalks, important
outdoor spaces and heavily trafficked areas; the use of reflective, opaque, and darkly tinted
glass should be restricted.

Architectural Details

= Use architectural details to enhance a building’s appearance. Careful detailing is especially
appropriate at the base of buildings, along cornices, eaves, parapets or ridge tops, and
around entries and windows.

= Incorporate human-scaled details such as canopies and awnings, transparent windows and
windows displays. These are required at public entrances and along heavily trafficked
outdoor areas.

= Design architectural features and details as an integral part of the building; architectural
features, including canopies and awnings, should not appear “tacked-on.”

Storefront Guidelines

= Storefronts should provide an individual look for each store or establishment while still
blending in with the overall design.

= Storefronts shall incorporate high quality building materials. A durable base material (18
inches high min.) such as brick, tile, exterior cement plaster, or pre-cast architectural
concrete shall be used. Storefront glazing and exterior plaster shall not terminate at the
ground plane.

= Storefront glazing shall be clear glass to permit clear views into the interior space. The
amount of such glass shall provide a balance between high visibility into the store interior
and architectural character/quality.

= Entrance doors shall be of a traditional style and transparent as possible; however, an all
glass door is prohibited.

= No part of any open doors shall extend into the public right-of-way.

= Storefront openings should not exceed 30 feet in width without the interruption of a vertical
building element (column or wall).

= Storefront openings may extend up to 16 feet in height; the height should range from 8 to
16 feet.

Materials & Colors

= Use materials that exhibit permanence and quality, and that unify a building’s appearance
on all sides; materials and colors should accentuate the architectural details of the building
and promote visual harmony. Brick, tile, pre-cast architectural concrete, wood, stone
veneers or stucco are preferred.

= To create visual interest, use at least 3 different building materials on building facades.
Materials may be used to highlight a building entrance or distinguish the building base.

= Any awnings shall be comprised of durable, heat, dust and mildew-resistant canvas
materials that are designed to withstand the rigors of the Ontario climate. Vinyl or other
shiny materials are prohibited. However, canopies are preferred over awnings.

Page | 30

Iltem C and D - 60 of 111



Roofs/Rooftop Equipment

= Express roofs in a visually interesting manner that complements the composition of the
building and surrounding area, (i.e. use sculpted roof forms or a strong and attractively
detailed cornice).

= Locate and/or screen rooftop equipment, including ladders and antenna devices, so that it
is not visible from streets and adjacent buildings; methods of rooftop screening should be
integral to the building’s form.

= All mechanical units shall be screened from public view and from adjacent existing
buildings (preferably with roof forms).

= When roof decks and mechanical units are visible from adjacent developments, they should
be as unobtrusive as possible and painted to match finish roof material.

6.9 OUTDOOR DINING AREAS

Outdoor dining areas adjacent to a street level eating or drinking establishment are encouraged
along Euclid Avenue and are permitted along any street frontage. Any such areas shall be designed
in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 2A.7 of the Downtown Ontario Design
Guidelines, plus any additional features that may be required as part of on-sale alcoholic beverages.
Outdoor dining along Euclid will require an agreement with the California Department of
Transportation, since this is street is within a State right-of-way.

6.10 SIGNS

All commercial signs shall be designed in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 2C of
the Downtown Ontario Design Guidelines.

6.11 LIGHTING

All lighting of facades, decorative fixtures, store window interiors, awnings, and signs shall be
designed in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 2D of the Downtown Ontario Design
Guidelines.

On-site lighting must be directed away or shielded from adjacent streets, and adjacent properties.
All exterior lighting shall be of an indirect nature, coming from under eaves and canopies, or at
ground level, with in landscaped areas.

Exterior lighting fixtures should be a decorative and reinforce the architectural style of the
building.

Light standards less than 15 FT in height (including lighting bollards) should illuminate all street
sidewalks and connecting walkways, and are encouraged throughout the project.

Page | 31

ltem C and D - 61 of 111



7. HISTORIC PRESERVATION

7.1 HISTORIC CONTEXT AND BACKGROUND

The project area that comprises the PUD established by this document is located within the City's
Historic Downtown District. Founded by the Chaffey Brothers in the 1880’s, Ontario was a coined
a “model irrigation colony” by an Act of Congress in 1904. The Chaffey Brothers bought 6,218
acres of the Cucamonga Ranch in 1882 after the Southern Pacific Railway extended its service to
the west. Approximately 640 acres were set aside for the community of Ontario, with half of that
endowed to the Chaffey Agricultural College. The rest of the acreage was utilized as agricultural
land. The primary feature of the Chaffey city plan was the two hundred foot wide Euclid Avenue.
Several innovations included the provision for water rights for each landowner, electric lights, and
an electric railway. The gravity Mule Car that ran along the length of Euclid from 1888 to 1895
provided interest to its visitors as did the historic fountain that displayed Ontario’s water supply
system. The median still exists today and has been a center of public activity since its inception.
The present downtown took shape from the original irrigation system and land subdivision pattern
established by the Chaffey Brothers in the 1880’s as it grew evenly northwards away from the
railroad lines. The area within the current Downtown almost exactly matches the original
boundaries of the Model Colony.

As a part of the recognition of Ontario’s rich heritage, the City Council in July 1991
adopted a Historic Preservation Ordinance. The purpose of the Ordinance was:

1. To safeguard the City’s unique historical heritage as embodied and reflected in the City’s
architectural history and patterns of cultural development;

2. To foster civic and neighborhood pride and a sense of identity based on the recognition
and use of Historical Resources; and

3. To preserve diverse architectural styles, patterns of development, and design preferences
reflecting phases of the City’s history and to encourage complementary contemporary
design and construction and inspire a more livable urban environment.

The PUD area has frontage along Euclid Avenue. The public right-of-way of Euclid Avenue from
Philadelphia Street to the 1-10 was designated as Local Landmark No. 67 on January 16, 2001 by
the Ontario City Council. On August 10, 2005, the public right-of-way of Euclid Avenue from
Philadelphia Street in Ontario to 24th Street in Upland was listed on the National Register of
Historic Places as a significant cultural landscape. The public right-of way includes north and
south bound streets, sidewalks, light fixtures, parkways, median, trees, and stone and concrete
curbs and gutters. Contributing character-defining features include the 60-foot wide median,
historic rock curb, scored sidewalks, King standard light posts, double planting of California
pepper trees (Schinus molle), silk oaks trees (Grevillea robusta), and other mature vegetation such
as deodar trees (Cedrus deodara) and Canary Island palms (Phoenix canariensis). All proposed
developments within the PUD area will require a Certificate of Appropriateness to ensure

Page | 32

ltem C and D - 62 of 111



alterations and building forms (design, scale/massing and site layout) are appropriate to the
character of the historic Euclid Avenue frontage (Right-of-way).

7.2 EXISTING HISTORIC RESOURCES

The PUD area does not contain any potential or proposed historic resources. However, the area is
located within the Proposed Downtown Historic District. As such, a Certificate of Appropriateness
will be required with all proposed developments within the PUD area to ensure no adverse impacts
to the proposed and designated historic resources occur as a result of development. Infill and new
construction, including building forms (design, scale/massing and site layout) and architectural
elements, shall be developed in a manner that adheres to the Secretary of Interior Standards for the
Treatment of Historic Resources, the City of Ontario Development Code, and the Ontario Design
Guidelines.

8. ADMINISTRATION

8.1 ITEMS NOT ADDRESSED IN PUD

Any terms, requirements, or regulations not addressed within the PUD document shall be governed
by the City of Ontario Development Code, the regulations of the Mixed-Use zones and City
Standards.

8.2 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

Development Plans for the development of each individual parcel within the PUD area, along with
fees and other required items, shall be submitted for review and approval per the requirements
contained in Chapter 2, Administration and Procedures, of the City of Ontario Development Code
and the General Application.

8.3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXCEPTIONS

Deviation from the development standards set forth in this document may be granted up to a
maximum of ten (10%) percent by the Zoning Administrator. Any deviation that is greater than
(10%) percent shall require Variance approval.

Page | 33

Iltem C and D - 63 of 111



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF ONTARIO, APPROVING FILE NO. PHP19-009, A
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS TO CONSTRUCT A 2,430
SQUARE FOOT DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT WITH A 480 SQUARE
FOOT OUTDOOR PATIO WITHIN THE MU-1 (DOWNTOWN MIXED-USE)
AND EA (EUCLID AVENUE OVERLAY) ZONING DISTRICTS, AND
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APNS: 1048-355-09 AND
1048-355-10.

WHEREAS, HANNIBAL PETROSSI, (“Applicant”) has filed an application for the
approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness, File No. PHP19-009, as described in the title
of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the City’s character and history are reflected in its cultural, historical,
and architectural heritage with an emphasis on the “Model Colony” as declared by an act
of the Congress of the United States and presented at the St. Louis World’s Fair in 1904;
and

WHEREAS, the City’s historical foundations should be preserved as living parts of
community life and development in order to foster an understanding of the City’s past so
that future generations may have a genuine opportunity to appreciate, enjoy, and
understand Ontario’s rich heritage; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development and the Aesthetic, Cultural, Open
Space and Recreational Resources Elements of the Policy Plan Component of the
Ontario Plan sets forth Goals and Policies to conserve Ontario’s historic buildings and
districts; and

WHEREAS, the Euclid Avenue Median is worthy of preservation and was
designated as a local landmark by the City Council on January 16, 2001 and a Contributor
to the Euclid Avenue Historic District on June 4, 2013, and was listed on the National
Register of Historic Places on April 10, 2005; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act — Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq. — (hereinafter referred to
as "CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the

Iltem C and D - 64 of 111



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Page 2

Historic Preservation Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on
the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of
Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with
the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2019, the Historic Preservation Subcommittee of
the City of Ontario conducted a hearing and issued Decision No. HPSC19-012,
recommending the Historic Preservation Commission approve the Application; and

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2019, the Historic Preservation Commission of the
City of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing
on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Historic Preservation
Commission of the City of Ontario as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making authority for the Project, the Historic Preservation Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Historic Preservation Commission, the Historic
Preservation Commission finds as follows:

(1)  The administrative record have been completed in compliance with CEQA,
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(2)  The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to
Section 15331 (Class 31, Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA
Guidelines, which consists of maintenance, repairs, stabilization, rehabilitation,
restoration, preservation, conservation, or reconstruction of historical resources in a
manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of
Historic Properties. The Guidelines were utilized in the development of the project design
and, as a result, do not pose any adverse impacts to the historic resource; and

ltem C and D - 65 of 111



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Page 3

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

(4)  The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the Historic Preservation Commission.

SECTION 2: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise,
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Historic Preservation Commission has
reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety
Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria
(ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a
result, the HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 3: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Historic Preservation Commission during the above-
referenced hearing, and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 2, above,
the Historic Preservation Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed project will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect any significant architectural feature of the resource. While there are
no identified historic resources within the project site, the site has frontage along historic
Euclid Avenue and is within the proposed Downtown Historic District. Through
appropriate scale, massing and use of materials, the new construction is compatible with
the surrounding buildings and therefore, will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect any significant architectural feature of the resource

(2) The proposed project will not detrimentally change, destroy or
adversely affect the historic character or value of the resource. While there are no

ltem C and D - 66 of 111



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Page 4

identified historic resources within the project site, the project has frontage along historic
Euclid Avenue and is within the proposed Downtown Historic District. The project
proposes appropriate building massing and scale, site design, building layout, and
architecture that is in keeping with the area.

(3) The proposed project will be compatible with the exterior character-
defining features of the historic resource. Although the project site is not considered
historic, the project site has frontage along historic Euclid Avenue and is within the
proposed Downtown Historic District. Through enhanced architectural elements in an Art
Deco inspired modern architectural style the proposed project does not detract from the
character of Euclid Avenue and is compatible with the 1950’s Subdistrict and proposed
Downtown Historic District.

(4) The proposed project will not adversely affect or detract from the
character of the historic district. Through enhanced architectural elements in an Art
Deco inspired modern commercial architectural style, the proposed project does not
detract from the character of Euclid Avenue and is compatible with the 1950’s Subdistrict
and proposed Downtown Historic District.

SECTION 4: Historic Preservation Commission Action. Based upon the
findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the Historic
Preservation Commission hereby APPROVES the herein described Application, subject
to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports attached hereto as
“‘Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION &: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 6: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 7: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

ltem C and D - 67 of 111



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Page 5

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Historic Preservation Commission of the City
of Ontario shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Historic Preservation Commission of the City of Ontario at a
regular meeting thereof held on the 26" day of November 2019, and the foregoing is a
full, true and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Jim Willoughby
Historic Preservation Commission
Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom

Planning Director and

Secretary of Historic Preservation
Commission

Iltem C and D - 68 of 111



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-009
November 26, 2019

Page 6

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Historic Preservation Commission of
the City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC19-XXX,
was duly passed and adopted by the Historic Preservation Commission of the City of
Ontario at their regular meeting held on November 26, 2019 by the following roll call vote,
to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Iltem C and D - 69 of 111



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP19-009

November 26, 2019

Page 7

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PHP19-009
Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page)

ltem C and D - 70 of 111



CERTIFICATE OF
([ Ay APPROPRIATENESS

[0) O "0 o

The “Model Colony® CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Date: November 26, 2019
File No.: PHP19-009
] 511 North Euclid Avenue and 110 West E Street
Location:
(APNs: 1048-355-09 and 1048-355-10)
Prepared By: Elly Antuna, Associate Planner
A request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of
a 2,430 square foot single story specialty restaurant, with a 480
. e square foot outdoor patio and drive-thru facilities on 0.36 acres of
Description:

land located at the northwest corner of E Street and Euclid Avenue,
within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue
Overlay) zoning districts.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The above-described Project shall comply with the following Conditions of Approval

1. Time Limits.

1.1 The Certificate of Appropriateness shall become void twenty-four (24) months
from the date of approval unless a building permit has been issued and work
authorized by this approval has commenced prior to the expiration date and is
diligently pursued to completion.

2. Site Design.

2.1 Building shall be constructed at the along eastern property line with a 3’-2”
setback.

2.2 Drive-thru access shall be from West E Street at the rear of the property.

3. Architectural Treatment.

3.1 Central tower shall be 31’ in tall. Remainder of building shall be 26’ tall.

3.2 Central tower element shall feature wide (minimum 2’6”) overhanging eaves and
be have redwood siding on eaves.

ltem Cand D - 71 of 111



Conditions of Approval
File No.: PHP19-009
November 26, 2019
Page 2

3.3 Stucco areas of building shall be a smooth plaster finish painted in “Boutique
Beige.”

3.4 Redwood siding shall be primary material on east elevation and an accent
material on south and west elevations.

3.5 Storefronts shall have cantilevered decorative metal L-panel awnings in “Aged
Bronze.” Fabric awnings shall not be used.

3.6 Decorative metal transoms shall be placed over cantilevered awnings.

3.7 12"x24” porcelain tiles shall be used along base of the building up to 4’ in height
with a matching bullnose tile cap.

3.8 Exterior light fixtures shall be compatible with the overall modern commercial
architectural style. Submit a cut sheet to Planning for review and approval prior
to issuance of building permit.

4. Signs.
4.1 Sign plans shall be submitted and approved for the site prior to the installation of
any signs. Signs shall conform to Division 8.01 (Sign Regulations) of the Ontario
Development Code.

5. The applicant shall obtain a building permit prior to any demolition or construction.

6. Any deviation from the approved plans shall require approval of the Planning
Department and, if necessary, the Historic Preservation Commission.

7. Conditions of Approval shall be reproduced onto all plans submitted for permits.
8. Prior to Occupancy the Planning Department shall inspect the premises to ensure the

Conditions of Approval have been met and that the project has been constructed per
the approved plans.

ltem Cand D - 72 of 111



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV19-038, A
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A 2,430 SQUARE FOOT
DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT (STARBUCKS COFFEE), WITH A 480
SQUARE FOOT OUTDOOR PATIO ON 0.36 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED
AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF EUCLID AVENUE AND E STREET
(110 WEST E. STREET AND 511 N. EUCLID AVENUE) WITHIN THE MU-
1 (DOWNTOWN MIXED-USE) AND EA (EUCLID AVENUE OVERLAY)
ZONING DISTRICTS, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT
THEREOF— APNS: 1048-355-09 AND 10.

WHEREAS, Hannibal Petrossi ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the
approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV19-038, as described in the title of this
Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 0.36 acre of land generally located on the
north west corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street at 110 West E. Street and 511 N. Euclid
Avenue within the MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay)
zoning districts, and is presently improved with a parking lot on the southeast area of the
site, a commercial building (furniture store) on the north and a commercial use on the
west; and

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the MU-1 (Mixed
Use Downtown) zoning district and is developed with commercial land use. The properties
to the east, across Euclid Avenue, is within the MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning
district and is developed with two service stations. The property to the south is within the
MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning district and is developed with a commercial use.
The property to the west is within the MU-1 (Mixed Use Downtown) zoning district, and is
developed a commercial building; and

WHEREAS, the Project was submitted in conjunction with a Planned Unit
Development (Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD, File No. PUD19-001) to establish
development standards, design guidelines and infrastructure requirement for property on
0.36 acres of land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110
West E. Street and 511 N. Euclid Avenue) and A Certificate of Appropriateness (File No.
PHP19-009) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee),
with a 480 square foot outdoor patio; and

WHEREAS, the Project comprises of a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant
(Starbucks Coffee) and 480 square foot outdoor patio that is oriented with the building
entry and patio fronting onto Euclid Avenue. The drive-thru lanes, pick-up window, and
off-street parking facilities are oriented toward the rear building and not visible from Euclid

ltem C and D - 73 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-038

November 26, 2019

Page 2

Avenue. The Drive-thru lane will be screened from view of a public street through building
orientation, landscaping, and low screen wall; and

WHEREAS, no access vehicular drive-thru access onto the site will be permitted
from Euclid Avenue. Primary vehicular access to the project site will be from a driveway
on E Street. A second separate driveway, to the west of the primary driveway, is proposed
for drive-thru land access only; and

WHEREAS, an Art Deco inspired modern architectural style is proposed to
complement the historic buildings and context of the historic downtown area. The modern
architectural style building is proposed as a single story, with a two-story massing
consistent with the existing buildings south of the project site along Euclid Avenue. The
height of the building is 26 feet to the top of the roof parapet and 31 feet to the top of the
entry tower. The architectural character of the building complements the various style of
buildings within the historic downtown by using similar proportions (scale and massing),
building details and building materials; and

WHEREAS, the Project provides an overall landscape coverage of 21 percent,
including a 5 to 7-foot landscaped setback provided along the project’s E street frontage
and wrapping around the corner to Euclid Avenue. The project will also include the
construction of a 5-foot wide landscape parkway along the frontage of E Street. Along
Euclid Avenue, a three-foot-wide planter is proposed along the base of the storefront
windows, to help soften the building appearance from the sidewalk. Moreover, a variety
of landscape materials have been provided to enhance the Project and decorative paving
and lighting will be provided at the vehicular entrance, pedestrian walkways, and other
key locations within the Project; and

WHEREAS, Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve the project.
Additionally, the Applicant has submitted a completed Preliminary Water Quality
Management Plan (“PWQMP”) form, which established that the project is listed under one
of the categories subject to the requirements of the San Bernardino County Municipal
Separate Storm Sewer System Permit (“MS4 Permit’); therefore, the proposed
development will be required to design and install Site Design Low Impact Development
(“LID”) Best Management Practices (“BMPs”) or Treatment Control BMPs to treat a two-
year, 24-hour storm event; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a Project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000), hereinafter
referred to as "CEQA"; and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the

ltem C and D - 74 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-038

November 26, 2019

Page 3

application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject
Application; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the
Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight
impacts of current and future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2019, the Historic Preservation Subcommittee of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the related Certificate of Appropriateness, File
No. PHP19-009 and concluded said hearing on that date, voting to issue Decision No.
HPSC19-012, recommending the Historic Planning Commission approve the Certificate
of Appropriateness; and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the Development Advisory Board of the City
of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on
that date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB19-065, recommending the Planning
Commission approve the Application; and

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that
date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

ltem C and D - 75 of 111



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDEV19-038

November 26, 2019

Page 4

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered
the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the
facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as
follows:

(1)  The administrative record have been completed in compliance with CEQA,
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(2)  The Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the
CEQA Guidelines, and meets all of the following conditions: [1] The Project is consistent
with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies, as
well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; [2] The proposed development
occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, and is substantially
surrounded by urban uses; [3] The project site has no value as habitat for endangered,
rare, or threatened species; [4] Approval of the Project will not result in any significant
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and [5] the Project site can be
adequately served by all required utilities and public services; and

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

(4)  The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the Planning Commission.

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based
on the facts